
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
lantary 24 and 25, 2019

8:30 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, lanuary 24,2019,
and Friday, January 25, 2019, in the Port Commission Hearing Room, I Ferry Building' San
Francisco, Califomia.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.

Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Hearing
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a

mafter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a

Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as

there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office ofthe District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules goveming the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http:/iwww.bart.gov/abour/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod./meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com,/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id:CATRANBART_
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23'd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 5 I 0-464-6083.

Patricia K. Williams
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

in connection with:

Thursday, January 24, 2019, 8:30 a.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER (Port Commission Hearing Room, 1 Ferry Building, San

Francisco)

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

i. Elaine Forbes, Executive Director, Port of San Francisco
ii. Tilly Chang, Executive Director, San Francisco County Transportation

Authority

2. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

3. WORKSHOP

A. Horizon 2027.*

B. State of the Region.x

C. Financial Outlook.*

RECESS (15 minutes)

C. Financial Outlook (continued).

WORKING LUNCH

D. Customer Satisfaction 2018.*

E. Pathway to World Class Transit.*

RECESS (15 minutes)

F. Quality of Life.*
i. Homelessness.
ii. Cleanliness
iii. Fare Evasion.
iv. Safety and Security.

RECESS (10 minutes)

* Attachment available 2 of3



G. Update on Implementation of Assembly Bill 2923.*

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
theirjurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

5. CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 p.m. (1 Ferry Building, Unit 3)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: General Manager
Gov't. Code Section: 54957

6. OPEN SESSION (Port Commission Hearing Room, 1 Ferry Building, San Francisco)

ADJOURN to Friday, January 25,2019, at 8:30 a.m.

Friday, January 25,2019,8:30 a.m.

7. CALL TO ORDER (Port Commission Hearing Room, 1 Ferry Building, San
Francisco)

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

8. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

9. WORKSHOP - Continued.

H. Fare Gate and Fleet Update.*

RECESS (15 minutes)

I. Parking Program Update.*

J. Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion at BART.*

WORKING LUNCH

K. Workshop Review.

10. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opporhrnity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
theirjurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

* Attachment available 3 of 3



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Robert M. Powers, Deputy General Manager

SUBJECT: BART Board 2019 Workshop

DATE: January 17,2019

The annual BART Board Workshop will be held on January 24th and25th atthe Ferry Building in
San Francisco. This location is a five-minute walk from the Embarcadero BART Station. This
event offers an opportunity for more extensive conversation among Board members, and between
the Board and staff on the most important topics for the new year.

I wanted to take this opportunity to summarize some of the key topics planned for this year's
agenda. This year's strategic conversations focus on our financial outlook, the 2018 Customer
Satisfaction Survey; quality of life issues related to homelessness, public safety, station
cleanliness, fare evasion; Fleet of the Future; and a parking program update. The agenda also
includes a report on the state of the region; discussion of the inflation-based fare program; an
update on AB 2923; and a summary of community engagement strategies. In addition, there will
be a very brief presentation on the concept of what it means to be a World Class transit system.

We have included two supplemental reports, the BART Annual Report, and the BART Fare
Structure Report. The BART Annual Report summarizes BART's performance according to the
eight Board-adopted Strategic Plan goals and highlights accomplishments from 2018. The Fare
Structure Report is included as background for the financial outlook and fare presentation. This
report provides information on BART's fare structure, including the Productivity-Adjusted
Inflation-Based Fare Increase Program; the Clipper smart card; fare programs currently
underway or under study, including a discount pilot program for low-income riders; fares and
policies of local and peer agencies; and BART's fare-related policies, the Financial Stability
Policy and Fare Policy.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (510) 464-6126.

7Zu*L
cc: General Manager

Board Appointed Officers
Executive Staff

Robert M. Powers


	3-A Horizon 2027.pdf
	Horizon 2027
	The 2027 BART Customer Experience
	Choosing BART
	STATION Experience
	Journey on TRAIN
	Journey on TRAIN
	The 2027 BART Customer Experience
	The 2027 BART Customer Experience
	Discussion





Board Workshop 2019


Engaging 
Communities
January 25, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


1. Mobility As A Service (MaaS)


2. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion at BART


3. Social Media Engagement


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019







1


1Board Workshop 2019







2Board Workshop 2019







3Board Workshop 2019







4Board Workshop 2019







5Board Workshop 2019







8


6Board Workshop 2019







7Board Workshop 2019







8Board Workshop 2019







9Board Workshop 2019







10Board Workshop 2019







11Board Workshop 2019







12Board Workshop 2019







13Board Workshop 2019







14Board Workshop 2019







15Board Workshop 2019







16Board Workshop 2019







Board Workshop 2019


Equity, Diversity & 
Inclusion at BART
Office of Civil Rights







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


2018 Highlights


• 39 small business outreach events 
• Over 400 total attendees
• 81% of participants indicated that they 
were more likely to bid BART work after 
participating in the outreach meeting


• Over $88M committed to small businesses 
(SBs) in 2018


• Developed BART Equity Analysis to study the 
impact of transit decisions not subject to 
Title VI 


• Launched OCR-wide Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs)


• Begun modernizing all OCR business 
processes







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Defining World Class


• Define what world class civil rights 
organizations look like for each major 
stakeholder group:


• “Customers” 
• “Colleagues”
• “Contractors”


• Measure our success using key 
performance indicators and 
benchmark against other agencies and 
the private sector


• Develop new means and methods to 
study and recommend action on 
“Equity” strategic plan goal







Board Workshop 2019 | 22


Customers: FY19 Initiatives


• Agency-Wide roll out of Equity Analysis, developed in 2018 to study the 
impact of decisions not subject to Title VI analysis


• Re-Design OCR website to better present information to stakeholder 
groups and better connect external stakeholders to internal staff


• Develop OCR Annual Report to increase transparency in equity program 
decision making and outcomes







Board Workshop 2019 | 23


Colleagues: FY19 Initiatives


• Increased partnership with CBOs and other community organizations


• Develop Diversity Toolkit to train staff beyond current training in 
diversity, equity and inclusion at the District 


• Modernized business processes and communication with stakeholders







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


Contractors: FY19 Initiatives


• Small Business Support Services to help firms working with or seeking 
to work with BART 


• Establish economic outcome ladder to help small businesses grow 
while working with BART


• Continue to remove barriers to small business participation through 
Small Business Opportunity Plan (SBOP3)







Board Workshop 2019


Engaging 
Communities
Office of External Affairs 







Board Workshop 2019 | 26


Engaging Communities


• Telephone calls
• On-train & online 


surveys
• In stations
• Fairs & festivals 
• Business/Community 


presentations
• Social media


The Office of External Affairs communicates with customers daily.







Board Workshop 2019 | 27


Engaging Communities 


In 2018, the Office of External Affairs fielded:


• 19,442 complaints/comments/queries (Almost 383/week)


• 127,000 calls to Transit Information Center (2,442/week, half for Capitol 
Corridor)


• 79,000 individual customers with ticket needs, etc. at Customer Service office 
at Lake Merritt Station (1,519 weekly)


• 82 community and in-station outreach events


• 48 BART presentations – GM/Board Members







Board Workshop 2019 | 28


Engaging Communities 


In 2018, the Office of External Affairs engaged communities with:


• BARTable Weekly Newsletter – making connections to the places and 
happenings across the Bay accessible by BART
 105,307 Email Contacts & Facebook, Twitter, Instagram followers 


• Customer Surveys 
 Passenger Environment Surveys (20,500 responses)
 Customer Satisfaction, New Rail Cars, 5am Service, Low Income Fare, 


etc. (15,000 responses)







Board Workshop 2019


Engaging 
Communities
Social Media Engagement







Board Workshop 2019 | 30


Social Media


@SFBART 309K followers
@SFBARTalert 109K followers
@SFBARTable 8.8K followers


@BARTSF 36K followers
@BARTable 7K
@BARTPolice 1.9K


@sfbayarearapidtransit 2.3K followers
@sfbartable 10K followers


2 million views







Board Workshop 2019 | 31


Use of Social Media


• Engagement
• Answer questions
• Promote riding BART
• Follow trending 


topics
• Push a message
• Rumor control
• Elicit brand affinity
• Media relations
• Spotlight employees


2015: 13,000 @SFBART mentions
2018: 60,000 @SFBART mentions 







Board Workshop 2019 | 32


Communication Strategy


Government has two primary communications 
goals:
1. Getting information to users
2. Articulating value to non-users 


(taxpayers)


Feedback and conversation are 
critical; many government 
agencies are notoriously poor at it


Delivery-driven Government: Knitting together technology, user data, service 
design, operations, and policy into tight feedback loops creates the conditions to 
constantly adapt programs and improve outcomes (Jennifer Pahlka – Code for 
America)







Board Workshop 2019 | 33


Industry Leaders


BART’s use of social media is considered best practice. 
We have been asked to speak at leading conferences.







Board Workshop 2019 | 34


Social Media Strategy


Respond
To inquiries via desktop and mobile, 


meeting users where they are


Listen
Gauge sentiment and deepen insights in 
real time 


Engage
In personalized conversations 
with a broad audience


Drive
A narrative that reflects progress and goals 


Prioritize
Urgent safety concerns 


and potential reach


Analyze
Data and use it to inform 


business decisions







Board Workshop 2019 | 35


Use of Video













Board Workshop 2019 | 36


Social Media Strategy


• Staff on social media are spokespeople and get information quickly
• We treat the public like they are reporters 
• Getting a real response with context and facts is very satisfying







Board Workshop 2019 | 37


Social Media Strategy


Realest social 
media managers 
in public 
transportation


NOT-SO-BREAKING: 
BART’s Twitter Account 
Responds to Complaints 
Awesomely


WOW—
Finally Some 
Honesty from 
the Government 







Board Workshop 2019 | 38


Monitoring Social Media


• We alerted line 
management and 
police to send staff 
over immediately 
and we notified the 
escalator crews. 


• Because of this 
post, we now fully 
enclose escalators 
during long 
rebuilding jobs. 













Board Workshop 2019 | 39


Biohazard and Hot/Cold Car Alerts


• With the click of one button 
we can automatically send 
the tweet to crews, open 
and close a case in 
Salesforce (Customer 
Services) to collect the 
complaint data, and add a 
tag  so we can measure how 
often this happens.


• The crew’s response:
CAR 1761 WAS COLD. CYCLED 
HVAC BY TECH. NOW OK
• Then we can reply with the 


follow up and close the 
loop.







Board Workshop 2019 | 40


Rapid Response







Board Workshop 2019 | 41


Collaborating Across Departments







Board Workshop 2019 | 42


Collaborating Across Departments


• We worked with 
Transportation, M&E, and 
the District Architect’s 
office to make these 
permanent signs a reality.


• We then followed up with 
the user to show their 
tweet resulted in a positive 
change.  







Board Workshop 2019 | 43


Influencers


User has 24.7K followers







Board Workshop 2019 | 44


Influencers


He retweeted the exchange to his 24.7K followers







Board Workshop 2019 | 45


Engaging with Popular Threads







Board Workshop 2019 | 46


Infrastructure Storytelling


Instead of posting a 
simple tweet about 
the Measure RR 
Annual Report with a 
link to the report, we 
posted videos, 
pictures, graphics, and 
pull quotes and 
wrapped it all up in a 
“thread.” 







Board Workshop 2019 | 47


Measure RR Thread







Board Workshop 2019 | 48


Twitter Moments







Board Workshop 2019 | 49


Responding to Negative Tweets







Board Workshop 2019 | 50


Responding to Negative Tweets







Board Workshop 2019 | 51


Social Media Data







Board Workshop 2019 | 52


Twitter Townhalls







Board Workshop 2019 | 53


Podcasts


32 episodes


21,000 plays on SoundCloud 


Long-form format (10-25 minutes)


Taps into loyal advocates


Explore the inner workings of BART


Spotlight employees


Cheap: $144 annually







Board Workshop 2019 | 54


Discussion





		Engaging Communities

		Agenda

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Equity, Diversity & Inclusion at BART

		2018 Highlights

		Defining World Class

		Customers: FY19 Initiatives

		Colleagues: FY19 Initiatives

		Contractors: FY19 Initiatives

		Engaging Communities

		Engaging Communities

		Engaging Communities 

		Engaging Communities 

		Engaging Communities

		Social Media

		Use of Social Media

		Communication Strategy

		Industry Leaders

		Social Media Strategy

		Use of Video

		Social Media Strategy

		Social Media Strategy

		Monitoring Social Media

		Biohazard and Hot/Cold Car Alerts

		Rapid Response

		Collaborating Across Departments

		Collaborating Across Departments

		Influencers

		Influencers

		Engaging with Popular Threads

		Infrastructure Storytelling

		Measure RR Thread

		Twitter Moments

		Responding to Negative Tweets

		Responding to Negative Tweets

		Social Media Data

		Twitter Townhalls

		Podcasts

		Discussion






ANNUAL REPORT 2018


B
U


IL
D


IN
G


 A
 B


E
T


T
E


R
 B


A
R


T
 


JANUARY 2019


San Francisco Bay Area  
Rapid Transit District
Bevan Dufty, President, Board of Directors


Grace Crunican, General Manager 







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT
JANUARY 2019







1 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


This Annual Report 
communicates progress toward 
our Strategic Plan goals and 
indicators, and reflects our values 
of transparency, accountability 
and data-driven decision making. 


In 2018, we made major changes 
in how we clean stations and 
trains, and we’re pleased to 
report recent improvement in 
customer ratings for cleanliness. 
On-time performance has also 
improved due to Measure RR 
funded system rehabilitation, 
quality maintenance, 
and attention to incident 
management. 


We’re also working to make BART 
safer. We recently kicked off 
a safety and security initiative 
that will expand police staffing, 
enhance our network of 
surveillance cameras, and 
increase public safety outreach. 


The year ended on a high note 
with a new Fleet of the Future 
train having served each of the 
BART lines, and higher than 
expected ridership on our new 
extension to Antioch. 


Bevan Dufty 
President, Board of Directors


Grace Crunican
General Manager







2 STRATEGIC PLAN


 BUILDING A BETTER BART 


BART’S STRATEGIC PLAN
BART’s Strategic Plan Framework lays out eight goals that 
guide the agency’s work planning, budgeting, and performance 
measurement processes. This report communicates how we 
are progressing toward our goals by summarizing recent 
achievements and performance trends for key indicators 
associated with each goal area. A full dataset for each indicator 
is attached. 


VISION


MISSION


GOALS


STRATEGIES (FY2016-2020)


BART supports a sustainable and 
prosperous Bay Area by connecting 
communities with seamless mobility.


Provide safe, reliable, clean, quality 
transit service for riders.


Leadership and 
Partnership in the Region


ECONOMY


ENGAGE 
COMMUNITY


EQUITY


CONNECT 
AND CREATE 


GREAT 
PLACES


EXPERIENCE


EXPAND CAPACITY, 
MANAGE DEMAND


SAFETY WORKFORCE


ALIGN WORKFORCE 
WITH NEEDS


FINANCIAL 
STABILITY


MODERNIZE 
BUSINESS 


PRACTICES


SYSTEM 
PERFORMANCE


FIX, MAINTAIN, 
AND 


MODERNIZE


ENVIRONMENT


ADVANCE 
SUSTAINABILITY


Riders and 
Public


Infrastructure 
and Service


Organization







STRATEGIC INDICATORS AT A GLANCE


* Benchmark is based on the annual progress required to meet the Board-adopted 
target set for 2025.


**Based on 2017, most recent year available.


*** The share of riders walking or bicycling to BART (active access) increased from 
35% in 2008 to 44% in 2015 based on BART’s Station Profile Survey. BART’s Board 
of Directors set a target to reach 52% by 2025Benchmark not met by more than 5%


See attached data book for details. 


Benchmark met or exceeded


Benchmark not met but within 5%


3 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


GOAL AREA STRATEGIC INDICATOR


RECENT 
PERFORMANCE 
(2018 or FY2018 
unless otherwise 


noted)


LONG TERM 
BENCHMARK EVALUATION


SYSTEM 
PERFORMANCE


On-time performance: Percent 
of customers arriving on time 92% 92%


Escalator availability: Percent of 
street and platform escalators in 
service


89% street 95% street


96% platform 96% platform


EXPERIENCE


Customer satisfaction: Percent 
of customers who are very or 
somewhat satisfied 


56% 85%


SAFETY


Crime: Crimes against persons 
per million riders 3.5 2


WORKFORCE


Turnover: Percent of employees 
in critical positions departing 
within the year 


10% 6%


FINANCIAL 
STABILITY


Efficiency: Change in the 
operating cost per passenger 
mile of service (FY17-18) 
compared to typical inflation 


6% 2.2%


ECONOMY


Development near BART: 
Housing units and commercial 
square feet approved for 
development on BART property 
(3-year annual average, 2016-
2018), compared to Board-
adopted target*


133 housing units


65,000 commercial 
square feet 


800 housing units/
year


110,000 commercial 
square feet/year 


EQUITY


Minority ridership: Ratio of 
minority riders to minority 
residents in the region


1.0 1.0


ENVIRONMENT


Low-carbon electricity: Percent 
from low and zero carbon 
sources compared to Board-
adopted 2025 target


96%** 90%


Sustainable access: Percent of 
riders walking or biking to BART Increasing *** Continue to increase







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT4


• Replaced 22 miles of track to 
improve overall reliability.


• Reprofiled 231.6 miles of track to 
reduce railway noise and give our 
passengers a quieter ride.


• Completed a major overhaul of 
critical track section near the West 
Oakland and 12th Street Stations.


• Replaced five miles of 34.5 kV 
electrical cable system in 
downtown Oakland to provide safe 
and reliable power for trains.


• Received bidder proposals to 
upgrade BART’s train control 
system to reduce delays and 
increase capacity in the Transbay 
Tube.


• Advertised contract for fabrication 
and installation of forty-one 
escalators at the four downtown 
San Francisco Stations to improve 
escalator up-time and reliability.


• Completed hearing loop installation 
at agent booths in the Lake Merritt 
and 12th Street Stations and the 
Customer Service Center at Lake 
Merritt Station to improve 
accessibility for customers with 
hearing loss. 


SYSTEM PERFORMANCE
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS – MEASURE RR 


Passed by 71% of BART District voters in 2016, Measure RR is helping improve system 
performance by rebuilding critical system infrastructure.


System Performance Strategic Indicators
Highest value Lowest value


DAILY CUSTOMER ON-TIME PERFORMANCE


95% 96%
FY 2009 92%


FY 2018
FY 2012


89%
FY 2017


STATION ELEVATORS IN SERVICE


99%
FY 2009


98%
FY 2018


98%
FY 2012







5 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


• Began study of a second Transbay
Rail Crossing that would aim
to double BART’s bay crossing
capacity and provide crowding
relief among other benefits.
Released an initial request for
proposals to obtain consultant
services for strategic advising &
program management to support
the work.


• Began design of an expansion of
the Hayward Maintenance Complex
that will house the Fleet of the
Future train cars.


• 26 contracts advertised, and 22
contracts awarded.


• $164.3 million spent on Measure RR
activities through December 2018.


• Committed nearly $100 million in
funding to small businesses since
Measure RR inception.


Next year, we will be doubling down on 
RR-funded system renewal projects, 
including a major earthquake retrofit of the 
Transbay Tube. To allow sufficient time to 
complete the work, we will be running less 
service on Sundays (24-minute frequencies 
all day) and opening the system an hour 
later starting February 11, 2019. The late 
opening will shorten the Transbay Tube 
retrofit project timeline by four months 
and provide a 12% cost savings. We have 
arranged for partner agencies to provide 
connecting bus services for the 2,900 
riders who rely on BART that first hour. 


System Performance Strategic Indicators


STREET ESCALATORS IN SERVICE 


98%
FY 2009


86%
FY 2012


89%
FY 2018


PLATFORM ESCALATORS IN SERVICE


99%
FY 2009


94%


FY 2012


96%
FY 2018


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT6


CUSTOMER ON-TIME PERFORMANCE 
IMPROVED TO 92% DURING 
FISCAL YEAR 2018 DUE IN PART 
TO MEASURE RR-FUNDED SYSTEM 
REHABILITATION 


PERFORMANCE TREND SPOTLIGHT  
ON TIME PERFORMANCE IMPROVES 
BART’s customer on-time performance improved to 92.4% during Fiscal Year 
2018, up from 89.2% the prior year. The improvement is attributed to greater 
Measure RR funded system rehabilitation, quality maintenance, and attention to 
incident management. For example, to reduce delays in the Transbay Tube, we 
implemented a new strategy of proactively positioning technicians at Embarcadero 
and West Oakland Stations during commute periods so they can quickly respond 
to mechanical issues on trains. Since this approach was implemented, the average 
minutes of delays due to failures has dropped by 45%. 







7 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 


• Elevator attendant pilot program 
implemented: We partnered 
with the San Francisco Municipal 
Transportation Agency to bring 
elevator attendants to the Civic 
Center and Powell Street Stations. 
The pilot program is staffed 
through Hunters Point Family, a 
community-based organization. 
About 90,000 people a month 
use the attended elevators at both 
stations, and misuse is down to 
almost zero. More than 700 people 
have sent in comments praising 
the program, which will continue 
through June 30, 2019. 


• More Fleet of the Future vehicles 
put into service: Thirty new Fleet 
of the Future train cars are now in 
service, offering cooler, quieter, and 
cleaner rides to BART customers. 
By spring of 2019 we expect to 
have a new car delivery rate of 10 
cars per month. 


• Screeching noise reduced: We’ve 
converted 95 percent of our fleet 
wheels and 40 percent of the rails 
to a new profile that together help 
to reduce the screeching noise 
frequently heard on BART. In the 
worst areas of the system, interior 
train car noise measurements 
decreased from 95dB to 75dB, 
similar to the difference between 
standing next to a lawnmower 
versus a dishwasher. Average 
customer noise complaints have 
decreased by 73 percent since the 
effort began. 


Customer Experience Strategic Indicators


% OF CUSTOMERS WHO ARE SATISFIED


84%


56%
CY 2018


CY 2010
CY 201282%


AVG. CUSTOMER RATING FOR 
STATION CLEANLINESS 


4.58


3.57
CY 2018


CY 2010


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT8


• BART mobile application 
launched: With the launch of 
the official BART app, riders can 
view real-time train departures, 
plan trips from end-to-end, and 
personalize preferences by saving 
their favorite trips and stations. 
New features including carpool 
parking payment are expected to 
be added next year. 


• BART Board established art 
fund: BART’s Board of Directors 
established ongoing funding 
for art programs by allocating 
a small percentage of the 
construction costs of certain 
capital improvement projects and 
$200,000 of operating monies per 
year to support maintenance of 
the art collection and temporary 
programming. With this investment, 
customers can expect a higher 
quality station experience through 
visual and performing arts. 


• New escalator canopies opened: 
We opened three new canopies 
this fall at Powell, Civic Center 
and Downtown Berkeley Stations, 
which also got a brand-new plaza. 
Measure RR funded contracts will 
be awarded early next year to build 
more canopies above the remaining 
22 entrances for the four downtown 
San Francisco stations and to 
replace 40 escalators at those 
stations. The canopies include a 
grille that locks at the street level, 
protecting the escalators during 
the overnight hours. Since the 19th 
Street Station pilot canopy project 
was completed in 2015, escalator 
downtime at that entrance has 
dropped by about 30 percent. We 
anticipate similar improvement in 
San Francisco. 


AVG. CUSTOMER RATING FOR TRAIN 
INTERIOR CLEANLINESS


4.41


3.65
CY 2018


CY 2010
CY 2012


4.49


AVERAGE NUMBER OF TRAIN CARS IN THE 
WESTBOUND A.M. TRANSBAY TUBE 6-10 AM


666
FY 2009


FY 2010


655


721
FY 2018


Customer Experience Strategic Indicators
Highest value Lowest value







9 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


30 NEW FLEET OF THE FUTURE 
TRAIN CARS ARE NOW IN SERVICE, 
OFFERING COOLER, QUIETER, 
AND CLEANER RIDES TO BART 
CUSTOMERS. 







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT10


CUSTOMER CLEANLINESS RATINGS


62%


33%


44%


56%


68%


43%


56%
62%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


Cleanliness of
Station Platform


Restroom
Cleanliness


Elevator
Cleanliness


Train Interior
Cleanliness


FY18 Q1 FY19 Q1


PERFORMANCE TREND SPOTLIGHT  
CUSTOMER CLEANLINESS RATINGS
Responding to customer concerns about cleanliness, we 
implemented a new approach to cleaning stations, including 
establishing new standards, implementing more rigorous cleaner 
training programs, and conducting daily inspections. Customer 
ratings for platform, elevator, and train interior cleanliness have 
begun trending upwards since the program was implemented. 


P
er


ce
nt


 S
at


is
fi


ed


Source:  BART Passenger Environment Survey. This survey 
is performed on a rolling basis, while BART’s Customer 
Satisfaction Survey is performed every 2 years.







11 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


THE NEW BART MOBILE APP 
OFFERS REAL TIME DEPARTURES 
AND TRIP PLANNING, WITH MORE 
FEATURES ON THE WAY 







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT12


SAFETY
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 


• Safety and security action plan 
approved: BART’s Board of Directors 
approved phased implementation 
of a new Safety and Security Action 
Plan that will boost enforcement and 
increase public safety outreach over the 
next five years. The plan also includes 
investing an estimated $17.5 million 
to install emergency call boxes with a 
direct line to police dispatch on every 
platform and expand and improve 
BART’s robust network of surveillance 
cameras. BART’s new Surveillance 
Technology Ordinance requires public 
disclosure of how BART will use data 
collected by the cameras.


• Safety grant received: In September 
2018, the Department of Homeland 
Security awarded BART $6.8 million 
in Transit Security Grant Program 
(TSGP) funding. The grant will pay 
for continued police patrols on 
trains travelling through BART’s 
busiest stations, interoperable radio 
communications systems and for 
upgraded security cameras at Powell 
St., Civic Center and 16th St. Stations.


• New BART Police Contract to boost 
officer retention and recruitment: The 
BART Board of Directors agreed to 
a labor package that brings officers’ 
salaries closer to the Bay Area average, 
making BART employment more 
attractive to the shrinking pool of 
qualified applicants. An important 
provision of the agreement allows BPD 
to hire outside contractors to assist 
with background checks for officer 
candidates, which will reduce the 
length of time it takes to complete a 
full background check for prospective 
officers while maintaining the 
department’s stringent hiring standards.


Safety Strategic Indicators


CRIMES AGAINST PERSONS ON THE 
BART SYSTEM PER MILLION RIDERS


2.3


1.5


3.5
FY 2018


FY 2010


FY 2009


SAFETY INCIDENTS PER MILLION PATRONS


1.85
FY 2018


5.2
FY 2009 FY 2014


6.2


EMPLOYEE INJURIES


10


15.8


FY 2015


FY 2013


10.8
FY 2018


11.2
FY 2009


Highest value Lowest value







13 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


BART’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVED A SAFETY AND 
SECURITY PLAN THAT WILL 
EXPAND ENFORCEMENT PRESENCE, 
ENHANCE BART’S ROBUST 
NETWORK OF SURVEILLANCE 
CAMERAS, AND INCREASE PUBLIC 
SAFETY OUTREACH. 







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT14


CLEANING UP BART 
2018 BY THE NUMBERS
BART’s Quality of Life initiative aims to improve safety & cleanliness on the BART system 
through a four-pronged strategy: fare evasion prevention, refocus on cleaning, enhanced 
safety and security, and homeless outreach. 


Homeless 
Outreach


Refocus on 
cleaning


Fare evasion 
enforcement & 


prevention


Safety and 
Security


• 2,517 fare evasion  
   citations 


• 6,101 Proof of   
   payment citations


• 7 alarmed service  
   gates


• 2 elevators enclosed
 
• 4 stations with          
   raised railings 


• 24 Police O�cers  
   hired 


• 8 Community   
   Service O�cers   
   hired


• 8 Additional fare   
   inspectors 
   approved for hire 


• 703 homeless   
   contacts 
  
• 537 referrals of   
   homeless to 
   services


• 66 referrals to the  
   Law Enforcement  
   Alternative   
   Diversion program


• 80,000 uses of pit  
   stop toilets near   
   downtown stations 


• Station cleaner   
   positions increased  
   to 148 


• New in-depth   
   32-hour certification  
   program created
 
• 60% of cleaners   
  completed    
  certification; 100%  
  completion expected  
  by spring 2019


Notes: Fare evasion and proof of payment citation data is through November 2018.  Homeless contacts and referrals reflect data Nov 2017-Oct 
2018. Pit stop toilets usage data reflects Jan-Oct 2018. About 16% of pit stop users are BART riders. 







15 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


WORKFORCE
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS:


• Expanded police hiring: In our 
continued efforts to increase police 
presence on the system, we hired 24 
police officers, breaking the record for 
police hiring set in 2017. The Board of 
Directors also recently voted to allow 
hiring of 8 additional fare inspectors 
and expansion of Proof of Payment 
enforcement teams to nights and 
weekends.


• New training program helps cleaners 
shine up their skills: To address 
customer concerns around cleanliness, 
we implemented more rigorous training 
for new cleaning staff that includes 32 
hours of training time and certification 
from the Cleaning Management 
Institute, an internationally recognized 
association dedicated to high industry 
standards. 


• Program to develop new workers for 
hard-to-fill positions shows results: 
Responding to a shortage of qualified 
workers for technical BART positions, 
we initiated the Transit Career Ladders 
Training Program, which develops 
college students for careers at BART, 
in 2016. As of early December 2018, 
we had offered, promoted, or hired 
35 individuals from the program, the 
majority in hard-to-fill positions. 


• BART Leadership Academy launched: 
We launched a new Leadership 
Academy in partnership with the 
Mineta Transportation Institute that 
prepares mid-level managers for future 
leadership positions at BART. With 
a large share of BART’s workforce 
expected to retire in the next few years, 
this program will help ensure a smooth 
transition to the next generation of 
BART management. 


Workforce Strategic Indicators


TURNOVER RATE OF EMPLOYEES 
HIRED TO CRITICAL POSITIONS


7%


6%


10%
FY 2018


FY 2017


FY 2013


% JOB GROUPS IN WHICH PLACEMENT 
GOALS FOR MINORITIES HAVE BEEN MET


71%
CY 2016


14%
CY 2018


% JOB GROUPS IN WHICH PLACEMENT 
GOALS FOR FEMALES HAVE BEEN MET


11%
CY 2016 CY 2018


11%
22%


CY 2017


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT16


NEW CLEANING HIRES NOW 
RECEIVE MORE ROBUST TRAINING 
INCLUDING 32 HOURS OF 
INSTRUCTION AND CERTIFICATION 
FROM THE CLEANING 
MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE 







17 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


FINANCIAL STABILITY
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS:


• Ramped-up efforts to fight fare 
evasion: In Fiscal Year 2018, we 
alarmed service gates at seven 
stations, enclosed elevators at two 
stations, and raised railings at four 
stations. Early in 2018, we initiated 
a proof-of-payment program and 
began issuing citations. As of fall 
2018, more than 6,000 citations 
had been issued. 


• Growth in Clipper use delivers 
efficiencies: Clipper use grew 
from 69 to 83 percent of BART 
trips between November 2017 
and November 2018 after a 
new surcharge for magnetic 
stripe tickets was implemented. 
This is reducing the time staff 
spend maintaining old faregate 
components and processing cash 
payments, allowing time to be 
spent on higher priority efforts. 
We are developing strategies to 
reach 100% Clipper penetration in 
the future, which will create further 
efficiencies. 


• Strategic hiring freeze helps 
control costs: In 2016, BART 
management created a hiring 
review panel as a way to control 
costs. The panel has focused 
on hiring for the most essential 
positions, approving a limited 
number of new hires and only 
strategic replacement of vacated 
positions. 


Financial Stability Strategic Indicators


OPERATING COST PER PASSENGER MILE


$0.36


$0.33


$0.39


FY 2009


FY 2011


FY 2018


% OPERATING COSTS COVERED BY FARES


60%


FY 2009


FY 2015


76%


66.6%


FY 2018


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT18


• Inventory efficiency process kicks 
off: We initiated a review of the 
agency’s inventory system to help 
increase the financial performance 
of our inventory investments. The 
goal is to improve our process 
by increasing the efficiency of 
inventory use, providing quicker 
response to changes in demand, 
and shorter order-to-delivery cycle 
times.


• New advertising contract 
awarded: We negotiated a new 
advertising contract that provides 
BART with a one-time signing 
bonus of $10 million and $150 
million in base payments over the 
next 10.75 years. It also provides 
$25 million in capital investment 
for digital ad screens that are 
forecasted to increase revenue to 
BART by an additional $112 million 
over the life of the contract. These 
revenues will help underwrite BART 
services to the public.


• Office of Performance & Audit 
created: During 2018, the 
General Manager created a new 
Performance Innovation division 
that is responsible for promoting 
and advancing efficiency, 
effectiveness, and economy 
through continuously monitoring, 
managing and improving business 
performance throughout BART. 


Financial Stability Strategic Indicators


$ MILLIONS IN UNFUNDED 
PENSION LIABILITY 


$515
FY 2018$497


FY 2015


$401


FY 2017


$ MILLIONS UNFUNDED RETIREE 
MEDICAL LIABILITY


$111


FY 2017


$300
FY 2018


$132
FY 2015


Highest value Lowest value







19 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


CLIPPER USE GREW FROM 69 TO 
83 PERCENT OF BART TRIPS OVER 
THE LAST YEAR, REDUCING THE 
TIME STAFF SPEND MAINTAINING 
OLD FAREGATE COMPONENTS AND 
PROCESSING CASH PAYMENTS 


Source: Noah Berger, MTC







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT20


ECONOMY
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS:


• BART extension to Antioch opens: 
BART to Antioch opened in May 
2018, and the Antioch Station, one 
of two new stations, has already 
exceed initial ridership projections 
with 3,050 daily weekday riders. 
Responding to high parking 
demand, we increased the number 
of available spaces by about 
35 through restriping, and have 
identified funding to almost double 
the amount of parking spaces 
(to about 1,800) and implement 
additional access improvements by 
fall 2020. 


• Transit Oriented Development 
Program advances: Eight transit-
oriented development projects 
at seven stations were under 
construction in 2018, totaling 1,800 
new housing units and 450,000 
square feet of commercial space. 
Six additional projects advanced 
through the planning process, and 
developer solicitations were issued 
for two others. Highlights include:


 » Richmond Business Hub 
groundbreaking: Developers 
broke ground on 10,000 
square feet of commercial 
space on BART property at 
the Richmond Station. The 
development, which will house 
a local business incubator and 
eateries, is part of a plan to 
revitalize Downtown Richmond. 


Economy Strategic Indicators


292


569


37
133


2016- 
2018


2015- 
2017


2007-
2009


2009-
2011


AVG. ANNUAL # HOUSING UNITS 
APPROVED FOR DEVELOPMENT ON BART 
PROPERTY (3-YEAR ROLLING AVERAGE)


13k
0k


65k
2016- 
2018


2011- 
2013


2007-
2009


AVG ANNUAL COMMERICAL SQUARE 
FOOTAGE APPROVED FOR DEVELOPMENT 
ON BART PROPERTY (3-YEAR ROLLING 
AVERAGE)


357k


433k


335k


414k


FY 2009


FY 2018


FY 2010


FY 2016


AVERAGE WEEKDAY RIDERSHIP


Highest value Lowest value







21 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


Economy Strategic Indicators


313k
300k 303k


359k


FY 2015


FY 2009
FY 2018


FY 2011


AVERAGE WEEKEND RIDERSHIP


See data book


DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
GOAL


 » MacArthur Station area 
development: Developers broke 
ground on one project (the 
MacArthur Station Residences, 
including 402 residential units 
and 10,000 square feet of 
retail) and neared completion 
of another (MacArthur 
Commons, consisting of 383 
residential units and 24,500 
square feet of retail). Work 
also began on a major upgrade 
to the station plaza, which 
will include improved seating, 
lighting, and bicycle parking. 


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT22


THE BART TO ANTIOCH 
EXTENSION OPENED IN MAY, 2018 
QUICKLY EXCEEDING RIDERSHIP 
PROJECTIONS







23 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


DEVELOPERS BROKE 
GROUND ON THE 
MACARTHUR STATION 
RESIDENCES, THE FIRST 
RESIDENTIAL HIGH-RISE 
TOWER ON FORMER 
BART PROPERTY. 







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT24


EQUITY
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS:


• Homeless outreach program 
expands: Since late 2017, BART, 
Muni, and the City of San Francisco 
have funded two full time homeless 
outreach team (HOT) employees 
focused on Powell and Civic 
Center Stations. The team has 
since engaged with 703 homeless 
individuals and provided 537 
referrals to homeless services. The 
BART Board of Directors voted to 
expand the program beginning in 
2019 to additional San Francisco 
stations and the East Bay through 
a partnership with Contra Costa 
County. 


• BART wins equity trailblazer 
award: BART received an Equity 
Trailblazer award from Equality 
California in recognition of its 
inclusion of the LGBT Business 
Enterprise community through 
policies such as the expansion 
of the small business program 
to add LGBTBE ownership as a 
bidding preference to qualified 
small businesses seeking work on 
BART contracts. BART’s Police 
Department also broke ground by 
becoming one of the first in public 
transportation to establish a policy 
for interactions with transgender 
people.


• Affordable housing plan for Lake 
Merritt approved: BART’s Board 
of Directors approved a team of 
developers (the East Bay Asian 
Local Development Corporation 
and the Strada Investment Group) 
to begin planning to bring up 
to 500 new housing units and 
500,000 square feet of retail to 
the Lake Merritt Station. The team’s 


Economy Strategic Indicators


1.0
CY 2018


RATIO OF LOW INCOME RIDERSHIP TO 
LOW INCOME RESIDENTS IN THE REGION


1.2
CY 2012


1.0
CY 2018


RATIO OF MINORITY RIDERSHIP TO 
MINORITY RESIDENTS IN THE REGION 


1.1
CY 2010


Highest value Lowest value







25 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


strong proposals for affordable 
housing inclusion (44% of units), 
small business participation 
(35%), and robust community 
engagement helped them win out 
over other teams. 


• Committed nearly $100 million 
in funding to small businesses 
through Measure RR since program 
inception, accounting for more 
than a third of total Measure RR 
commitments. We also completed 
59 small business outreach events 
and processed 55 applications 
where firms seek to participate as 
Local Small Businesses on Measure 
RR contracts.


• Increased youth ridership after 
expansion of youth discount 
program. Since the new 50 percent 
youth discount took effect in 
January 2018, more than 32,000 
free youth Clipper cards were 
distributed, up 38 percent from the 
prior year, and Clipper youth trips 
increased by 260 percent. 


Economy Strategic Indicators


4.8
CY 2018


CUSTOMER RATING FOR DISABLED 
ACCESS (1-7 SCALE)


5.3
CY 2010


31%
CY 2017


% OF HOUSING UNITS ON BART PROPERTY 
THAT ARE AFFORDABLE


23%
CY 2009


18%


CY 2015


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT26


BART WON THE EQUITY 
TRAILBLAZER AWARD FROM 
EQUITY CALIFORNIA FOR 
CHAMPIONING LGBTQ EQUALITY







27 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


ENVIRONMENT
LAST YEAR’S ACCOMPLISHMENTS:


• BART’s greenhouse gas emissions 
reduced: BART has always been a 
low-carbon form of transport, but now 
riding on BART is greener than ever. 
By transitioning our power purchases 
to low-carbon sources, we reduced 
our greenhouse gas emissions per 
revenue vehicle mile by 90% between 
2013 and 2017. BART’s electric power 
currently comes from 96 percent low 
carbon sources, and BART produces 
more than 20 times fewer greenhouse 
gases per person-mile of travel than do 
passenger cars and light trucks in the 
BART-served counties. 


• On site solar comes to Antioch and 
Lafayette Stations: We opened 1 
megawatt of solar power facilities 
atop carports at both Lafayette and 
Antioch Stations, each enough to 
power 200 homes for a year. These 
projects support BART’s commitment 
to achieving 100% renewable energy by 
2045. 


• Bikeshare expands across BART: 
Ford GoBikes are now available at 
nearly all San Francisco, Oakland and 
Berkeley Stations. About a quarter of 
all Ford GoBike trips in the region, or 
approximately 45,000 trips a month, 
either start or end at a BART Station. 


• New bike stations open in Downtown 
Berkeley and Pleasant Hill. 
Responding to high demand for bicycle 
parking, we opened new bicycle 
stations in downtown Berkeley and 
Pleasant Hill, both of which feature 
secure indoor bicycle parking as well as 
a bicycle retail shop and maintenance 
services. Pleasant Hill’s station is the 
first of its kind in Contra Costa County.


Environment Strategic Indicators


96%
CY 2017


% ELECTRICITY FROM LOW AND ZERO 
CARBON SOURCES


30%
CY 2015


232
CY 2017


GHG GENERATED BY BART 
(MT CO2E)/MILLION REVENUE 
VEHICLE MILES


2,372
CY 2013


44%


35%
CY 2008


CY 2015


% RIDERS ACCESSING BART BY 
WALKING AND BICYCLING


Highest value Lowest value







STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: PROGRESS REPORT28


WE OPENED 1 MEGAWATT OF 
SOLAR POWER FACILITIES ATOP 
CARPORTS AT BOTH LAFAYETTE 
AND ANTIOCH STATIONS, EACH 
ENOUGH TO POWER 200 HOMES 
FOR A YEAR.   







29 BART ANNUAL REPORT | 2018


WE OPENED THE PLEASANT HILL 
BIKE STATION, THE FIRST OF ITS 
KIND IN CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 







FREMONT


OAKLAND


HAYWARD


CONCORD


RICHMOND


SAN 
FRANCISCO


DANVILLE


PLEASANTON


ORINDA


MILPITAS


NEWARK


UNION CITY


LAFAYETTE


PACIFICA


DUBLIN


MARTINEZ


BERKELEY


WOODSIDE


SAN LEANDRO


ALAMEDA


PINOLE


CLAYTON


SAN BRUNO


WALNUT CREEK


SAN MATEO


REDWOOD CITY


SAN RAMON


DALY CITY


MENLO PARK


HERCULES


MORAGA TOWN


ATHERTON


BELMONT


PLEASANT HILL


SAN 
CARLOS


HILLSBOROUGH


MILL VALLEY


HALF MOON BAY


SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO


MILLBRAE


BRISBANE


EL CERRITO


TIBURON


BURLINGAME


FOSTER CITY


COLMA


ALBANY


CORTE MADERA


SAUSALITO


EAST PALO ALTO


PIEDMONT


EMERYVILLE


BENICIA


BELVEDERE







STRATEGIC 
INDICATORS 
DATA BOOK
2019







2


SP1: Source:BART Operations (Integrated Control System & Data Acquisition System)


SP2: Source:  BART Operations (Maximo maintenance database)


SP3: Source:  BART Operations (Maximo maintenance database)


SP4: Source:  BART Operations (Maximo maintenance database)


EX1: Source:  BART Bi-Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey.  Includes % of customers who are very and somewhat satisfied with BART overall. 


EX2: Source:  BART Bi-Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey. Based on 1-7 rating, where 7 is best. 


EX3: Source:  BART Bi-Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey. Based on 1-7 rating, where 7 is best.


EX4: Source: BART Operations Planning. Reflects the average number of vehicles over the fiscal year operating in the Westbound Transbay tube on weekdays 6 am  - 10 am. 


SA1: Source: BART Police Department.  Includes homicide, rape, robbery, and aggravated assault.


SA2: Source: BART System Safety.  Includes safety incidents occurring in and around trains and stations.  Examples include a patron slipping/falling or 
being struck by a train door while boarding.  


SA3: Source: BART System Safety.  Defined as the number of OSHA Recordable Illnesses/Injuries. 


INDICATOR FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


Provide reliable service 


SP1 Daily customer on-time 
performance 95.0% 95.7% 94.6% 95.7% 94.9% 94.5% 91.8% 91.5% 89.2% 92.4%


Provide reliable station equipment


SP2 Station elevators in service 99.1% 98.5% 98.7% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 98.6% 98.5% 98.6% 98.3%


SP3 Street escalators in service 97.7% 96.6% 93.7% 86.2% 89.6% 92.2% 91.3% 89.5% 87.6% 88.7%


SP4 Platform escalators in service 98.8% 98.0% 96.4% 93.8% 94.8% 95.6% 95.8% 95.3% 96.0% 95.7%


INDICATOR CY09 CY10 CY11 CY12 CY13 CY14 CY15 CY16 CY17 CY18


Increase customer satisfaction 


EX1 % of customers who are satisfied 82% 84% 74% 69% 56%


Provide clean stations and trains


EX2 Avg. customer rating for station 
cleanliness 4.58 4.46 4.11 3.93 3.57


EX3 Avg. customer rating for train 
interior cleanliness 4.41 4.49 4.28 4.25 3.65


Increase peak capacity to address 
crowding FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


EX4
Average number of train cars in 
the Westbound A.M. Transbay 
Tube 6-10 am


666 655 665 668 670 668 670 703 721 721


INDICATOR FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


Reduce crimes


SA1 Crimes against persons on the 
BART system per million riders 2.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.8 2.7 3.5


Ensure patron safety 


SA2 Safety incidents per million 
patrons 5.24 5.25 5.04 4.83 6.08 6.24 5.07 5.35 2.31 1.85


Ensure employee safety 


SA3 Employee injuries 11.2 12.9 14.8 15.3 15.8 14.9 10.0 12.2 10.8 10.8


SYSTEM PERFORMANCE  
Goal: Optimize and maintain system performance 


EXPERIENCE  
Goal: Engage the public and provide a quality customer experience 


SAFETY 
Goal: Evolve to a premier safety culture for our workers, riders, and the public 







3BART ANNUAL REPORT: STRATEGIC INDICATORS DATA BOOK | 2018


WF1: Source: BART Employee Relations/PeopleSoft Database.  Critical positions includes electrician, elevator/escalator worker, train controller, train control electronic technician, transit vehicle 
electronic technician, and police officer      


WF2: Source: BART Office of Civil Rights. Effective 2016, BART established seven placement goals to be used over a four-year period (2016-2019) based on the availability of minorities in the labor 
market for each job group, and reports progress towards these goals to the Federal Transit Administration.        


WF3: Source: BART Office of Civil Rights. Effective 2016, BART established nine placement goals to be used over a four-year period (2016-2019) based on the availability of females in the labor 
market for each job group, and reports progress towards these goals to the Federal Transit Administration.


FS1: Source: BART Financial Planning.  Calculated by dividing total BART operating costs by total mileage traveled by all passengers during the year.  Not inflation adjusted. 


FS2: Source:  BART Financial Planning. Represents the percentage of operating expenses covered by fares. 


FS3: Source: Actuarial (CalPERS) Pension reports via BART Budget Department. Combines CalPERS Pension valuations for miscellaneous and safety. FY18 budget data based on 6/30/15 actuarial 
valuation for FY18, FY17 budget data based on 6/30/14 valuation for FY17, FY16 based on 6/30/13 valuation for FY16, etc.     


FS4: Source: Actuarial (Bartel) OPEB reports via BART Budget Department. FY18 budget data based on 6/30/16 actuarial valuation for FY18, FY17 budget data based on 6/30/15 valuation for FY17, 
FY16 based on 6/30/14 valuation for FY16, etc.         


INDICATOR FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


Retain Staff in Critical Positions


WF1 Turnover rate of employees hired to 
critical positions 7% 6% 6% 7% 6% 10%


Ensure Employee Diversity CY16 CY17 CY18


WF2 % Job groups in which placement 
goals for minorities have been met 71% 29% 14%


WF3 % of Job groups in which placement 
goals for females have been met 11% 22% 11%


INDICATOR FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


Increase efficiency 


FS1-A Operating cost per passenger 
mile  $0.36  $0.35  $0.33  $0.33  $0.33  $0.33  $0.33  $0.34 $0.365 $0.388 


FS1-B % Change from previous year 7% -1% -6% 1% 0% 0% -2% 4% 7% 6%


Stabilize operating revenues


FS2 % Operating costs covered by 
fares 60.1% 64.8% 69.9% 69.4% 71.8% 72.9% 75.6% 74.4% 70.4% 66.6%


Fund post-employment benefits


FS3 $ Millions in unfunded pension 
liability  $497  $439  $401  $515 


FS4 $ Millions unfunded retiree 
medical liability  $132  $129  $111  $300 


WORKFORCE  
Goal: Invest in our current and future employees’ development, wellness, and diversity


FINANCIAL STABILITY  
Goal: Ensure BART’s revenues and investments support a sustainable  
and resilient system







4


EQ1: Source Data: Customer Satisfaction Survey and the American Community Survey 1-year estimates for Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, and San Mateo Counties.  Low income is defined as 
being under 200% of federal poverty level taking into account household size.           


EQ2: Source Data: Customer Satisfaction Survey and the American Community Survey 1-year estimates for Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, and San Mateo Counties.    


EQ3: Source: BART Biennial Customer Satisfaction Survey.  Rating is on a 1-7 scale, where 7 is best.  


EQ4: Source:  BART Real Estate Property Development Program 


INDICATOR CY09 CY10 CY11 CY12 CY13 CY14 CY15 CY16 CY17 CY18


Maintain Rider Diversity 


EQ1 Ratio of low income ridership to 
low income residents in the region 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0


EQ2 Ratio of minority ridership to 
minority residents in the region 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0


Serve Riders of Different Abilities


EQ3 Customer rating for disabled 
access (1-7 scale) 5.3 5.3 5.1 5.0 4.8


Support Affordable Housing 


EQ4 % of Housing units on BART 
property that are affordable 23% 23% 18% 18% 31%


EC1: Source: BART Real Estate and Property Development Department. Reflects the three-year rolling average of residential units approved for lease or sale on BART property by the BART Board of 
Directors.           


EC2: Source: BART Real Estate and Property Development Department. Reflects the three-year rolling average of commerical square footage approved for lease or sale on BART property by the 
BART Board of Directors.           


EC3: Source: BART fare gate data.           


EC4: Source: BART fare gate data. Combines average Saturday and average Sunday ridership.  


EC5: Source: BART Office of Civil Rights.  BART sets a goal for the percentage of federal funds allocated to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.  The goal varies based on the availability of DBE’s in 
the market area and other factors, and is asssessed over a multi-year period.  The last goal was set for federal fiscal years 2014-2016, and the current goal (17%) applies to federal fiscal years 2017-
2019.  The federal fiscal year runs from Oct 1st - Sept 30th.         


INDICATOR 2007-
2009


2008-
2010


2009-
2011


2010-
2012


2011-
2013


2012-
2014


2013-
2015


2014-
2016


2015-
2017


2016-
2018


Expand Access to BART


EC1


Avg annual # housing units 
approved for development on 
BART property (3-year rolling 
average)


292 451 569 276 118 199 235 235 37 133


EC2


Avg annual commerical 
square footage approved for 
development on BART property 
(3-year rolling average)


13,033 17,033 17,033 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 65,000


Increase BART ridership FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


EC3 Average weekday ridership 356,700 335,000 345,300 366,600 392,300 399,100 423,100 433,400 423,400 414,200


EC4 Average weekend ridership 312,900 300,400 299,800 328,800 351,100 353,900 359,100 345,200 321,700 303,200


Support Small Businesses 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


EC5 Meet disadvantaged business 
enterprise goal


Met Not Met Met Met Met


ECONOMY  
Goal: Contribute to the region’s economy and create economic opportunities


EQUITY  
Goal: Provide equitable delivery of transit services, policies, and programs







5BART ANNUAL REPORT: STRATEGIC INDICATORS DATA BOOK | 2018


EN1: Source:  Northern California Power Agency.  Targets are from the Board-Adopted Wholesale Electricity Portfolio Policy (April 27, 2017).  


EN2: Source:  BART Sustainability Group. BART conducts its greenhouse gas inventory in accordance with protocols developed by the Climate Registry and Recommended by the American Public 
Transit Association.  The inventory includes all GHGs generated from BART operations and maintenance.         


EN3: Source:  BART Station Profile Survey, which BART completes every 5-7 years.  In, 2008, 35% of riders addressed BART by biking and walking.


INDICATOR CY09 CY10 CY11 CY12 CY13 CY14 CY15 CY16 CY17 CY18


Secure Energy from Sustainable Sources


EN1 % Electricity from low and zero 
carbon sources 30% 30% 96%


Reduce Greenhouse Gases Generated by BART


EN2
GHG generated by BART (MT 
Co2e)/Million Revenue Vehicle 
Miles


 2,372  2,339  1,890  1,643  232 


Offer Sustainable Access Choices 


EN3 % Riders accessing BART by 
walking and bicycling 44%


ENVIRONMENT  
Goal: Advance regional sustainability and public health outcomes





		BART Annual Report 2019_WEB

		Strategic Indicators 2019_v6






 
 
 


i 


 


 


 


BART Fare Structure Report 


January 2019 


 


  







 
 
 


ii 


 


 


 


Contents 
1 BART FARE STRUCTURE ............................................................................................... 1-1 


THE BART ACT:  RATES AND CHARGES................................................................................... 1-1 


BART FARE COMPONENTS AND CALCULATION .................................................................... 1-1 


EXCEPTIONS TO THE DISTANCE-BASED STRUCTURE ............................................................. 1-5 


DISCOUNTED FARES .............................................................................................................. 1-7 


TRANSFERS BETWEEN BART AND BUSES ............................................................................ 1-10 


CLIPPER ............................................................................................................................... 1-11 


RIDERSHIP AND REVENUE GENERATED BY EXISTING FARE STRUCTURE ............................. 1-13 


PRODUCTIVITY-ADJUSTED INFLATION-BASED FARE INCREASE PROGRAM ........................ 1-16 


2 FARE PROGRAMS UNDERWAY OR UNDER STUDY ......................................................... 2-1 


MTC REGIONAL MEANS-BASED TRANSIT FARE DISCOUNT PILOT PROGRAM ....................... 2-1 


ALAMEDA CTC STUDENT PASS PILOT PROGRAM .................................................................. 2-2 


ADDITIONAL HIGHER EDUCATION DISCOUNT PROGRAM SCHOOLS .................................... 2-4 


WEEKEND RIDERSHIP INCENTIVES ........................................................................................ 2-5 


DISCOUNTED GROUP TRAVEL TO AIRPORTS ......................................................................... 2-5 


3 FARE STRUCTURES AT LOCAL AND PEER AGENCIES ....................................................... 3-1 


LOCAL AGENCIES ................................................................................................................... 3-1 


PEER AGENCIES ..................................................................................................................... 3-7 


4 FARE-RELATED BART POLICIES: FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY AND FARE POLICY ............ 4-1 


FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY ................................................................................................ 4-1 


FARE POLICY .......................................................................................................................... 4-2 


 


Appendix A. BART Act Rates and Charges Section 


Appendix B. BART Financial Stability Policy 


Appendix C. BART Fare Policy 


 


 


 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-1 


 


This report provides information on BART’s fare structure; the Clipper smart card; fare 


programs currently underway or under study; fares and policies of local and peer 


agencies; and BART’s fare-related policies, the Financial Stability Policy and Fare 


Policy. 


 


1 BART FARE STRUCTURE 
 


THE BART ACT:  RATES AND CHARGES 
In 1957, the California State Legislature with the BART Act created the District to 


provide regional rapid transit service.  The BART Act states that rates and charges for 


such service shall be “reasonable” and “insofar as practicable” fixed to generate revenue 


to pay the District’s operating expenses; provide for maintenance; and provide for the 


acquisition of rolling stock.  After these purposes have been met, the Board may use fare 


revenue for other purposes.  See Appendix A for the full text of the BART Act section on 


rates and charges. 


 


Significant fare revenue would be needed to meet the BART Act’s direction to pay for 


operating expenses.  It was determined that a distance-based fare structure would 


generate sufficient revenue and reflect generally the value of a trip on BART for the 


consumer, with perceived value being related to distance traveled, speed, and geographic 


and transportation obstacles avoided (i.e., the San Francisco Bay). 


 


BART’s fare structure also reflects the fact that BART was one of the first rapid transit 


systems to use automated fare collection (AFC) equipment.  AFC vending machines 


accurately track and process value that is loaded on the regional Clipper smart card as 


well as sales of BART magnetically encoded stored-value tickets (mag-stripe tickets).  


BART exit fare gates extract data on collected fares and system use (e.g., ridership by 


origin-destination, by fare type, and by time of day).  This capability has allowed BART 


to implement a graduated distance-based fare structure.  Less-automated transit systems 


use a fare system that is either zone-based to represent distance traveled or flat. 


 


BART FARE COMPONENTS AND CALCULATION 
BART’s fares are calculated based on distance traveled, with surcharges applied to 


certain trips, adjusted by a speed differential.  These components, however, are not 


visible to the rider, who pays their sum rounded to the nearest nickel. 


 


The fares cited in this report are Clipper fares that took effect January 1, 2018, and 


ridership is for Fiscal Year 2018 (July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018), unless otherwise 


noted. Also effective January 1, 2018, blue mag-stripe ticket fares are 50 cents more per 


trip than the Clipper fare; the mag-stripe surcharge is prorated for discounted tickets so 


that seniors and people with disabilities pay 19 cents and youth pay 25 cents. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-2 


 


For example, the fare for the trip from Hayward to Montgomery is made up of the 


following components: 


 
Fare Component Value 


Distance-based (21.2 miles) $3.87 


Speed differential (2.5 minutes faster than average) $0.14 


Transbay surcharge $1.00 


Capital surcharge $0.13 


Total $5.14 


Clipper fare the rider pays, rounded to the nearest nickel $5.15 


  


Mag-stripe ticket fare the rider pays $5.65 


 
BART’s DISTANCE-BASED FORMULA 
BART’s minimum fare for a trip of six miles or less is $2.00.  Medium-length trips are 


between 6 and 14 miles and have a distance-based charge of $2.05, with 15.0¢ charged 


for any additional miles over six.  The distance-based charge for a long trip (over 14 


miles) is $3.22, with 9.0¢ charged for each mile over 14. 


 


Trip 
Distance 
(in miles) Minimum Fare 


Per Mile  
Additional Charge 


Minimum Fare 6 or less $2.00 -- 


Medium 6-14 $2.05 15.0¢ per mile over 6 


Long 14+ $3.22 9.0¢ per mile over 14 


  


For example, the distance-based portion of the fare for an 11-mile trip is $2.80 ($2.05 


plus 15.0¢ x 5 miles). 


 


SURCHARGES 


Transbay Surcharge 
The Transbay surcharge was initiated to provide competitive fares relative to the Bay 


Bridge toll, to acknowledge the value BART provides in travel time saved in the 


congested Bay Bridge corridor, and to reflect the high cost of establishing service through 


the Transbay tube. 


 


The Transbay surcharge is $1.00.  To cross the bay by auto, effective January 1, 2019, the 


Bay Bridge toll during the week is $7.00 in the peak (5am to 10am and 3pm to 7pm) and 


$5.00 in the off-peak, and on weekends the toll is $6.00.  A round-trip fare on BART 


using the Transbay tube includes two Transbay surcharges, or $2.00, 71% less than the 


weekday peak period bridge toll exaction.  For 1975 to the present, the chart on the next 


page shows the values of the Bay Bridge toll and the round-trip Transbay surcharge (the 


value of the Transbay surcharge increases at the same time and by the same amount as 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-3 


 


BART’s systemwide fare increases).  As a comparison, the value of the Transbay 


surcharge if it had been increased by inflation alone is also shown.  


 


 
 


Daly City Surcharge 
The Daly City surcharge has been in place since the Daly City station opened.  Its 


purpose is to offset the absence of San Mateo County sales tax and property tax 


supporting BART service, since San Mateo County is not part of the District. 


The Daly City surcharge is $1.15.  It is applied to trips between Daly City and San 


Francisco BART stations, but not to trips that cross the bay.  The fares for those trips 


include the Transbay surcharge only.  Revenue from the Daly City surcharge goes into 


BART’s general fund to pay for operating expenses.   


 


San Mateo County Surcharge 
The San Mateo County surcharge was implemented when the SFO Extension opened in 


2003 and is currently valued at $1.44.  The surcharge is applied to: 


▪ Trips between San Mateo County stations (except the trip between SFO and Millbrae 


Stations, for which only the SFIA Premium Fare is charged). 


▪ Trips between San Mateo County stations (except Daly City) and San Francisco  


stations.   


 


Revenue from the surcharge goes to offset the cost of operating the SFO Extension. 


$0


$1


$2


$3


$4


$5


$6


$7


$8


19
75


19
76


19
77


19
78


19
79


19
80


19
81


19
82


19
83


19
84


19
85


19
86


19
87


19
88


19
89


19
90


19
91


19
92


19
93


19
94


19
95


19
96


19
97


19
98


19
99


20
00


20
01


20
02


20
03


20
04


20
05


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14


20
15


20
16


20
17


20
18


20
19


TB Surcharge increased by inflation Transbay Surcharge (roundtrip)


Bay Bridge Toll







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-4 


 


 


Capital Surcharge 
In 2005, the Board approved a capital surcharge to fund capital projects within the three-


county BART District, including Daly City.  The current value of the surcharge is $0.13. 


 


SFIA Premium Fare 
The SFIA Premium Fare of $4.54 is charged for trips between the SFIA station and all 


other BART stations.  This fare revenue originally funded debt issued in 2002 to fund 


construction of the SFO Extension.  In 2012, the remaining debt was “rolled into” 


BART’s sales tax-backed debt, for which the District receives a better interest rate.  SFIA 


Premium Fare revenue now goes into BART’s general fund. 


 


BART offers discount fares to SFO Airline employees and SFO Airport-badged 


employees, as described in the Discounted Fares section of this chapter.   


 


BART-to-Oakland International Airport Project Fare 
The 3.2-mile BART-to-Oakland International Airport (OAK) Project opened in 


November 2014 and provides service between Coliseum station and the Oakland 


International Airport station.  There are two additive elements to the fare for service to or 


from a BART station and the Oakland International Airport, the Base Fare for service 


between the Coliseum BART station and other BART stations and the Project Fare.  The 


Board initially set the Project Fare at $6.00 with the provision that the Project Fare is to 


increase by the value of the systemwide inflation-based fare increase starting with the 


January 2018 increase of 2.7%.  The Project Fare is thus now $6.16. 


 


BART offers discount fares to Oakland Airport-badged employees, as described in the 


Discounted Fares section of this chapter.   


 


The values of the SFIA Premium Fare, the OAK Project Fare, and the Transbay, Daly 


City, San Mateo County and Capital surcharges are increased when fares are increased, 


and by the same percentage. 


 


SPEED DIFFERENTIAL 
The speed differential is in keeping with one of the guiding principles applied in setting 


up BART’s fare structure, to reflect the value of trips for the consumer.  It was believed 


that riders perceive a trip that was faster than the average to be more valuable, and hence 


a premium was attached to that trip’s fare.  The fare for a trip that was slower than 


average was discounted.   


 


The speed differential is currently valued at 5.8¢ per minute.  For each minute that a 


trip’s travel time is faster than it would be at a systemwide average speed, 5.8¢ is added 


to the fare, and for each minute that the trip is slower than average, 5.8¢ is subtracted 


from the fare.  For example, the fare for the trip between Hayward and Montgomery 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-5 


 


stations noted earlier has $0.14 added to it because the trip is about two and a half 


minutes faster than it would be were the train traveling at a systemwide average speed. 
 


EXCEPTIONS TO THE DISTANCE-BASED STRUCTURE 


MUNI FAST PASS 
Introduced in 1983, the Muni Fast Pass is a monthly pass that the San Francisco 


Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA), which oversees Muni, sets the price of and 


manages.  The customer pays one price that covers unlimited rides on Muni and on 


BART within San Francisco.  A monthly pass is feasible for BART in San Francisco 


because historically fares for trips within San Francisco have been identical or within a 


nickel of each other.  The current fare for intra-San Francisco trips is $2.00. 


 


In 2010, SFMTA implemented a second, less expensive, Muni-only “M” Fast Pass in 


addition to the “A” Fast Pass that is good for BART and Muni rides.  Since then, as 


shown in the chart below, Fast Pass trips on BART have declined by more than 50%.  In 


FY18, Fast Pass trips accounted for approximately 4% of all BART trips.  


 


  
 


SFMTA prices the “A” Fast Pass at $94, or $16 more than the Muni-only “M” Fast Pass; 


SFMTA reimburses BART $1.35 for every Fast Pass trip that BART’s fare gates record.  


This reimbursement rate translates to about a 33% discount from the current minimum 


fare of $2.00, the fare for intra-San Francisco trips.  Reimbursement rates are adjusted in 


accordance with the District’s inflation-based fare increase program.  Reimbursement 


adjustments occurred in 2016 and 2018, with the remaining adjustment scheduled for 


2020.  The agreement between BART and SFMTA that sets the reimbursement rate and 


the increases to it is in effect through June 2020. 


 


0


5,000


10,000


15,000


20,000


25,000


30,000


35,000


40,000


45,000


50,000


FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


Fa
st


 P
as


s 
Tr


ip
s,


 A
vg


 W
e


e
kd


ay


Jan 2010: "A" Fast 


Pass introduced,  
priced $10 more than 


"M" Fast Pass; current 


price differential is $16







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-6 


 


Extending the "A" Fast Pass to include unlimited trips between Daly City and San 


Francisco stations has been studied.  In 2012, a “Daly City Fast Pass Strategic Analysis” 


was jointly undertaken by BART, San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, the 


San Francisco County Transportation Authority, and San Francisco State.  The report 


estimated that it would cost BART, in 2012$, approximately $8 million per year. 


However, BART and Muni jointly continue to underwrite free rides for BART 


passengers transferring to Muni lines for travel between Daly City Station and San 


Francisco. 
 


EAST BAY SUBURBAN ZONE FARE 
The East Bay suburban zone 


fare has been part of BART’s 


fare structure since 1975 and 


is equal to the minimum fare, 


currently $2.00, which is the 


fare charged for short trips of 


six miles or less; it is not 


calculated based on the actual 


distance traveled.  The actual 


distances of East Bay 


suburban zone trips on the 


Antioch, Pittsburg/Bay Point, 


Warm Springs/South 


Fremont, Richmond, and 


Dublin/Pleasanton lines range 


from 6.3 miles to 13.0 miles.   


 


Riders taking the shortest trip 


receive a discount of 11% to 


the distance-based fare of 


$2.25, while those taking the 


longest trip receive a 39% 


discount to the distance-based 


$3.25 fare.  East Bay 


suburban zone fares account 


for approximately 1.6% of 


BART’s total trips.  The 


$2.00 East Bay suburban zone 


fare is charged for trips 


between stations as shown in 


the table to the right. 


 


The East Bay suburban zone fare was intended to build ridership between suburban 


stations and in so doing also to promote tripmaking that fills a BART seat twice during a 


single run in the peak period.  For example, a train running from Pittsburg/Bay Point to 


 


Distance 


in miles


BART to Antioch Line


Antioch & Pittsburg/Bay Point 9.1


Pittsburg Center & Antioch 6.2


North Concord 7.8


Concord 10.0


Pittsburg/Bay Point Line


Pittsburg/Bay Point & Concord 7.1


Pleasant Hill 11.2


Walnut Creek 12.3


North Concord & Pleasant Hill 6.3


Walnut Creek 8.0


Concord & Lafayette 9.3


Orinda 13.0


Pleasant Hill & Orinda 8.9


Walnut Creek & Orinda 7.2


Warm Springs/So. Fremont Line


Fremont & South Hayward 7.0


Hayward 10.0


Bay Fair 12.8


Union City & Hayward 6.7


Bay Fair 9.6


Warm Springs/South Fremont & Union City 7.8


South Hayward 11.6


Richmond Line


Richmond & North Berkeley 6.4


Berkeley 7.4


Ashby 8.6


El Cerrito del Norte & Ashby 6.3


Dublin/Pleasanton Line


Dublin/Pleasanton & Castro Valley 10.0


Bay Fair 13.0


West Dublin/Pleasanton & Castro Valley 8.4


Bay Fair 11.4







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-7 


 


San Francisco would have a seat filled between North Concord and Walnut Creek which 


would be charged the East Bay suburban zone fare, and that seat, vacated at Walnut 


Creek, would be filled again by a tripmaker going to San Francisco for work.   


 


CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT ZONE FARES 
BART’s fare structure includes two Central Business District (CBD) zones:   


▪ San Francisco: Embarcadero, Montgomery, Powell, and Civic Center stations 


▪ Oakland:  12th Street, 19th Street, and Lake Merritt stations 


 


Fares for trips to or from stations in a CBD zone are averaged, and that averaged fare is 


the one charged, instead of each trip pair having a separate distance-based fare.  For 


example, trips between MacArthur and the San Francisco CBD have an averaged fare of 


$3.75, instead of individual fares ranging between $3.70 and $3.80.  About 40% of all 


BART trips exit at a CBD zone station, with 34% exiting in the San Francisco CBD and 


6% exiting in the Oakland CBD. 


 


EXCURSION FARE 
A rider taking an excursion trip enters and exits at the same station.  The excursion trip 


fare is $5.90.  It is intended to recover the costs of tourists and others taking such trips, as 


well as stopping some forms of fare evasion.  Approximately 0.5% of BART’s total trips 


are excursion fare trips. 


 


DISCOUNTED FARES 


DISCOUNTS FOR SENIORS, PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES, AND YOUTH 
BART offers discounts to seniors, people with disabilities, and youth.  BART’s all-day 


62.5% discount exceeds the federal requirement that an agency offer senior citizens and 


people with disabilities a 50% discount during the off-peak period.  As of January 1, 


2018, two Board-approved changes were implemented for youth:  the discount for riders 


aged 5 through 12 was reduced from 62.5% to 50%, and a new 50% discount was offered 


to riders age 13 through 18.   


 


 Discount 
% of Total  
BART Trips 


Senior citizens 65 years or older 62.5% 5.3% 


People with disabilities 62.5% 2.2%* 


Youth aged 5 to 18 years (children 
under age 5 ride for free) 


50% 1.9%* 


   *Percent of FY18 total trips includes trips made with the Clipper card and BART’s magnetic stripe tickets. 
People with disabilities and youth both use the red magnetic stripe ticket and so the % of those groups using 
the red ticket is an estimate; Clipper trips made by people with disabilities and youth are actual. 


 


Seniors, people with disabilities, and youth get the discount either by paying the reduced 


fare with the appropriate Clipper card at the fare gate or at the point-of-sale with a mag-







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-8 


 


stripe ticket valued at $24 sold for $9 for seniors and people with disabilities, and $24 


sold for $12 for youth.  BART sells these mag-stripe tickets (color-coded red for people 


with disabilities and youth, and green for seniors) through the mail, at the Lake Merritt 


Customer Service Center, the Clipper Customer Service Center at Embarcadero station, 


and SFO.   In FY18, approximately 91% of BART’s senior riders used Clipper and 9% 


used the green mag-stripe ticket.  About 83% of trips taken by persons with disabilities 


are estimated to have been made with the Clipper card, while the remainder were made 


with the red mag-stripe ticket.  For trips made by youth, it is estimated that almost 83% 


of these riders paid with the Clipper card and the other 17% used the red mag-stripe 


ticket. 


 


The new youth discount has resulted in marked trip growth.  During calendar year 2018, 


approximately 1.3 million more Clipper youth trips were made compared to calendar year 


2017, an increase of 265%.  Between 2016 and 2017, when the Youth Clipper card was 


used only by 5 through 12-year-old riders, trips were growing at approximately 18% per 


year, and so it is likely the current significant trip growth can be attributed to travel by 


youth age 13 through 18.   


 


DISCOUNTS FOR MULTIPLE-RIDE (HIGH-VALUE) FARE PRODUCT 
BART offers a discount of 6.25% when riders load a high fare value on their Clipper 


cards or buy a high-value mag-stripe ticket.  A rider can either pay $60 and get $64 in 


value or pay $45 and receive $48 in value.  High-value mag-stripe tickets are available 


through the mail, at the Lake Merritt Customer Service Center, and the Clipper Customer 


Service Center at Embarcadero station.  Riders can use their paper commuter benefit 


vouchers to purchase the mag-stripe tickets or their commuter benefit debit/credit cards to 


load value onto Clipper.  


 


The Clipper high-value fare product is used to pay for approximately 16% of all BART 


trips.  The number of trips made with the high-value mag-stripe ticket is not known 


because these trips are reported along with regular BART blue mag-stripe ticket trips.  


However, high-value mag-stripe ticket sales data are available—in calendar year 2018, 


BART sold approximately 4,200 $45 tickets and almost 6,300 $60 tickets.   


 


MUNI FAST PASS 
As described in a previous section, the Muni “A” Fast Pass is a discounted monthly pass.  


BART currently receives $1.35 per trip from SFMTA rather than $2.00 from the rider, 


while the exact level of the discount the rider gets depends on the number of trips he or 


she takes. 


 


AIRPORT EMPLOYEE DISCOUNT PROGRAMS 
BART offers discount programs for those employed at San Francisco International 


Airport and Oakland International Airport. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-9 


 


 


San Francisco International Airport 
BART is required to make available to SFO airline employees a 25% discount on their 


trips to or from the SFO station.  Airline employees receive this discount by using a 


BART-Only Smart Card (BOSC) that accesses a special fare table that provides the 25% 


discount. 


 


SFO Airport-badged employees also receive a discount by using their own specially 


encoded BOSC. The Airport-badged employee discount program began in response to the 


increase in 2009 to the SFO Premium Fare from $1.50 to $4.00.  The initial agreement 


between SFO and BART ensured that Airport-badged employees would see no increase 


and continue to pay $1.50.  In 2013, SFO wished to encourage more Airport-badged 


employees to take BART, and BART agreed to waive the $1.50, so that Airport-badged 


employees now pay no SFO Premium Fare.  SFO has actively promoted this discount 


program to employees, and the elimination of the SFO Premium Fare has been revenue 


positive. Airport-badged employees took more than 450,000 trips in FY18 compared to 


the approximately 120,000 baseline number of trips in FY13, which is a 275% increase in 


ridership.   


 


Oakland International Airport 
The fare for service to or from a BART station and the Oakland International Airport 


(OAK) has two additive elements: the Base Fare for service between the Coliseum BART 


station and other BART stations and the Project Fare, which the Board set at $6.00 when 


the station opened in November 2014.  From the time the station opened until the end of 


2017, Oakland Airport-badged employees paid a Project Fare of $2.00 instead of the full 


Project Fare of $6.00.  The $2.00 Project fare was identical to the fare employees paid to 


ride AirBART, the bus service replaced by the new service.  Effective January 1, 2018, 


per Board Resolution 5261, the Project Fare was increased by the same percentage as the 


systemwide inflation-based fare increase, or 2.7%.  Thus, the current Project Fare is 


$6.16, and Oakland Airport-badged employees now pay $2.05. 


 


DISCOUNTS FOR MIDDLE AND HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS 
In July 2018, after the January implementation of the new 50% discount for riders age 13 


through 18, the Board approved eliminating the Orange ticket program for students 


attending participating middle and high schools.  Orange tickets had a value of $32 and 


were sold for $16, a 50% discount, and these tickets were to be used only for school-


related trips on weekdays. With the new 50% discount, youth riders can make trips on 


any day and at any time. BART fare gates continue to accept Orange tickets bought 


before the program ended. 


 


DISCOUNTS FOR HIGHER-EDUCATION STUDENTS  
The BART Higher Education Fare Discount Program (HEDP) offers fare discounts to 


students at colleges and universities.  San Francisco State University (SFSU) is the first 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-10 


 


program participant, and SFSU students and administration worked with BART to 


develop the SFSU program, which is the model for other schools.  


 


HEDP development has been guided by these principles:  


• Replicability to other schools in the BART service area 


• Revenue neutral to BART 


• Data available for analyzing tripmaking 


• Flexibility in changing discount amount 


• Minimized potential for fraudulent use 


 


The BART fare discount is a percentage amount off the regular fare.  For example, if the 


regular fare is $2.00, and the discount is 25%, then the student would pay a discounted 


fare of $1.50.  BART’s distance-based fares are calculated for every trip between the 


system’s 48 stations, which results in 185 unique fares.  As there are a great number of 


unique fares, the discount is offered per trip rather than offering up to 185 price-point 


passes.  Buses can offer unlimited ride passes because buses charge one flat fare, and 


some rail operators with zone-based fare structures can offer passes because of the 


relatively limited number of zones in their systems.   


 


Students use a Clipper card specially designed for their school, which also serves as a 


student’s ID, to get the BART fare discount.  Each school’s staff and students determine 


the amount of the discount and which BART trips will be covered.  The school 


reimburses BART for the difference between the regular fare and the discounted fare paid 


by the student, so the program is revenue neutral to BART. Funds to reimburse BART for 


the discount can come from a variety of sources including student fees, the school itself, 


or outside funding (e.g., grant funding).  The discount amount can be changed as funding 


becomes available. 


 


TRANSFERS BETWEEN BART AND BUSES 
Besides the discount offered with the Muni Fast Pass as described above, BART riders 


can also pay discounted fares for trips on connecting bus operators as shown in the table 


on the next page.  Discounted transfers are automatically given when the rider uses a 


Clipper card. AC Transit and County Connection also accept a paper transfer dispensed 


in the paid area of the BART station in addition to giving the discount with the Clipper 


card.   







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-11 


 


 


CLIPPER 
Riders pay for BART trips either with the regional Clipper smart card, which BART 


began to accept in 2009, or BART’s magnetic stripe tickets.  Effective January 1, 2018, a 


50 cents per trip surcharge was implemented on trips taken with mag-stripe tickets to 


encourage migration to the regional Clipper card.  BART is currently assessing the 


benefits of moving all riders to Clipper and evaluating strategies to achieve a 100%-


Clipper fare payment system. 


 


As the table on the next page shows, on an average weekday in October 2018, Clipper 


cards were used to take over 84% of BART trips, with almost 56% made with the Clipper 


adult card.  By comparison, in 2016 before the 50 cents per trip mag-stripe surcharge was 


implemented, 68% of trips were made with Clipper, with 42% of trips using the Clipper 


adult card.  The percentage of trips taken with the blue mag-stripe ticket in 2018 is 13%, 


which is a decrease from 29% in 2016.  


  


One-way Transfers


From BART to: AC Transit (Clipper fare) $0.50 off $2.25 Clipper fare (22% discount)


County Connection $1 off $2 cash fare (50% discount)


Muni, within San Francisco $0.50 off $2.50 Clipper fare (20% discount)


Tri Delta Transit $0.75 off $2 fare (37.5% discount)


Union City Transit $0.50 off $2 fare (25% discount)


VTA (Clipper fare; express bus $0.50 off $4.50 fare (11% discount)


only at Fremont Station)


WestCAT $0.75 off $1.75 fare (43% discount)


Wheels $1 off $2 fare (50% discount)


Two-way Transfers


From BART/to BART: AC Transit (cash fare) $0.25 off $2.35 one-way cash fare (9% discount)


Muni, Daly City Station Free ($2.50 one-way Clipper fare)







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-12 


 


October Weekday Average 


  2018 2016 


  Trips % of Total Trips % of Total 


Clipper Adult 237,229 55.6% 184,859 42.2% 


Clipper High Value Discount 69,452 16.3% 67,604 15.4% 


Blue Ticket 57,652 13.5% 128,919 29.4% 


Clipper Senior 21,132 5.0% 15,904 3.6% 


Fast Pass (Clipper only) 17,022 4.0% 20,634 4.7% 


Clipper Disabled 8,088 1.9% 7,556 1.7% 


Clipper Youth 7,146 1.7% 1,468 0.3% 


SF State Student Discount 3,474 0.8% -- -- 


Red Ticket (Disabled & Youth) 2,291 0.5% 4,556 1.0% 


Green Ticket (Senior) 1,303 0.3% 3,992 0.9% 


Orange Ticket (Student) 282 0.1% 1,534 0.3% 


SFO Airport Employee Discount 1,597 0.4% 1,287 0.3% 


SFO Airline Employee Discount 121 0.0% 157 0.0% 


OAK Employee Discount 41 0.0% 33 0.0% 


Total Trips 426,829 100.0% 438,502 100.0% 


  2018 2016 
Clipper % of Total 84.4% 68.0% 


 
CLIPPER 2: THE NEXT GENERATION OF CLIPPER 
The Clipper program is governed according to a Memorandum of Understanding signed 


by MTC and the partner transit agencies.  Nine of the region’s transit agency leaders, 


including BART’s general manager, comprise the Executive Board responsible for 


managing the Clipper program, and the current contract with Cubic Transportation 


Systems to operate Clipper expires in November 2019.  In September 2018, Cubic 


Transportation Systems, Inc. was awarded the contract for the Next Generation Clipper 


(C2) System Integrator. The Contract includes the design, development and testing, 


installation and transition, and operations and maintenance (O&M) of the C2 system. 


The C2 system will be based on a proven, high-volume, multi-operator fare collection 


system. It will support all existing fare policies; will accommodate innovative pricing 


strategies; and will provide an accurate, reliable, consistent and fast customer experience 


when purchasing fare products, paying fares, managing accounts, and receiving customer 


service. In addition to replacing obsolescent systems and equipment, C2 will introduce 


new features to the Clipper program that address the most common customer and user 


issues with the current Clipper system, such as:  


• A Clipper mobile app to be implemented on an accelerated schedule that will 


allow customers to use smart phones to reload their account and function as a 


Clipper card;  







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-13 


 


• An account-based system that will allow customers to reload their Clipper 


accounts online, at vending machines, at retailers, and through mobile devices and 


use the value immediately, eliminating the current one-to-two day delay and the 


primary source of current customer frustration;  


• A customer transition approach that is designed to ensure customer convenience 


and minimize disruption;  


• The ability to integrate with other transportation providers such as bikeshare and 


paratransit providers, addressing Bay Area needs for better mobility solutions;  


• Improved tools and systems to manage employer and other institutional programs 


and offer new types of promotions; and  


• Better flexibility for the region’s Clipper agencies to implement and adopt fare 


policies to meet the changing needs of transit riders. 


 


The first improvements are scheduled for 2019 and rollout of the new Clipper mobile-


payment app is scheduled to occur in fall 2020. The total redesign and development will 


be completed by 2021, with customers transitioned by 2023. 


 


RIDERSHIP AND REVENUE GENERATED BY EXISTING FARE 
STRUCTURE 


The table below shows for recent fiscal years the number of trips made under the existing 


fare structure, the net revenue generated, and the role the existing fare structure plays in 


covering BART’s operating expenses (as represented by the system farebox recovery 


ratio1).   
 


 


 


  


                                                


1 The system farebox recovery ratio is calculated by dividing total fare revenue (rail, Oakland Airport Connector, 


BART to Antioch, and ADA revenues) by total operating expense. 


Fiscal   
Year 


Annual 
(millions) 


System 
Farebox 


Recovery 
Ratio 


Trips Net Rail 
Revenue 


18 120.6 $480.9 66.6% 


17 124.2 $484.8 70.4% 


16 128.5 $488.7 74.4% 


15 126.0 $462.8 75.6% 


14 117.1 $415.7 72.9% 


13 117.8 $406.1 71.8% 


12 110.8 $366.5 69.4% 


11 103.7 $342.7 69.9% 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-14 


 


Based on 2018 Customer Satisfaction Survey data, frequent riders (those who ride BART 


at least three days per week) generate about 76% of fare revenue. The remaining 24% of 


revenue is generated by infrequent riders (those who ride BART less than three days per 


week).  While these infrequent riders contribute relatively less to fare revenue, they are 


important for efficient system utilization, as many of them ride on weekends or during 


off-peak periods. Additionally, the large number of infrequent riders contributes to 


BART’s relevancy to the Bay Area and is a source of public support for the system. As 


shown in the chart below, frequent BART riders make up about 13% of all unique riders, 


while infrequent riders comprise 87% of all BART’s unique customers. 


Fare Revenue Generated by Riders 


 


            Source: 2018 Customer Satisfaction Survey 


 


Looking at FY18 ridership and revenue by length of trip, long trips (14+ miles) account 


for 44% of all trips and generate 59% of gross fare revenue.  Medium-length trips, 6-14 


miles, make up 35% of BART trips and generate 30% of gross fare revenue.  Short trips, 


up to 6 miles, make up 21% of all BART trips, generating 11% of gross fare revenue. 


 


The charts below show that, between FY08 and FY18, annual overall trips have increased 


across all trip lengths, but as a percentage of total annual trips, medium and long trips 


have increased at a higher rate while short trips have declined.  
 


1.3 Million Infrequent Riders 
(or 87% of all unique riders) 
Generate 24% of Fare Revenue


200,000 Frequent Riders (or
13% of all unique riders) 
Generate 76% of Fare Revenue







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-15 


 


 


  


The change in gross fare revenue is consistent with annual ridership trends reflecting an 


increase in overall fare revenue but, as a percentage of total revenue, medium and long 


trip revenues are increasing while short trip revenue is decreasing. 
 


28.5 28.0
24.6


35.5


41.1 42.342.1


49.0
53.2


FY08 FY13 FY18


Annual Passenger Trips by Trip Length (millions)


Short Trips Medium Trips Long Trips


26.9% 23.7% 20.5%


33.5% 34.8% 35.2%


39.6% 41.5% 44.3%


FY08 FY13 FY18


% of Trips by Trip Length


Short Trips Medium Trips Long Trips







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-16 


 


  


 
 


Likely causes of the shift toward longer trips include the availability of Transportation 


Network Carriers (TNCs) for those making shorter trips, a continued strong job market in 


San Francisco, the opening of the BART to Antioch line, and continuing declines in Muni 


Fast Pass trips. 


 


PRODUCTIVITY-ADJUSTED INFLATION-BASED FARE INCREASE 
PROGRAM 


BART has a program to increase fares by a less-than-inflation factor every two years.  


The formula to calculate the percentage increase takes the average of national and local 


inflation over a two-year period and subtracts one-half percent to account for 


$43.5 $52.3 $51.9


$99.3


$131.4
$149.9


$178.8


$240.8


$290.8


FY08 FY13 FY18


Gross Fare Revenue ($millions)


Short Trips Medium Trips Long Trips


13.5% 12.3% 10.5%


30.9% 31.0% 30.4%


55.6% 56.7% 59.0%


FY08 FY13 FY18


% of Gross Fare Revenue by Trip Length


Short Trips Medium Trips Long Trips







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-17 


 


improvements in BART productivity.  The BART Board adopted the productivity-


adjusted inflation-based fare increase program in 2003, with the first series of increases 


taking effect from 2006 to 2012; the timeframe for the second series started in 2014 with 


the last increase scheduled for 2020.  Series 3 is projected for the time period 2022 to 


2028. 


 


BART’s Financial Stability Policy and Fare Policy support this program.  The Financial 


Stability Policy states that “BART’s ability to deliver safe, reliable service rests on a 


strong and stable financial foundation,” with a goal to “Preserve and maximize BART’s 


fare revenue base, through a pattern of predictable fare adjustments, while retaining 


ridership.”  A strategy to achieve this goal is “Aligning fares with CPI-based costs 


growth.” A Fare Policy goal is to “Maintain and improve the District’s financial health, in 


accordance with BART’s Strategic Plan and Financial Stability Policy.” 


 


Before the program, from 1972 through 2005, fare increases were irregular and large, as 


shown in the chart below.  During the long gaps between increases, revenue eroded, and 


large “catch up” increases became necessary, including a 30% increase in 1986 and a 


45% increase over the three-year period from 1995 to 1997.  With the advent of the 


program, planned small, regular increases have produced predictable less-than-inflation 


adjustments, which is consistent with BART’s Financial Stability Policy.  In addition, 


even with the inflation-based increases, BART’s fares continue to track below inflation. 


 


Comparing BART Fares and Inflation: FY72-FY18 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


FY
7


2


FY
7


4


FY
7


6


FY
7


8


FY
8


0


FY
8


2


FY
8


4


FY
8


6


FY
8


8


FY
9


0


FY
9


2


FY
9


4


FY
9


6


FY
9


8


FY
0


0


FY
0


2


FY
0


4


FY
0


6


FY
0


8


FY
1


0


FY
1


2


FY
1


4


FY
1


6


FY
1


8


In
d


e
x


BART Fare 
Index


CPI Index*


*Average of CPI-W (SF/Oakland) and CPI-U (National), 


indexed to FY72


Pre-Program: 1972-2005 


Program: 2006-Present 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


1-18 


 


The first series of increases (2006-2012) generated approximately $290 million in fare 


revenue that went to operating needs, enabling BART to weather the Great Recession 


without reducing service levels.  Series 2 (2014-2020) is generating approximately $330 


million in revenue dedicated to BART’s Big 3 capital investments: new rail cars, train 


control system, and the Hayward Maintenance Complex.  Series 3 (2022-2028) is 


estimated to produce $370 million. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-1 


 


2 FARE PROGRAMS UNDERWAY OR 
UNDER STUDY 


 


This section describes fare-related programs that are under study or currently being 


implemented: the MTC Regional Means-Based Transit Discount Fare Pilot Program; 


AC/BART fare discount pilot program, the Alameda County Transportation Commission 


student pass pilot program, higher education discount programs at additional schools, a 


weekend ridership incentive program, and a recently launched discounted group travel to 


airports program. 


 


MTC REGIONAL MEANS-BASED TRANSIT FARE DISCOUNT PILOT 
PROGRAM 


BART, Caltrain, Golden Gate Transit and the San Francisco Municipal Transportation 


Agency (SF Muni) are participating in the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 


(MTC’s) Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Discount Pilot Program.  The program is 


the result of findings from MTC’s Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Pricing Study, 


which had these goals: 


Goal 1. Make transit more affordable for the Bay Area’s low-income residents. 


Goal 2. Move towards a more consistent regional standard for fare discount 


 policies. 


Goal 3. Define a transit affordability solution that is financially viable and 


administratively feasible, and does not adversely affect the transit system’s 


service levels and performance. 
 


On May 23, 2018 the Metropolitan Transportation Commission approved the Means-


Based Transit Fare Discount Pilot Program Framework. Details of the pilot program are 


shown in the table on the next page. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-2 


 


 
 


MTC is now working to finalize how eligible low-income riders would enroll in the 


program; methods include a web portal the rider can access directly, paper applications, 


and pre-approval letters and/or case management by social service agencies, public health 


agencies, and community-based organizations.  Eligibility verification will be provided 


by a third-party vendor, as is the case for the Regional Transit Connection Card.  
 


MTC will be funding the pilot with approximately $11 million ($8 million from SB1 and 


$3 million from the Low Carbon Transit Operating Program (LCTOP)).  These funds will 


go toward administrative costs and to pay for up to 50% of an operator’s revenue loss.  


BART’s total annual revenue loss is estimated at $10.6 million with an estimated offset 


from MTC of between $4 and $5 million.  This results in a net annual revenue loss of 


approximately $6 million that BART would need to self-fund, and trade-offs would be 


required for the District to absorb this loss. 


 


As the pilot’s proposed duration exceeds six months, Title VI analysis and outreach are 


required, which staff is in the process of completing. Staff plans to bring the pilot 


program to the Board for approval in spring 2019.  Pending all necessary agency 


approvals, the pilot program is currently scheduled to begin as soon as fall 2019.  


ALAMEDA CTC STUDENT PASS PILOT PROGRAM 
The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Affordable Student 


Transit Pass Pilot (ASTPP) is a three-year pilot program that was first implemented in the 


2016/17 school year.  BART has participated in the second and third years of the 


ASTPP.  The 2018/19 school year marks the third and final year of the ASTPP, which 


will end on July 31, 2019.   


 


Participating Operators BART, Caltrain, Golden Gate Bus & Ferry, SF 


Muni


Fare Medium Program-specific Clipper card


Discount Rate 20%: BART, Caltrain, Golden Gate Transit; 


50% SF Muni


Income Eligibility Adults earning at or below 200% of federal 


poverty level


% of BART Riders who are Eligible Approximately 25%


Eligible Rider Participation Rate 


Assumption
50%


Estimated Annual Revenue Loss:


BART $10.6 million*


Total $20.7 million (4 operators)


Data Source 2017 transit operator-provided data


*The discount is estimated to generate approximately 10% to 13% new BART trips by 


low-income riders; new trip revenue is offset by reduced revenue from trips low-


income riders currently make.







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-3 


 


In this final year of the pilot, the BART component of the ASTPP is being implemented 


at nine participating high schools in Oakland, San Leandro, Hayward, Newark, Union 


City and Fremont under one of two program models: a free/universal model or a 


free/means-based model.   


 


All high school students at the following schools are eligible to receive a free BART 


ticket: 


• Castlemont (Oakland) 


• Fremont (Oakland) 


• McClymonds (Oakland) 


• Oakland (Oakland) 


• San Leandro (San Leandro) 


• Newark Memorial (Newark) 


 


All low-income students at these high schools are also eligible to receive a free BART 


ticket:  


• American (Fremont)  


• Hayward (Hayward)  


• James Logan (Union City) 


 


Each eligible high school student who signs up for the ASTPP can receive one BART 


Orange Ticket with $50 in value.  Half of the cost of the BART ASTPP fare was covered 


by BART’s youth fare discount (Orange Ticket) and the other 50% was paid by Alameda 


CTC through the ASTPP.  


 


In December 2018, Alameda CTC approved a five-year, phased-expansion of the Student 


Transit Pass Program (STPP) to begin implementation in the 2019/20 school year. In this 


expansion phase, every student who signs up for the program will receive a youth Clipper 


card which will entitle them to a 50% discount on BART.  Alameda CTC consulted with 


BART staff to explore options for the post-pilot period and several constraints or issues 


became apparent, including: 


• Orange tickets will no longer be available; 


• BART does not have a “pass” product on Clipper; 


• Creating a new product on Clipper would involve a prohibitively high 


development cost and would require BART approval of a new fare product;  


• Nearly a third of the BART Orange tickets that were distributed to students during 


the second year of the pilot were not used during the school year; and  


• Over half of the BART value distributed on BART Orange tickets was not used 


during the school year. 


 


After evaluating these issues and constraints, and consulting with BART staff, Alameda 


CTC staff recommended the BART component of the program be the 50% youth 


discount that each student will be entitled to with the youth Clipper card.  Alameda CTC 


staff will continue to track BART student usage on the ASTPP Orange Tickets during the 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-4 


 


final year of the pilot and will publish a final evaluation report in fall 2019 summarizing 


statistics on BART ASTTP ticket usage during the two-year BART pilot period.  BART 


and Alameda CTC staff will continue to explore additional BART STPP participation 


options in the future, including working with MTC on a cost-effective, Clipper-based 


solution. 


ADDITIONAL HIGHER EDUCATION DISCOUNT PROGRAM 
SCHOOLS 


As described in Section 1 of this report, BART offers a Higher Education Discount 


Program (HEDP); the first school in the program is San Francisco State University, and 


their discount was implemented for fall semester 2017.  Several other schools have 


contacted BART about the HEDP, and this section describes the ongoing work with 


Peralta Colleges and UC Berkeley.  


 
Peralta Colleges 


Peralta Colleges include Berkeley City College, College of Alameda, Laney College, and 


Merritt College. BART staff has been working with Peralta students and staff since 2016 


on developing a program, a key foundation of which is having student travel data that is 


usually obtained through surveying.  BART staff assisted Peralta Colleges student 


government representatives in developing an online travel survey for students at the four 


colleges, which was administered in spring 2018.  During the summer, Peralta Colleges 


staff were on break and key students transferred.  However, in fall 2018, BART staff 


were contacted by another Berkeley City College student, and staff met with him and 


Berkeley City College’s Interim Campus Life Director, who was to meet with Campus 


Life Directors from the other colleges in an effort to keep the program moving.  BART 


staff remains available to collaborate with Peralta Colleges on HEDP development. 


 


UC Berkeley 
In 2016, BART staff worked with UC Berkeley students and staff on HEDP 


development, including review and analysis of existing UC Berkeley travel survey data.  


These travel survey data show about 4% of undergraduate and 9% of graduate students 


use BART to commute to school.  Several months into discussions, UC Berkeley 


representatives became aware that 33% of all student fees must go to financial aid (e.g., if 


a student fee is $10, $3.30 of that amount goes to financial aid), which is not the case for 


other HEDP schools BART staff has worked with.  Students noted this UC Berkeley 


requirement could mean most students would find that the program would result in no net 


discount for them, and so UC Berkeley representatives informed BART staff that they did 


not wish to pursue a program.  BART staff confirmed with UC Berkeley students and 


staff that, should they wish to resume discussions regarding an HEDP, BART staff was 


ready and available to do so. 


 


In fall 2018, UC Berkeley students contacted BART staff to reopen discussions about 


possible ways to make HEDP work for their school.  Currently, students and BART staff 


are working together to explore options for a UC Berkeley HEDP. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-5 


 


WEEKEND RIDERSHIP INCENTIVES 
BART’s Marketing and Research Department continues to experiment with distribution 


of weekend promotional tickets to grow weekend ridership.  This new promotional ticket 


type is valid for one round trip, weekends only, and the ticket has an expiration date. 


Weekend ridership has declined over the past few years due in part to increased 


competition from Transportation Network Companies (TNCs) and quality of life issues.   


 


In 2018, 348,317 weekend promotional tickets were distributed as follows: 


• 269,219 round-trip weekend promotional tickets 


• 44,098 one-way weekend promotional tickets 


• 35,000 round-trip “Thank you for your patience” weekend promotional 


distributed at the 19th Street BART station during the M03 bus bridge 


 


The majority of tickets were distributed to commuters in BART stations and through 


BART partners, such as the Oakland A’s, Oakland Raiders, Cal Athletics and Bike East 


Bay (as part of the Bike to Work Day promotion) and resulted in 132,211 BART trips 


(23% of possible trips). Survey results from promotional ticket users show: 


 


• Goodwill Generation: 77% Strongly Agree or Somewhat Agree that the free 


ticket promotion made them consider BART more for future weekend activities 


• Added trips that otherwise wouldn’t have been taken: 44% would not have taken 


the trip if they had not received the weekend promo ticket 


• Fare Paying Companions:  For every 10 customers taking a free ride with the 


promotional tickets, they brought with them four fare-paying companions 


 


The plan for 2019 is to reduce unit costs and target distributions to maximize group use 


and new trip making.  The goal is to increase ridership and net revenue.  Understanding 


the full impact on people’s weekend BART trip-taking will require Clipper 2-based 


promotional pricing and tracking capabilities, which have been requested by the District. 
 


DISCOUNTED GROUP TRAVEL TO AIRPORTS 
 


The new BART to Airport app offers mobile ticketing for discounted group travel to San 


Francisco International Airport and Oakland International Airport. The new app saves 


groups of two or more 25% on their airport trips while making it easier to travel to and 


from the airports.  The BART to Airport app is a one-year test of mobile ticketing at 


BART, marking the first time BART has offered app-based mobile tickets.  


 


Groups of two or more traveling together can use the BART to Airport app to make 


advance purchases of discounted airport trip tickets—the tickets are stored on the buyer’s 


phone, ready for use at any time.  The app offers customers cost savings and the 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


2-6 


 


convenience of not having to keep track of paper tickets, carry cash, or wait in line at a 


ticket machine to buy multiple tickets at full price.  


 


The BART to Airport app is fast, secure, and convenient. Riders download the free app, 


link a debit card, credit card, Apple Pay, Google Pay or PayPal account to their Airport 


app account, then purchase the ticket. When it’s time to take BART, the purchaser 


activates the ticket and shows it to a station agent as the group enters and exits 


stations.  The app calculates the group’s discounted fare, and the one mobile ticket is all 


group members need to get to and from the airports. 


 


BART PERKS 
BART Perks Beta is a six-month pilot program to test a new platform that rewards riders 


for their BART travel based on when they commute.   Perks is funded primarily through 


a $500,000 grant from the Federal Transit Administration and builds on the lessons 


learned from the Perks Phase 1 pilot conducted in 2016.  Perks Beta ends on May 31, 


2019, after which BART will evaluate the program’s effectiveness and seek input from 


the BART Board of Directors regarding next steps. 


 


The main goal of BART Perks is to test whether incentives can be used to encourage 


riders to take BART at less crowded times and places, including before and after rush 


hour and on evenings and weekends.  The program evaluation approach is being guided 


by university professors with expertise in behavior change. 


Perks is being tested on a small scale to determine its effectiveness before BART decides 


whether to scale up to a larger group.  Approximately 1,900 testers have been recruited 


from Perks Phase I participants (so the effectiveness of the first and second phases can be 


compared), and through limited outreach during congested commute periods in 


downtown San Francisco.  


Perks develops customized point offers for each tester based on when the tester 


rides.  Testers can view their offers after logging in to their profiles in the new BART 


mobile app.  They are also notified of new offers by email.  Offers consist of points for 


entering or exiting BART at specific times or places.  Offers may range from a quarter to 


more than a dollar per BART trip.  Some offers may be turned on or off so that their 


effectiveness can be better evaluated.   


Testers can redeem their points for electronic gift cards at the $5 (1,000 points), $10 


(2,000 points) and $20 (4,000 points) levels.  Testers can choose from up to 10 gift cards 


including pre-paid Visa, Amazon, Target, iTunes, eBay, Starbucks, Walmart, Best Buy, 


and Sephora.  They may also select a Tango gift card which is redeemable at more than 


60 additional retailers such as Google Play, Nordstrom, Pottery Barn, REI, Barnes & 


Noble, CVS, and many others, and with numerous charities.  







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-1 


 


3 FARE STRUCTURES AT LOCAL AND 
PEER AGENCIES  


This section provides information on fare structure and system characteristics of local and 


peer agencies. 


LOCAL AGENCIES 
Local agencies include AC Transit, Caltrain, Golden Gate Transit, SamTrans, San 


Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)/Muni, and Santa Clara Valley 


Transportation Authority (VTA).   


 


LOCAL AGENCY FARE STRUCTURE AND SYSTEM CHARACTERISTICS 
The fare structures and system characteristics of local agencies are provided in the 


following two tables.  Fare structure data are as of January 1, 2019 and system 


characteristics data are from the 2017 National Transit Database. 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-2 


 


Local Agencies: Fare Structure   


 


Clipper Cash Month Day


BART Heavy Rail/ Commuter Rail
Point-to-Point 


Distance-based


$2.00-$8.75; max 


airport fare: $16.15


Clipper fare 


plus $0.50 per 


trip


62.5% 50% n/a n/a Yes


Bus (local) $2.25 $2.35 $84.603 $5.00


Transbay Bus $5.50 $5.50 $162 n/a


Caltrain Commuter Rail
6 Zones Distance-


based
$3.20-$14.45 $3.75-$15 50%-55% 50%-55% $96-$433.50 $7.50-$30 Yes


Golden Gate Transit Bus
6 Zones Distance-


based
$5.20-$10.40 $6.50-$13 50% 50% n/a n/a Yes


SamTrans Bus (local) Flat $2.05 $2.25 51% 51% $65.60 $5.50 Under development


SFMTA/Muni Bus/Trolley/LRT/Streetcar Flat $2.50 $2.75 50% 50% $784 $5.00 Yes


VTA Bus (local) & Light Rail Flat $2.50 $2.50 56% 56% $905 $7.50 Yes


Source: Agency websites and staff
1Fares charged in the peak and off-peak.
2No local agency offers a weekly pass.


Transit System Mode
Fare Structure 


Type


4 $78 "M" Fast Pass good on Muni only; $94 "A" Fast Pass good on Muni and BART within San Francisco. SFMTA also offers a $39 monthly Lifeline Pass for low-income adult riders; provides free 


rides for low-to-moderate income seniors, people with disabilities, and youth; and has 1-, 3-, and 7-day visitor passports.


Flat


3$30 monthly pass available for seniors, people with disabilities, and youth, which may be used to ride Transbay bus with additional $1.05 cash fare.


Has Fare Policy/Program
Youth 


Discount


Pass2


Senior/Disable


d Discount1


50% 50%AC Transit


Adult Fare1


Yes







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-3 


 


Local Agencies: System Characteristics 


 


 


Transit System Mode


Trips 


(Unlinked, 


Millions)


Miles 


(Millions)


Avg Miles 


per Trip


Fare 


Revenue 


(Millions)


Per Trip Per Mile


Operating 


Expense 


(Millions)


Farebox 


Recovery Ratio


AC Transit Bus 50.2 167.1 3.3 $68.3 $1.36 $0.41 $359.9 19.0%


Caltrain Commuter Rail 18.6 406.0 21.8 $92.4 $4.97 $0.23 $127.3 72.6%


Golden Gate Transit Bus 3.1 58.5 18.9 $15.0 $4.84 $0.26 $69.8 21.5%


SamTrans Bus 12.2 51.4 4.2 $16.1 $1.32 $0.31 $113.5 14.2%


SFMTA/Muni
Bus, Trolley, LRT & 


Streetcar
219.6 460.8 2.1 $168.9 $0.77 $0.37 $732.3 23.1%


VTA Bus & Light Rail 38.6 357.6 9.3 $33.7 $0.87 $0.09 $356.2 9.5%


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      


$626.0 77.4% 1


Source:  2017 National Transit Database


1The 2017 NTD Rail Farebox Recovery Ratio includes only rail operating expense and therefore excludes ADA and feeder/transfer agreement expenses, and may 


exclude certain accounting transactions.  


Annual Passenger Average Fare


BART


Heavy 


Rail/Commuter 


Rail


132.8 1,808.9 13.6 $484.8 $3.65 $0.27







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-4 


 


LOCAL AGENCIES: FARE POLICY/PRINCIPLES/PROGRAMS 
Five of the six local agencies have fare policies, principles, or fare adjustment programs.  


In addition, SamTrans is developing a policy to bring to its Board for adoption in early 


2019.  The table below highlights agencies’ methods noted in their fare policy/program 


for increasing fares, and it is followed by main points from existing policies, principles, 


and programs. 


 
Fare Increase Methods from Policy/Program 


 
 


AC Transit.  AC Transit Board Policy No. 333 (initially adopted in 2011 as No. 328 and 


amended in 2013 and 2016) includes AC Transit’s fare policy, which has the following 


six goals: 


• Goal 1 - Simplicity: Fares and the fare structure should be easy to use for 


passengers, and easy to operate for the District. 


• Goal 2 - Appropriateness: Fares and the fare structure should provide a good 


value for passengers. 


• Goal 3 - Equity: Fares and the fare structure should be fair for all passengers. 


• Goal 4 - Transparency: Fares and the fare structure should result in predictable 


costs and cost increases for passengers; and predictable revenue increases for the 


District. 


• Goal 5 - Policy Supportiveness: Fares and the fare structure should be supportive  


of other District goals—service, land use, and social goals—and compliant with other 


regulatory mandates.  


• Goal 6 - Affordability: Fares should be affordable to all passengers to ensure their  


full access to bus service and to prevent adverse impacts on socially vulnerable  


populations.  
 


Board Policy No. 333 provides rationales for key provisions of AC Transit’s fare policy, 


including: 


 


• “Transbay fare as twice local fare - Longstanding AC Transit practice, this also 


approximates BART Transbay fares. This supports Goals 1, 2, and 3.”   
 


• “Developing  a  ten-year  schedule  of  fare  increases  -  Developing  a  ten-year 


schedule of fare increases creates predictability for passengers, for the District, and 


for other agencies that work with AC Transit. Having a long-term plan for fare 


BART AC Transit Caltrain


Golden Gate 


Transit SFMTA VTA


Uses 


Productivity-


Adjusted 


Inflation-based 


increase 


percentage 


Supports 


predictable fare 


increases 


including as a 


response to 


inflation


Supports 


predictable and 


incremental fare 


changes


Supports annual 


fare increases


Uses CPI-based 


"automatic 


inflator"


Has 


recommenda- 


tion to consider 


indexing fares to 


CPI







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-5 


 


increases allows the District to respond to inflation, and also obviates the need for 


very large fare increases at one time. It allows a planned transition of discount pass 


prices to the target levels. A number of transit agencies regionally and nationally 


have moved to a longer-term approach. This supports Goals 2, 3, 4, and 6.” 


 


Caltrain.  The Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board adopted the Caltrain Fare Policy 


in December 2018 as a framework of high-level goals that underlie and guide fare-related 


decisions for the Caltrain system.  The text of the policy is as follows:  


 


Financial Stability 


• Ensure the agency’s ongoing financial health, including the need for a balanced 


Operating Budget and support for State of Good Repair and capital programs. 


• Achieve a farebox recovery ratio for the Operating Budget of at least 65 percent. 


This minimum farebox recovery ratio may be reassessed at such time as there is an 


independent, stable source of funding to cover a significant portion of the agency’s 


operating costs. 


• Support achievement of other financial policy goals of the agency, such as the 


Caltrain Reserve Policy. 


• Maintain fare products and collection methods that are cost-effective and easy for 


the agency to administer. 


 


Equity 


• Advocate for and participate in State and regional programs that make it more 


affordable for low-income customers to use transit. 


• Strive for consistency across fare products in the revenue generated per passenger and 


per passenger mile. 


• Comply, at a minimum, with federal requirements for providing fare discounts, and 


for minimizing disparate impacts on minority riders and disproportionate burdens on 


low-income riders. 


 


Customer Experience 


• Strive for a fare system, including strategy, products, and pricing, that is easy for 


customers to understand and use. 


• Provide predictable and incremental fare changes. 


• Encourage intermodal connections and consistency with the agency’s Comprehensive 


Access Policy. 


• Seek integration with and participate in State and regional fare programs. 


 


Ridership 


• Support achievement of the agency’s goals on ridership. 


• Maximize the use of the agency’s infrastructure assets. 


• Consider structuring fares to incentivize rider behavior in support of the agency’s 


policy. 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-6 


 


Golden Gate Transit.  To help address projected operating deficits, Golden Gate 


Transit has carried out a series of “Five-Year Transit Fare Increase Programs,” with the 


next five-year program effective from FY18 to FY22 as approved by the Golden Gate 


Bridge, Highway and Transportation District Board in March 2017.   


 


General goals of the fare program include: 


• Contribute toward reducing the Five-Year $51 million deficit 


• Maintain annual fare increases 


• Respond to public comments about certain fares being too high 


• Better match fare revenue generation with operating costs for all routes 


• Align Sausalito and Tiburon Ferry Fares due to the similarities in service 


 


The fare program maintains Golden Gate’s past practice of annual fare increases for 


all Golden Gate Transit bus and ferry service. The fare increases allow the bus and 


ferry divisions to continue recovering an appropriate percentage of their annual 


operating expenses through fares. The Board previously adopted a 25% farebox 


recovery goal for regional buses and a 40% farebox recovery goal for ferries. 


Recently, regional buses have been very close to achieving this target on average, but 


several routes are below the 25% target. The increases will bring these routes more 


closely in alignment with the goal. The five-year program increases most Clipper bus 


fares between $0.20 and $0.40 per year. Golden Gate Ferry consistently meets its 


40% farebox recovery target, so no change is necessary to this target. The goal of the 


five-year program is to standardize the fares for Sausalito and Tiburon ferry service, 


which are similar services, gradually over time. 


 


SFMTA.  To help ensure financial stability, SFMTA has adopted an Automatic Indexing 


Implementation Plan (AIIP) for adjusting fares.  The AIIP includes the following as the 


policy of the SFMTA Board of Directors: 


• To create a more predictable and transparent mechanism for setting charges which are 


not otherwise governed by law 


• To apply the following methodology for indexing charges: 


o Automatic Inflator = [Bay Area CPI-U ÷ 2] + [2-year Operating Budget Labor 


Cost Change ÷ 2] where the Bay Area CPI-U forecast used will be from the 


California Department of Finance; and 


o Round up the Automatic Inflator to the nearest $0.25, $0.50 or $1.00 depending 


on which is appropriate given the base charge and ensure that the rounding 


impact does not result in more than a 10% increase 


• To re-evaluate, during the SFMTA Budget process, the adequacy of the Automatic 


Inflator 


• Conduct a public hearing or public notification during the SFMTA Budget process to 


inform the public about the proposed Automatic Inflator 


• To set the Automatic Inflator for a two-year period concurrently with the two-year 


SFMTA Operating Budget 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-7 


 


• To reserve the right to forego an Automatic Inflator if the SFMTA Budget projections 


allow 


• To reserve the right to set a higher Automatic Inflator if required or to set a different 


Automatic Inflator for each of the two years in the Operating Budget depending on 


the Operating Budget projections 


• To the extent that application of the AIIP results in an increase in transit fares, such 


an increase must be submitted to the San Francisco Board of Supervisors as part of 


the SFMTA's budget or as a budget amendment pursuant to Charter section 


8A.108(a). 


 


VTA.  In December 2018, the VTA Board of Directors unanimously approved 


recommendations to address VTA’s immediate and long-term financial challenges. VTA 


is facing a $20 million structural deficit in FY18 and $26 million in FY19. 


 


One of the Board-approved recommendations is to index fares to inflation.  VTA had not 


raised fares since 2009 when it increased fares in January 2018.  Over this time of no fare 


increases, VTA’s operating expenses grew by 37% and its farebox ratio declined to 


approximately 11%.  To help better line up fare revenues with service delivery costs, the 


recommendation is for the Board to consider a Fare Policy that indexes certain fares to 


inflation.  Depending on the impacted fare categories, this recommendation could result 


in an additional $2 million per year initially, with the annual amount growing over time. 


 


PEER AGENCIES 
The peer agencies used in this report are Long Island Railroad (commuter rail); MARTA 


(heavy rail); Metra (commuter rail); Metrolink (commuter rail); SEPTA (commuter rail); 


and WMATA Metrorail (heavy rail). BART has characteristics of both heavy rail and 


commuter rail. 


 


PEER AGENCY FARE STRUCTURE AND SYSTEM CHARACTERISTICS  
Fare structure and system characteristics of peer agencies are reported in the tables on the 


following pages, which are followed by discussion and charts comparing the peers and 


BART.  Fare structure data are as of January 1, 2019 and system characteristics data are 


from the 2017 National Transit Database. 
 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-8 


 


Peer Agencies: Fare Structure  


  


Peak Smart Card Peak Cash Off-Peak Monthly Weekly Day


BART
Heavy/  


Commuter


Point-to-Point 


Distance-


based


$2.00-$8.75; max 


airport fare: 


$16.15


Clipper fare plus 


$0.50 per trip
Same as peak. 62.5% 50% n/a n/a n/a Yes


Long Island RR 


New York
Commuter 


8 Zones 


Distance-


based


n/a $3.25-$29.25 $4.00-$21.251 50%


PM peak & off-


peak: $1 per 


child (up to 4 


children age 5-


11) w/adult; AM 


peak: 50% 


discount.


$96-$500 $29.75-$160 n/a No


Metra Chicago Commuter


12 Zones 


Distance-


based


n/a $4.00-$9.00 Same as peak. 50%


Full time 


students offered 


50% discount on 


one-way, 10-ride 


or monthly 


pass.4


$116-$261 n/a5 n/a Yes


SEPTA 


Philadelphia
Commuter 


5 Zones 


Distance-


based


Phasing in has 


begun of payment by 


SEPTA Key smart 


card.


$5.25-$10.00


$4.25-$10.00 


(evenings & 


weekends)


50%7 50% $105-$204
$28.25-


$55.75
$13-$18 No


WMATA 


Washington, DC
Heavy


Point-to-Point 


Distance-


based


$2.25-$6.00 n/a $2.00-$3.858 50% to peak 


fares


Riders age 5+ 


pay adult fares. 


Discounted 


student passes 


available for DC 


residents.


$72-$2169
$38.50-


$60.0010 $14.75 Yes


No


Senior/ 


Disabled 


Discount


Yes


Metrolink Los 


Angeles
Commuter 


Point-to-Point 


Distance-


based


All monthly passes 


& tickets & passes 


with LA County 


destinations are TAP 


smart card-enabled.


$1.25-$27.50 Same as peak. 25% $35-$462
$8.75-


$192.50


Has Fare Policy 


or Principles


Passes
Transit System 


Metro Area
Rail Mode


Fare Structure 


Type


Fare
Youth 


Discount


50%6


Same as peak.


Children 46 


inches and 


under ride for 


free with paying 


adult.


$953 $23.75


$10 


Weekend 


Day Pass


$9.00 60%MARTA Atlanta Heavy Flat2 $2.50 $2.50 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-9 


 


Peer Agencies: Fare Structure Footnotes 


 


  


1Long Island RR does not offer off-peak fares for all  trips. Off-peak fares shown correspond to peak fares of $5.50-$29.25. LIRR also offers 10-trip peak and off-peak tickets.
2MARTA has guiding fare principle to maintain flat fare policy with possible future consideration of variable-based fares.
3MARTA also offers 2-, 3-, and 4-day passes; 10- and 20-trip passes; and 30-day University Passes to students for $68.50 (28% discount) and faculty for $83.80 (12% discount) at 


participating schools.


5Metra also offers 10-ride fares from $38-$88.50 and $10 weekend passes good on Saturday and Sunday.


7In 2018, SEPTA eliminated $1 cash fare for seniors traveling within Pennsylvania; half fare for travel to/from New Jersey and Delaware remains in effect.
8WMATA peak is weekdays from opening to 9:30am and 3-7pm, and weekends midnight to closing.  All  other times are off-peak. 


6Metrolink's minimum fare is for trips of 1 mile and the maxium fare is for trips of 155 miles; Metrolink discount is 25% for passes for seniors and persons with disabilities.


4Children ages 7 to 11 get 50% discount to one-way Metra fare.


10WMATA $38.50 7-Day Short Trip Pass is activated the first time it is used. It is valid for seven consecutive days of unlimited rides for trips costing up to $3.85 when peak fares are in effect. During these times, if 


the trip costs more than $3.85, the additional charge will  be deducted from the smart card's stored value.


9Rider selects the WMATA Metrorail monthly pass price (from 17 price points ranging from $2 to $6) that works for them; patron rides Metro roundtrip for 18 days a month; after that additional trips within rider's 


price range are free; rider pays the difference between fare for trips outside of the pass price range.







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-10 


 


Peer Agencies: System Characteristics  


  


 
 


 


.


Trips 


(Unlinked, 


MIllions)


Miles 


(Millions)
Per Trip Per Mile


BART
Heavy/ 


Commuter
132.8 1,808.9 13.6 $484.8 $3.65 $0.27 $626.0 77.4% 1


MARTA         


Atlanta
Heavy 68.3 468.8 6.9 $76.5 $1.12 $0.16 $189.9 40.3%


Metra        


Chicago
Commuter 70.6 1,577.3 22.3 $355.3 $5.03 $0.23 $742.7 47.8%


Metrolink          


Los Angeles
Commuter 14.4 419.7 29.1 $83.4 $5.79 $0.20 $222.0 37.6%


SEPTA 


Philadelphia
Commuter 33.2 426.2 12.8 $137.0 $4.13 $0.32 $269.6 50.8%


WMATA 


Washington, DC
Heavy 227.1 1,326.3 5.8 $521.8 $2.30 $0.39 $992.6 52.6%


Avg Miles per 


Trip


Fare Revenue 


(Millions)


Average Fare


Source: 2017 National Transit Database


Transit System  


Metro Area


Long Island RR    


New York


1The 2017 NTD Rail Farebox Recovery Ratio includes only rail  operating expense and therefore excludes ADA and feeder/transfer agreement expenses, and may 


exclude certain accounting transactions.  


53.8%


Operating 


Expense 


(Millions)


Rail Farebox 


Recovery 


Ratio


Commuter 103.6 2,996.9 28.9 $733.0 $7.08 $0.24 $1,362.0


Rail Mode


Annual Passenger







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-11 


 


Rail Farebox Recovery Ratio 
Based on information from the 2017 National Transit Database, BART has the highest 


rail farebox recovery ratio at 77.4%2, with Caltrain coming in second at 72.6%.  Although 


WMATA is most like BART with a distance-based fare structure, its rail farebox 


recovery ratio is 52.6%.  MARTA’s flat fare structure has the second lowest recovery 


ratio at 40.3%; one of MARTA’s guiding fare principles is maintenance of a flat-fare 


policy with possible consideration in the future of variable-based fares.  Metrolink reports 


the lowest ratio of 37.6% even though it replaced its zone system with a distance-based 


structure to generate more revenue.   


 


  
Source:  2017 National Transit Database 


 
Fare per Trip 
BART’s average fare per trip of $3.65 as shown in the chart on the next page falls within 


the lower half of the peer agencies.  Long Island Railroad has the highest average fare per 


trip at $7.80. MARTA with its flat fare has the lowest average fare per trip at $1.12. 


                                                


2 The 2017 NTD Farebox Recovery Ratio includes only rail operating expense and therefore excludes 


ADA and feeder/transfer agreement expenses, and may exclude certain accounting transactions.   


 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


Metrolink MARTA Metra SEPTA WMATA Long
Island RR


Caltrain BART


Rail Farebox Recovery Ratio







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-12 


 


 
Source:  2017 National Transit Database 


 
Fare per Passenger Mile 
BART’s average fare per passenger mile is $0.27, which is in the upper half of the peer 


agencies.  WMATA’s is most expensive at $0.39 per mile.  


 


 
Source:  2017 National Transit Database 


  


  


$0


$1


$2


$3


$4


$5


$6


$7


$8


MARTA WMATA BART SEPTA Caltrain Metra Metrolink Long
Island RR


Average Fare Per Trip


$0.00


$0.05


$0.10


$0.15


$0.20


$0.25


$0.30


$0.35


$0.40


$0.45


MARTA Metrolink Caltrain Metra Long
Island RR


BART SEPTA WMATA


Average Fare per Mile







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-13 


 


 


Miles per Trip 
WMATA’s average miles per Metro trip is the lowest in the group at 5.8 miles; by 


comparison, BART’s average miles per trip is 13.6. 


 


   
Source:  2017 National Transit Database 


 


 


PEER AGENCIES: FARE POLICY/PRINCIPLES/PROGRAMS 
Three of the six peer agencies have fare policies and/or fare principles, as described 


below.  The table below highlights agencies’ methods noted in their fare policy/program 


for increasing fares, and it is followed by main points from existing policies, principles, 


and programs. 


 
Fare Increase Methods from Policy/Program 


 
 


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


WMATA MARTA SEPTA BART Caltrain Metra Long
Island RR


Metrolink


Average Miles per Trip


MARTA Metra WMATA


Atlanta Chicago Washington


Uses Productivity-


Adjusted Inflation-


based increase 


percentage 


Has state-


mandated policy 


for fares to cover 


no less than 35% 


of operating 


expenses; may 


consider variable 


based fares in the 


future


Considers regular 


fare adjustments, 


including to keep 


pace with inflation


 Has 2007 policy 


of biennial fare 


adjustments tied to 


CPI


BART







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-14 


 


MARTA has a state-mandated fare policy that calls for fares to contribute to covering no 


less than 35% of operating costs.  To comply with this policy, MARTA’s Board adopted 


the following seven “guiding principles” for its fare structure: 


1. Maintenance of a flat-fare policy with free transfers, when rides are purchased 


with Breeze media.  This principle will remain in effect at least until after regional 


fare studies have been completed. Pending the recommendations of these studies, 


variable based fares may be considered in the future. 


2. Maximization of ridership through maintaining the satisfaction of current riders 


plus attracting new riders. 


3. Maximization of revenue through encouragement of stored time period purchases. 


4. Provision of rewards for frequent ridership through discounted fare media for 


multi-trip purchases. 


5. Satisfaction of Title VI principles governing the equitable application of fares so 


as not to disproportionately burden, or disparately impact, protected populations. 


6. Meaningful public engagement in the decision-making process for fare policy 


development and future fare changes. 


7. This Fare Policy does not intentionally mandate a change in Fare Structure.  


Under the guidance of the General Manager, MARTA will, when appropriate, 


evaluate in good faith the need for any fare changes, based on the budgetary 


constraints of the Agency.  All Fare Structure changes will be subject to approval 


by the MARTA Board. 


 


Metra’s current seven principles for fare policy are the following:   


 


1. Consider regular fare adjustments that ensure a balanced budget, sustain service, keep 


pace with inflation, and avoid significant, infrequent fare increases  


2. Allow no diversion of capital eligible funds to the operating budget  


3. Acknowledge the total value of providing services to the region’s economy while 


recognizing that fares must cover a percentage of operating costs, as set by the RTA, 


and support Metra’s capital program  


4. Understand the short and long term impacts of fare changes on ridership and revenue 


as well as the time and resources needed to implement them  


5. Improve fare collection by simplifying the overall process and transportation costs  


6. Offer a fare structure and policies that are easy to use and understand by offering fare 


structure and products that are regionally equitable and appeal to current and 


prospective customers  


7. Evaluate impacts of cooperative opportunities on fare structure, products, pricing and 


policies of our local transit partners and evaluate national peer programs that have 


stimulated ridership 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-15 


 


Metra has completed a fare study to develop a fare structure that addresses the Metra 


Board’s fare principles and can effectively be adaptable to future business needs.  In May 


2018, the Metra Board directed staff to move forward and pilot the following 


recommendations from the fare study: 


• Consolidate Zones K and M (there is no Zone L) into Zone J, thereby capping 


fares for trips that exceed 45 miles. 


• Reassign some stations to different zones to adjust perceived inconsistencies 


between lines where nearby stations are in different zones. 


• Introduce “Round Trip Plus,” a day pass for unlimited travel between any two 


zones, available only on the Ventra App, priced at twice the cost of a One-Way 


Ticket. 


Metrolink has no formal fare policy or principles.  However, in 2004-2005, modifications 


to Metrolink ticket vending machines made it possible to accommodate a more complex, 


mileage-based, station-to-station fare structure. In July 2005, the SCRRA Board made the 


decision to replace the zone-based fare structure with a mileage-based one, eliminating 


the “fare inequities” caused by the zoned fares. The change was implemented in 10 stages 


in order to minimize the impacts on riders’ fares in any given year.  Metrolink completed 


the transitioned to a distance-based fare structure in 2015. 


 


SEPTA.  Although there is no formal fare increase policy, SEPTA does follow a 


recommendation from a 2006 Pennsylvania Transportation Funding and Reform 


Commission report that Commonwealth transit agencies review fare revenue policy on a 


regular basis (minimum every two years) and make adjustments to ensure that passenger 


revenue is increasing in line with inflation. SEPTA’s informal policy is to increase fares 


every three years and seek to match the rate of inflation or slightly higher, depending on 


the level of subsidy support from state and local government.   


 


WMATA.  In 2007, WMATA established a policy of biennial fare adjustments tied to the 


consumer price index.  Fares have been increased since 2007 but, for various reasons, the 


schedule set out in the policy has not been followed exactly. 


 


In 2010, the WMATA Board adopted seven fare policy principles to refer to when 


evaluating adjustments to WMATA’s passenger fares and fare structures, as follows:   


1. Ensure and enhance customer satisfaction;  


2. Establish a mechanism to allow customers to determine their fares easily;  


3. Optimize the use of existing capacity;  


4. Establish equitable fares and ensure compliance with federal regulations;  


5. Facilitate movement between modes and operators throughout the region;  


6. Encourage the use of cost-effective media;  


7. Generate adequate revenue while maximizing ridership.  


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


3-16 


 


WMATA staff is currently reviewing these principles for relevancy.  Since the principles 


were adopted, transportation options have changed, including the introduction of 


transportation network companies (TNCs) and increased bike-sharing. 


 
 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


4-1 


 


4 FARE-RELATED BART POLICIES: 
FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY AND 
FARE POLICY 


 


BART has two fare-related policies—the Financial Stability Policy and Fare Policy—that 


have helped guide decision-making, especially during challenging economic times.  The 


next sections provide the context and history of these policies.   


 


FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY 
At the time the Financial Stability Policy was created, fare policy and structure were 


topical because BART’s ridership and sales tax revenue were dropping dramatically.  The 


severity of the budget shortfall for 2003 and the foreseeable future alerted BART of the 


need to carefully examine all opportunities to match revenues to system requirements.  


BART extensions also brought various fare elements into focus, including the Transbay, 


San Mateo County and Colma surcharges.  Finally, there was a need to link fare policy 


with the goals of the Strategic Plan adopted by the BART Board in 1999.  In 2003, staff 


presented to the Board a fare policy framework as part of a fare structure report.  At that 


time the Board was also informed about BART’s challenging financial outlook.   


 


In that time of economic uncertainty, Board members discussed the usefulness of an 


overarching financial management policy to guide budget decisions.  More specifically, 


directors expressed an interest in addressing BART’s then overall structural budget 


imbalance through a combination of strategies involving revenues, operating expenses, 


capital investments, and prudent reserves. 


 


In response to this direction, staff expanded the fare policy framework into a broader 


framework designed to ensure long term operating and capital financial stability.  The 


result was the Financial Stability Policy, adopted by the Board on March 27, 2003.   


 


The Financial Stability Policy includes these fare-related goals: 


▪ Goal C.  Preserve and maximize BART’s fare revenue base, through a 


predictable pattern of adjustments, while retaining ridership.   


▪ Goal D.  Provide a fare and fee structure that is tied to the cost of providing 


service, optimizes use of the BART system, and provides BART customers 


with convenience, ease of use, and a good value for the money. 


 


Financial Stability Policy strategies include the following for fares: 


1. To the extent revenue increases are needed as one part of a program to preserve 


BART’s revenue base and financial stability, tie passenger revenue increases to 


service costs and system needs with particular consideration to: 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


4-2 


 


o Aligning fares with CPI-based cost growth. 


o Small regular fare increases tied to CPI-based cost increases or other major 


cost factors and to factors such as significant change in other revenues and 


productivity. 


o Small surcharges tied to capital needs such as rehabilitation or seismic retrofit. 


o A peak premium, at some point in the future when ridership is growing, tied to 


the need to optimize off-peak system use and to fund core system capacity 


improvements. 


2. Increase customer satisfaction, when economically and technologically feasible, 


by giving consideration to: 


o Increasing discounts for high-value tickets to mitigate the impact of fare 


increases on regular BART riders. 


o Developing new interoperator and interagency partnerships to increase transit 


access. 


o Developing innovative partnership programs with major employers, 


educational institutions, and other rider generators. 


o Using time-limited passes to market BART for special events, weekends, and 


families, evaluating the impact on ridership of each pass program. 


 


The full text of the policy is in Appendix B. 


 


The Financial Stability Policy laid the foundation for the Board to approve two series of 


biennial Productivity-Adjusted Consumer Price Index-Based fare increases.  The first 


series was from 2006 to 2012. The second series has had three increases to date, which 


took effect in January 2014, 2016 and 2018.  The contributions from these small, regular 


increases have been essential to the District’s financial and operational well-being.  


Another fare change supported by the Financial Stability Policy--small surcharges tied to 


capital needs--was implemented in 2006, when the Board approved a 10-cent capital 


surcharge applied to all trips within the three-county District, including Daly City. 


 


FARE POLICY 
The next step in BART’s fare-related policymaking was the adoption of the Fare Policy.  


The starting point for the policy was a requirement in the inflation-based fare increase 


program resolution.  The resolution stated that prior to the first CPI-based fare increase, 


the Board would review and consider the fare structure. 


 


This process included a Fare Structure Review Board workshop held in August 2005.  A 


goal of the workshop was to build consensus for any changes or additions to Financial 


Stability Policy fare goals and strategies.  At the workshop, the Board discussed a variety 


of fare-related issues, including the basis for the fare structure, optimizing system usage, 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


4-3 


 


and monthly passes.  The next steps after the workshop were for staff to develop a Fare 


Policy and options for a pass program.3  


 


On November 17, 2005, the Board adopted BART’s Fare Policy.  The Policy’s statement 


of purpose highlights the influence of fares on multiple interconnected areas: customer 


satisfaction, ridership growth, financial health, seamless interagency travel, and optimal 


system usage.   The Policy has five goals, each with strategies to achieve them, to address 


the interconnected areas.  The full text of the Fare Policy is in Appendix C. 


 


One example of strategy implementation that supports a Policy goal (Goal B) is the 


Higher Education Discount Program (HEDP).  This program is designed to increase 


ridership while meeting the goals of the District’s Financial Stability Policy.  The HEDP 


is described in Sections 1 and 2 of this report. 


 


Another example of Policy impact concerns the Policy’s goal (Goal C) to maintain and 


improve the District’s financial health.  This goal includes a strategy that has been 


consistently considered in decision-making: achieving an operating ratio of at least 62%.  


Since the Policy’s adoption, BART has significantly exceeded this benchmark. 


 


 


                                                


In 2006, staff presented to the Board a report on options for a monthly pass that found passes can increase 


ridership but reduce fare revenue, as most riders buy a pass when it results in cost-savings for them, and the fare 


revenue lost from offering a discount would not be offset by the fare revenue generated by new pass trips. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


 


Appendix A BART Act Rates and Charges 
Section 


The following language is from Section 29038 of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid 


Transit District Act: 


“The rates and charges for service furnished pursuant to this part 


shall be fixed by a two-thirds vote of the board and shall be 


reasonable.  Insofar as practicable, the rates shall be fixed so as to 


result in revenue which will be sufficient to do all of the following: 


a. Pay the operating expenses of the district. 


b. Provide for repairs, maintenance, and depreciation of works owned or 


operated by the district. 


c. Provide for the purchase, lease, or acquisition of rolling stock, including 


provisions for interest, sinking funds, reserve funds, or other funds 


required for the payment of any obligations incurred by the district for the 


acquisition of rolling stock. 


d. After making any current allocation of funds required for the foregoing 


purposes and by the terms of any indebtedness incurred under Articles 6 


(commencing with Section 29240) and 7 (commencing with Section 


29250) of Chapter 8, provide funds for any purpose the board deems 


necessary and desirable to carry out the purposes of this part.” 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


 


Appendix B Financial Stability Policy 
 


FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY 


ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MARCH 21, 2003 
 


The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has an important responsibility to its 


riders and the citizens of the Bay Area to wisely manage the District’s finances in both 


the short and long term.  In times of economic change and uncertainty, it is especially 


important for the District to make sure its ability to deliver service rests on a strong and 


stable financial foundation.  To this end, the following are the District’s financial stability 


goals and strategies for achieving those goals.  


A. Maintain an operating and capital financial base that is sufficient to deliver safe, 


quality service efficiently and cost-effectively to meet the level of demand. 


B. Continuously improve productivity. 


C. Preserve and maximize BART's fare revenue base, through a predictable pattern 


of adjustments, while retaining ridership. 


D. Provide a fare and fee structure that is tied to the cost of providing service, 


optimizes use of the BART system, and provides BART customers with 


convenience, ease of use, and a good value for the money. 


E. Establish and maintain prudent reserves sufficient to ensure that the District can 


adjust to economic downturns. 


F. Maintain the highest possible credit rating and reputation for prudent financial 


management. 


Operating Expenses 


a) Adjust operating expenses as needed to reflect changes in service demand, 


technology, and productivity. 


b) Endeavor to keep growth in rail operating expenses (as measured by a rolling 


average of growth in rail operating cost per passenger mile) at or below the rate of 


inflation by: 


▪ Implementing technology and productivity advancements designed to reduce 


or avoid increasing operational costs. 


▪ Exploring greater efficiency, effectiveness, and increased ridership. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


 


▪ Working to increase and optimize ridership on the BART system through 


partnerships that foster transit oriented development and improve access to the 


BART system. 


c) Regularly review productivity improvement programs and results as part of the 


annual budget process. 


Capital Investment 


a) Pursue grant funding for BART capital projects pursuant to priorities as addressed 


in the Capital Improvement Program. 


b) Adopt an annual budget that includes an allocation to capital programs adequate 


to meet annual baseline reinvestment needs for programs which are essential to 


ensure system performance but not likely to receive grant funds.  Such funding 


should also be available for local match to grants and for unforeseen needs and 


emergencies. 


c) Use debt financing prudently to leverage local, regional, state, and federal funding 


for major cyclical capital investments such as transit vehicle, escalator and 


elevator, fare collection equipment, and train control renovation and replacement. 


Fares and Other Revenues 


To the extent revenue increases are needed as one part of a program to preserve BART’s 


revenue base and financial stability, tie passenger revenue increases to service costs and 


system needs with particular consideration to: 


▪ Aligning fares with CPI-based cost growth. 


▪ Small regular fare increases tied to CPI-based cost increases or other major 


cost factors and to factors such as significant change in other revenues and 


productivity. 


▪ Small surcharges tied to capital needs such as rehabilitation or seismic retrofit. 


▪ A peak premium, at some point in the future when ridership is growing, tied to 


the need to optimize off-peak system use and to fund core system capacity 


improvements. 


Increase customer satisfaction, when economically and technologically feasible, by 


giving consideration to: 


▪ Increasing discounts for high-value tickets to mitigate the impact of fare 


increases on regular BART riders. 


▪ Developing new interoperator and interagency partnerships to increase transit 


access. 


▪ Developing innovative partnership programs with major employers, 


educational institutions, and other rider generators. 


▪ Using time-limited passes to market BART for special events, weekends, and 


families, evaluating the impact on ridership of each pass program. 


Increase revenue from other sources such as parking, advertising, concessions, and joint 


development while meeting customer needs and providing safe, reliable service. 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


 


Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 


a) Maintain a prudent reserve to be used in times of significant revenue decline to 


preserve the District’s ongoing ability to deliver safe and reliable service to the 


customer and to reinvest in capital. 


b) Adopt a Short Range Transit Plan that builds the reserve to at least 5% of total 


annual operating expenses by funding regular contributions to the reserve.  


 


Strategy b) under “Reserve for Economic Uncertainty” was replaced in October 2014 by 


Board Resolution No. 5281, as follows: 


“Increase the Reserve for Economic Uncertainty from 5% of total 


annual operating expenses ($33 million) to 15% or $89 million for the 


current fiscal year. This increase yields a reserve fund goal which 


more closely matches a single month of District Expenses. The District 


shall also follow the "Best Practices" of the industry by installing an 


automatic funding mechanism. The funding of the reserve would be 


accomplished through a requirement to transfer 50% of any annual 


year-end positive result, up to $3.5 million, until the reserve is fully 


funded.  


The aforementioned reserve balance may be accessed only upon a 


finding that its Use is necessary to provide either 1) emergency 


funding in the event of a major adverse natural event, Or .2) to 


supplement the budget due to an economic downturn and no other 


funding options are deemed feasible, as determined by the Board of 


Directors. Either action shall require a Board Resolution making the 


necessary findings supported by a majority of the full board.” 


 







BART Fare Structure Report 
January 2019 


 


Appendix C Fare Policy 
  


 








Board Workshop 2019


Horizon 2027
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


The 2027 BART Customer Experience







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


BART Efforts:
• Mobility as a Service (MaaS) / BART 


digital experience (website / mobile)
• Clipper II deployment
• Equity


– Youth fare discount program
– 35% Affordable in TOD housing


• Station Access: First & Last Mile
• “Rail ‘Round the Bay”


– Planning Phase of Second Crossing
– Silicon Valley Extension


Choosing BART


By 2027: WIDER, MORE CONVENIENT, AND MORE SEAMLESS CUSTOMER REACH


Edited from Reddit u/lojic







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


STATION Experience


BART Efforts:


• Canopies
– 24 new canopies installed for 


Market St. escalators


• Escalators
– 41 new platform and street 


escalators installed along Market St.


• Quality of Life Betterments
– Homelessness
– Cleanliness
– Fare Evasion Hardening + New Fare 


Gates
– Safety and Security


By 2027: CLEANER, SAFER, AND NICER STATIONS WITH UPGRADED FACILITIES







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


Journey on TRAIN
Appearance & Environment


BART Efforts:


• Transbay Core Capacity


• Fleet of the Future
– 1200 new cars (vs 669 currently)
– All 10 car trains


• Computer Based Train Control (CBTC)
– Train Control: 30 trains/hr (Transbay)


• WiFi on Train


• More sustainable: 90% of BART’s electric 
energy needs from renewable sources


By 2027: MORE CAPACITY, IMPROVED RELIABILITY


StreetsBlogSF StreetsBlogSF







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Journey on TRAIN


BART Efforts:


• More trains: 35% more peak Transbay 
seats


• More frequent: 12 min headways (vs 15 
min currently) on some lines


• More reliable: Measure RR
– Renew Track
– Renew Power
– Repair Tunnels & Structures
– Renew Mechanical
– Relieve Crowding


• Reliability: Earthquake Safety – Tube 
Retrofit


By 2027: MORE CAPACITY, IMPROVED RELIABILITY


System Performance







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


The 2027 BART Customer Experience


Wider, More Convenient, 
More Seamless Customer Reach


Cleaner, Safer, Nicer 
Stations


More Train Capacity, 
Improved Reliability


• BART Apps
• Clipper II
• Youth Fare Discount
• Affordable Housing in TOD
• MaaS
• First & Last Mile
• “Rail ‘Round the Bay”


• Canopies
• Escalators
• Quality of Life Betterments


• Fleet of the 
Future


• Core Capacity
• Improved 


Headways


• CBTC
• Measure RR
• Earthquake Safety
• WiFi on Train
• 90% Renewable







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


The 2027 BART Customer Experience


Improvements to:
Station Condition and Cleanliness
Train Condition and Cleanliness
Safety and Security







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Discussion





		Horizon 2027

		The 2027 BART Customer Experience

		Choosing BART

		STATION Experience

		Journey on TRAIN

		Journey on TRAIN

		The 2027 BART Customer Experience

		The 2027 BART Customer Experience

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


State of the RegionState of the Region
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


1. State of the Economy


2. State of the Region


3. Drivers in 2019


4. Discussion


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


State of the Economy: Bay 
Area Outperforms Other Regions


“Continuing Growth, Unparalleled Innovation,” Bay Area Economic Institute, July 2018







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


October 2018 growth: 


State of the Economy: Bay 
Area at “Full Employment”







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


State of the Economy: Wages 
Higher in West, South Bay







Board Workshop 2019 | 5
Source: MTC Workshop – November 28, 2018


West Bay


East 
Bay


State of the Economy: Housing 
Production Far Short of Demand







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


State of the Economy: Housing 
Production Falls Far Short of Regional Need


Source: MTC CASA Compact – December, 2018







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


State of the Region: Statewide 
Climate Goals Not Being Met


CA Air Resources 
Board 2018 Progress 
Report: Rise in CA 
vehicle miles traveled, 
and regions are far off 
the mark of their own 
climate goals


Greenhouse gases fell 
by 2% last year, due 
to improved fuel 
efficiency


Source: California Air Resources Board, 2018 Progress Report, California Sustainable 
Communities and Climate Protection Act – November, 2018







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


State of the Region in Sum: 
BART plays increasingly critical role


• Transbay and South Bay 
connections are critical to 
regional economy:


• Widening wealth gap and jobs-
housing imbalance in San Francisco 
& Silicon Valley vs. East Bay


• Housing costs affecting recruiting 
efforts for BART & other 
employers


• Longer regional commutes, need 
for transit options vs. driving


• Households driving more, traffic 
worsening


Vehicle 
Wear & 


Tear
$9.31 


Bridge Toll
$6.00 


Parking 
$18.00 


Parking $3 


Gas $7.01 


Round-Trip 
Fare, 


$12.90 


 $-


 $5.00


 $10.00


 $15.00


 $20.00


 $25.00


 $30.00


 $35.00


 $40.00


 $45.00


Driving BART


Commuting Round-Trip from 
Concord to Embarcadero Station







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


Drivers in 2019


• Political & economic uncertainty
• New state resources


• Senate Bill 1 / Prop 6 failure
• Senate Bill 2
• Propositions 1 & 2 (Housing & TOD)
• Stable cap and trade auction proceeds


• New opportunities
• Political shift and new governor
• Growing emphasis on regionalism
• Commitment to addressing housing 


crisis SCPR.org







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Discussion





		State of the Region

		Agenda

		State of the Economy: Bay Area Outperforms Other Regions

		State of the Economy: Bay Area at “Full Employment”

		State of the Economy: Wages Higher in West, South Bay

		State of the Economy: Housing Production Far Short of Demand

		State of the Economy: Housing Production Falls Far Short of Regional Need

		State of the Region: Statewide Climate Goals Not Being Met

		State of the Region in Sum: BART plays increasingly critical role

		Drivers in 2019

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


Financial Outlook
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


Agenda


1. Long Range Financial Outlook


2. Pension Overview


3. CPI-based Fare Program Overview


4. Discussion







Board Workshop 2019


Long Range 
Financial Outlook







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


Long Range Financial Outlook 
Agenda


• Operating Financial Outlook
• Uses
• Sources 


• Capital Financial Outlook
• Summary of Capital Programs
• Sources of Capital Funding
• Capital Budget Forecast


• Summary







Board Workshop 2019


Operating Financial 
Outlook







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Uses of Operating Funds


 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Uses of Funds FY19-28 ($ Millions)


Planned Allocations to Capital


Cost of planned core system
service improvements


Cost of Silicon Valley service


Cost of current service level


Cost of debt service







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Uses of Operating Funds


 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Uses vs. Forecast Sources FY19-28 ($ Millions)


Planned Allocations to Capital


Cost of planned core system
service improvements


Cost of Silicon Valley service


Cost of current service level


Cost of debt service


Revenue Forecast


-$327M







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


Uses of Operating Funds


 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Uses vs. Forecast Sources ($ Millions)


Planned Allocations to
Capital


Cost of planned core system
service improvements


Cost of Silicon Valley service


Cost of current service level


Cost of debt service


Revenue Forecast


Revenue Forecast (fares not
adjusted for inflation)


-$327M


-$602M







Board Workshop 2019 | 8 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Uses of Funds ($ Millions)


Planned Allocations to Capital


Cost of planned core system
service improvements


Cost of Silicon Valley service


Cost of current service level


Cost of debt service


Service Changes
Begin Transbay 
Tube Retrofit/


5AM Start End 5 AM Start / 
Begin 15-min off 
peak headways


12 Minute 
Headways/


Core


12 Minute 
Headways/System wide


Begin SVRT 
Phase 2


Begin SVRT 
Phase 1







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


$177 $190 $195 $200 $216 $223 $230 $249 $263 $271 


$561 
$635 $668 $699 


$742 $757 $781 
$834 


$909 $940 


 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Labor and Non-Labor Cost Forecast


Allocations


Labor


Non-Labor


Cost of debt service


Uses of Operating Funds:
Labor/Benefits & Non-Labor


Labor cost drivers include:
• Labor contracts
• Increased service = more staff
• Aging fleet as new cars phase-in
• Increased benefit costs, 


including pension


Beyond forecast, additional pressures 
on expense may include: 
• Police staffing
• Safety/security
• Quality of Life investment







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Uses of Operating Funds:
Operating Allocations


 $-


 $20


 $40


 $60


 $80


 $100


 $120


 $140


 $160


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Operating Allocations


Additional Pension Funding


Priority Capital Programs


Other Allocations


SFO Operations/New Car Allocation


Stations/Access Projects


Additional State of Good Repair


Baseline Capital Allocation







Board Workshop 2019 | 11
 $-


 $200


 $400


 $600


 $800


 $1,000


 $1,200


 $1,400


 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  FY27  FY28


Forecast Revenue vs. Expense + Allocations ($ Millions)


Fares
Other Operating Revenue
Financial Assistance
Property Tax
Sales Tax
Expense + debt service + allocations


Operating Revenue Summary


Fare revenue represents 
about 1/2 of operating 
revenue, covering about 
2/3 of rail operating 
expense







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


M
ill


io
ns


Total Monthly Exits (millions)


12 Month Moving Avg


Economic Recessions


Ridership Trends







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


Ridership Trends


40


45


50


55


60


65


70


FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18


M
ill


io
ns


Peak vs Non-Peak Trip Trends (Total Annual)


Peak Trips Non-Peak (All days)







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


Ridership Trends


NYCMTA - New York


SEPTA - Philadelphia


WMATA - Washington DC


MBTA - Boston
MARTA - Atlanta


CTA - Chicago


BART


0.8


0.85


0.9


0.95


1


1.05


1.1


1.15


2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Peer Agency Ridership Trends
(Unlinked Passenger Trips 12 Month Moving Average Indexed to Jan 2014)







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


SRTP: Projected Operating 
Shortfalls


FY19 SRTP: Annual Financial Result (millions)







Board Workshop 2019


Capital Financial 
Outlook







Board Workshop 2019 | 17


FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program


Total Need $22.4
Total Funding $12.4
Secure Funding $9.3
Competitive / Not Secure Funding $3.1
Unfunded Needs $10.0


FY19 CIP: 15-Year Capital Financial Outlook ($B)







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


 -


 500


 1,000


 1,500


 2,000


 2,500


 3,000


 3,500


 4,000


 4,500
FY19-33 CIP: Funding Status by Program Area


Secure Funding  Competitive Funding  Funding Gap


FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program


Total Need: $22.4B


Funding/Planned Investment: $12.4B 
Committed/Secure: $9.3B


Competitive/Not Secure: $3.1B


Unfunded Need: $10.0B







Board Workshop 2019 | 19


 -


 500


 1,000


 1,500


 2,000


 2,500


 3,000


 3,500


 4,000


 4,500
FY19-33 CIP: Funding by Category


BART - Measure RR Bond BART Federal Local State Regional Funding Gap


FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program


Total Need: $22.4B


Funding/Planned Investment: $12.4B 
Measure RR: $3.3B


Federal: $2.4B
Regional: $2.3B


Other BART: $2.0B
Local: $1.6B
State: $0.7B


Unfunded Need: $10.0B







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Financial Outlook Summary


• Challenging operating financial outlook:
• Near term operating deficits
• Fare revenue uncertainty
• Capital allocations put pressure on operating bottom line
• Potential Additional pressure on operating expenses


• Staffing for planned service improvements


• Additional police officers


• Quality of Life programs


• Safety & Security investments


• Fire & Life Safety compliance


• Pension costs







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Financial Outlook Summary


• Capital program scaling up - RR Program is 
underway


• Large rail car payments planned


• Challenges include:
• Timing of major project cash flows


• Strong economy = high contract construction bids 


• Long term funding gap







Board Workshop 2019


Retiree Medical 
and 


Pension Benefits







Board Workshop 2019 | 23


1. Other Post Employment Benefits: Retiree 
Medical


2. Pension Benefits


3. Additional Pension Funding


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


• Medical coverage is governed by the Public 
Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act 
(PEMHCA).


• Combination of HMOs (Kaiser, Health Net, etc.) and 
PPOs (Administered by Anthem Blue Cross).


• Retirees and eligible dependents under age 65 are 
enrolled in the same plans available to active 
employees.  Retirees and dependents who are 
eligible must enroll in Medicare Part B.


Other Post Employment Benefit 
(OPEB) Retiree Medical Benefit







Board Workshop 2019 | 25


Retiree Medical Contribution 
Eligibility


• The District and Labor worked collaboratively (through legislation) to implement a 
graduated scale for retiree medical coverage for employees hired after 2014.


• Employee must retire within 120 days of separation to be eligible for retiree 
medical coverage.







Board Workshop 2019 | 26


How is OPEB:
Retiree Medical Funded?







Board Workshop 2019 | 27


Retiree & Employer Contribution


• Retirees pay the same amount as active employees 
based on negotiated rates.


• District contributions are based on an annual actuarial 
valuation by the District’s actuary.







Board Workshop 2019 | 28


• Current discount rate (rate of return) is 6.5%.


• Average rate of return over last 10 years is 7.0%.


• Controller/Treasurer determines investment policy 
including the asset allocation and discount rate.


• District is responsible for investment loss.


Investment Returns: Retiree 
Health Benefits Trust (“RHBT”)







Board Workshop 2019 | 29


• Investment Returns


• Policy Changes


• Demographics: District uses CalPERS’ data to 
project future behavior of BART employees/retirees


• Medical Trend Rates


• Changes in the Accounting Standards (e.g. Implied 
Subsidy)


What Impacts the 
Unfunded Liability?







Board Workshop 2019 | 30


• CalPERS premiums are community rated (blended based on entire 
pool).


• If premiums were based on age, retirees would pay higher 
premiums. 


• Therefore, younger employees are subsidizing older employees.  


• Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires agencies 
to recognize the difference on their books. 


Example:


What is an Implied Subsidy?







Board Workshop 2019 | 31


• OPEB Contribution Projection
• $39.5 Million in FY19
• Projected $65.7 Million in FY29


• Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL)
• $282 million at June 30, 2018


o Preliminary projections
o 6.5% discount rate (expected rate of return)


OPEB: Retiree Medical 
Contribution Projection







Board Workshop 2019 | 32


• Current funding status is 52%.


• As mentioned under Investments, the District established 
the RHBT to fund its OPEB liability.


• District and Labor agreed to fully fund the OPEB Retiree 
Medical liability by June 30, 2034.  


OPEB: Retiree Medical 
Funding Status & Funding Strategy







Board Workshop 2019 | 33


District Retirement Plans







Board Workshop 2019 | 34


Defined Benefit vs. 
Defined Contribution


• Retirement benefits are based on a specific formula
(Service Credit/Time x Age Factor x Final Compensation).


• Benefits are provided for life (providing plan is funded).
• Employer has a future liability.


Defined Benefit (Annuity)


• Retirement benefits are based on the retiree’s account balance 
(Contributions and Earnings on Investments).


• Benefits are provided until balance is exhausted.
• Employer has no future liability.


Defined Contribution (Savings Plan)







Board Workshop 2019 | 35


• No Social Security 


• PEPRA: Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013


CalPERS Retirement Formulas 







Board Workshop 2019 | 36


How is Pension Funded?







Board Workshop 2019 | 37


• Pension Contribution Projection
• $73.2 million in FY 19
• $86.8 million in FY 20
• Projected $136M in FY 29


• Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL)
• $682 million at June 30, 2017


o Most recent actuarial valuation
o 7.25% discount rate


Pension Contribution Projection







Board Workshop 2019 | 38


• Following is based on most recent public information.


Pension Contribution Projection







Board Workshop 2019 | 39


• In 2018, the Board was presented with two 
options to make additional pension payments:


• Option #1 - Make additional direct payments to 
CalPERS. 


• Option #2 - Establish Irrevocable Supplemental 
Pension (§115) Trust.


• Staff recommended Option #2.
• Trust would have similar parameters of Retiree 


Medical Trust.


Additional Pension Funding 
Discussion







Board Workshop 2019 | 40


Required Contributions During 
Peak Period


Pension and OPEB obligations are at their highest during FY 2028-34.


Annual Payments ($Millions)


The following are preliminary projections based on current assumptions.  Any 
changes, such as lower investment returns, can significantly increase these 
required contributions. 


Required FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34


Pension $ 130 $ 136 $ 142 $ 149 $ 147 $ 147 $ 144 
OPEB $ 63 $ 65 $ 67 $ 69 $ 71 $ 73 $ 76 
Total $ 193 $ 201 $ 209 $ 218 $ 218 $ 220 $ 219 







Board Workshop 2019 | 41


Required Contributions & 
Funding Concerns


• Combined required pension and OPEB retiree medical 
payments for FY19 is $135M.  


• This will increase by 71% in FY28 .
• This will increase by 95% in FY34.


• If CalPERS or RHBT investments do not meet the target rate 
of return, contribution rates will be higher than current 
projection.







Board Workshop 2019 | 42


Staff Recommendations


Pension Funding Recommendation:


Establish Irrevocable Supplemental Pension (§115) 
Trust and a Pension Funding Policy.


• Trust provides flexibility to respond to economic 
downturns and/or financial challenges.


• Board Policy will provide structure to ensure funds 
are used appropriately.







Board Workshop 2019 | 43


Summary & Discussion


• Retiree medical unfunded liability was negotiated to be 100% 
funded by June 30, 2034.


• OPEB Investments through Retiree Health Benefits Trust.


• Pension contributions are currently budgeted with additional 
funding set aside for increased funding.


• Staff has concerns about increases to required contributions for 
retiree medical and pension if target rate of returns are not met.


• Staff recommends establishing an Irrevocable Supplemental 
Pension 115 Trust and a Pension Funding Policy.







Board Workshop 2019


Fare Programs
Inflation-based Fare Increase Program and 
Low-Income Fare Discount Pilot Program







Board Workshop 2019 | 45


Inflation-based Program Overview


• Fares pay for approximately 2/3s of BART’s operating costs


• The Board approved a Productivity-Adjusted Inflation 
Based Fare Increase Program for financial stability and 
predictability at BART


• Starting in 2006, fares adjusted by less-than-inflation every two 
years


• Calculation: Average of national and Bay Area inflation over 2 
years, less one-half percent for BART productivity improvements


• Peer and local agencies also have policies/programs for 
implementing regular fare increases 







Board Workshop 2019 | 46


Inflation-based Program Policy 
Support


FINANCIAL STABILITY POLICY


• BART’s ability to deliver safe, reliable service rests on a strong and 
stable financial foundation 
• Goal:  Preserve and maximize BART's fare revenue base, through a 


pattern of predictable fare adjustments, while retaining ridership 
• Strategy: Aligning fares with CPI-based cost growth 


• Board adopted biennial productivity-adjusted inflation-based fare 
increase program in 2003, with first increase implemented in 2006


FARE POLICY
• Goal: Maintain and improve the District’s financial health, in 


accordance with BART’s Strategic Plan and Financial Stability Policy







Board Workshop 2019 | 47


Comparing BART Fares and 
Inflation


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


FY
72


FY
74


FY
76


FY
78


FY
80


FY
82


FY
84


FY
86


FY
88


FY
90


FY
92


FY
94


FY
96


FY
98


FY
00


FY
02


FY
04


FY
06


FY
08


FY
10


FY
12


FY
14


FY
16


FY
18


In
de


x


BART Fare 
Index


CPI Index*


*Average of CPI-W (SF/Oakland) and CPI-U (National), 
indexed to FY72


1972-2005
• Fare increases were large and irregular
• Revenue eroded during the long gaps 
• Large “catch up” increases then needed, including 


+30% in 1986 & +45% over 3 years (1995-97)







Board Workshop 2019 | 48


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


FY
72


FY
74


FY
76


FY
78


FY
80


FY
82


FY
84


FY
86


FY
88


FY
90


FY
92


FY
94


FY
96


FY
98


FY
00


FY
02


FY
04


FY
06


FY
08


FY
10


FY
12


FY
14


FY
16


FY
18


In
de


x


BART Fare 
Index


CPI Index*


*Average of CPI-W (SF/Oakland) and CPI-U (National), 
indexed to FY72


Comparing BART Fares and 
Inflation


2006 - Present 
Foundation of 


BART’s financial 
stability: 


Planned small, 
regular increases







Board Workshop 2019 | 49


Inflation-based Program Benefits


Program Series Use of Funds


Series 1: 2006-2012 Over this period, $290M in fare revenue went to operating 
needs, enabling BART to weather the Great Recession 
without reducing service levels


Series 2: 2014-2020 $330M in revenue has been dedicated to Big 3 capital
investments: new rail cars, train control system, and 
Hayward Maintenance Complex


Series 3: 2022-2028 Series 3 estimated at $370M with a portion directed to 
Core Capacity program (estimated at $200M) with 
remainder to fund expanded rail operations, per BART’s 
FY19 SRTP/CIP







Board Workshop 2019 | 50


Reduced Fares for Low-Income 
Riders Pilot Program


• To reduce transportation costs for Bay Area low-income riders, 
BART is participating in the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission’s Regional Means-based Transit Fare Discount Pilot 
Program 


• BART, Caltrain and Golden Gate Transit propose to offer a 20% 
discount per trip 


• Riders earning 200% or less of the federal poverty level would be 
eligible and use a specially encoded Clipper card


• Enrollment methods under development include web portal for 
direct rider access, paper applications, and pre-approval letters 
from social service and public health agencies 


• Eligibility verification by 3rd party vendor, like RTC card
• Net annual revenue loss estimated at approx. $6M







Board Workshop 2019 | 51


Growth in Low-Income Wages 
Compared to BART Fares


Source: State of California Employment Development Department, 2018; 
Oakland-Hayward-Berkeley MD







Board Workshop 2019 | 52


Additional BART Fare Discounts


Rider Group Discount Amount
Youth age 5-18
Youth riders have taken approx. 1.3 
million more trips in 2018 compared to 
2017, a 265% increase


50%


Seniors, 65+ 62.5%
People with Disabilities 62.5%







Board Workshop 2019 | 53


Next Steps


• Inflation-based Fare Program
• In anticipation of Board consideration of inflation-based fare 


program in spring 2019, staff to begin proactive outreach in 
February


• Spring 2019 consideration necessary to meet Core Capacity federal 
grant funding application deadline


• Low-Income Fare Discount Pilot Program
• Staff is currently analyzing public input to bring the program to the 


Board for consideration in spring 2019
• Pending all necessary approvals, the pilot could start as soon as fall 


2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 54


Discussion





		Financial Outlook

		Agenda

		Long Range Financial Outlook

		Long Range Financial Outlook Agenda

		Operating Financial Outlook

		Uses of Operating Funds

		Uses of Operating Funds

		Uses of Operating Funds

		Service Changes

		Uses of Operating Funds:�Labor/Benefits & Non-Labor

		Uses of Operating Funds:�Operating Allocations

		Operating Revenue Summary

		Ridership Trends

		Ridership Trends

		Ridership Trends

		SRTP: Projected Operating Shortfalls

		Capital Financial Outlook

		FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program

		FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program

		FY19-33 Capital Improvement Program

		Financial Outlook Summary

		Financial Outlook Summary

		Retiree Medical �and �Pension Benefits

		Agenda

		Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Retiree Medical Benefit

		Retiree Medical Contribution Eligibility

		How is OPEB:�Retiree Medical Funded?

		Retiree & Employer Contribution

		Investment Returns: Retiree Health Benefits Trust (“RHBT”)

		What Impacts the �Unfunded Liability?

		What is an Implied Subsidy?

		OPEB: Retiree Medical Contribution Projection

		OPEB: Retiree Medical �Funding Status & Funding Strategy

		District Retirement Plans

		Defined Benefit vs. �Defined Contribution

		CalPERS Retirement Formulas 

		How is Pension Funded?

		Pension Contribution Projection

		Pension Contribution Projection

		Additional Pension Funding Discussion

		Required Contributions During Peak Period

		Required Contributions & �Funding Concerns

		Staff Recommendations

		Summary & Discussion

		Fare Programs

		Inflation-based Program Overview

		Inflation-based Program Policy Support

		Comparing BART Fares and Inflation

		Comparing BART Fares and Inflation

		Inflation-based Program Benefits

		Reduced Fares for Low-Income Riders Pilot Program

		Growth in Low-Income Wages Compared to BART Fares

		Additional BART Fare Discounts

		Next Steps

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


2018 Customer 
Satisfaction Study
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


2018 Customer Satisfaction Study
Background


1. Objectives
• Track trends in customer satisfaction
• Prioritize areas for improvement


2. Context for the 2018 update
• Impact of Bay Area homeless crisis on BART
• Media coverage and rider concerns about personal security on 


BART in period preceding survey


• Continue to see high levels of crowding on peak period trains


3. Methodology
• Survey fielded Sep 11 - Oct 21
• Random sampling
• n = 5,292
• Weighting of data







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


Satisfaction


24%


45%


17%
11%


3%


16%


40%


22%


15%


6%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


Very Satisfied Somewhat Satisfied Neutral Somewhat Dissatisfied Very Dissatisfied


Overall, how satisfied are you with the services provided by BART?


2016: 69% Satisfied


2018: 56% Satisfied


Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


Recommend to a Friend


55%


30%


10%


3% 1%


38% 36%


17%


6%
3%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


Definitely Probably Might or might not Probably not Definitely not


Would you recommend BART to a friend or out-of-town guest?


2016: 85% Would recommend


2018: 73% Would recommend


Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


Value for the Money


23%


36%


21%


13%


6%


19%


35%


22%


15%


8%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


Agree Strongly Agree Somewhat Neutral Disagree Somewhat Disagree Strongly


“BART is a good value for the money.”


2016: 59% Agree


2018: 54% Agree


Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Satisfaction Trends and Ridership


80%


74%


78%
80%


86%
85% 84%


82%


84%


74%


69%


56%


 250,000


 275,000


 300,000


 325,000


 350,000


 375,000


 400,000


 425,000


 450,000


 475,000


 500,000


50%


55%


60%


65%


70%


75%


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018


Satisfaction


Avg Wkday Ridership SFO Opens
6/03


Permit 
Parking
12/02


Bikes allowed
all times


OAK opens


WSX opens


Antioch
line  


opens
Vinyl seats 
introduced


W Dublin
Opens Final vinyl seats 


installed


Final carpets 
removed


Renovation Program 


Heightened 
awareness of 


security issues


Fare Increases
4/95, 4/96, 4/97


Work Stoppage 
9/97


Daily Parking Fees 
Introduced


Recession


Work Stoppages: 
7/13, 10/13


Weekend svc closures


Fare Increase
1/04


Budget Cuts
Meas. RR Programs


QoL Initiatives
FoF Cars   







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Largest Service Rating Declines


-19.8%


-16.4%


-14.6%


-14.1%


-12.6%


-12.3%


-11.7%


-11.5%


-11.2%


-10.2%


Enforcement against fare evasion


Personal security in BART system


Presence of BART Police in stations


Train interior cleanliness


Condition / cleanliness of train floors


Presence of BART Police on trains


Presence of BART Police outside stations*


Enforcement of no eating and drinking policy


Restroom cleanliness


Condition / cleanliness of train seats


• Declines across most attributes.  Largest declines:


*Text changed from presence in parking lots







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


Selected Verbatims


On-train safety has deteriorated seriously in the past 4 years. Panhandlers now roam the trains 
shamelessly. My friends and family are abandoning BART in droves.
The issue of mentally ill using BART in increasing numbers has to be addressed. I am often afraid.
More police presence would make the trip more comfortable for night travelers, especially females.
The #1 problem with BART right now is the sheer volume of homeless people / mentally ill on BART. My 
wife and co-workers often do not feel safe or clean on BART. Please find a way to fix this. Happy to pay 
more for this.
I ride BART late (11:30pm - 2am) and often am concerned for my safety due to agitated, mentally ill, 
or aggressive people. I ride BART less than I would because of the presence of unsafe conditions. 
I'd like to see BART be safe for its passengers, especially women of color….
Too many homeless sleeping in cars. Complete impunity to fare evasion.
Too many homeless people on BART asking for money. I’ve found needles, urine, fecal matter on 
seats. Homeless harassing riders. I feel unsafe all the time. We need police present on train.
The BART trains are generally very dirty, and they smell of urine. The floors are filthy and often times 
the seats are as well. 
The increased police presence has improved the overall shocking quality of BART as of late. Please 
continue to increase security and enforce regulations! 







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Service Rating Improvements


3.5%


3.0%


2.9%


2.0%


0.9%


0.8%


Noise level on trains


Hours of operation


bart.gov website


Availability of standing room on trains


Clipper cards


Length of lines at exit gates


• Ratings of the following attributes increased:







Board Workshop 2019 | 9







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Spring 2018 Ridership Survey


35%


27%


23%


21%


20%


18%


16%


15%


12%


9%


8%


7%


6%


Changed my home or work location


BART is too dirty


Concern about crime on BART


Trains too crowded


Employment situation changed


Working from home / telecommuting more often


BART fares too expensive


Difficult to find parking at BART station


BART service delays


Travel time too long using BART


BART service is not frequent enough


BART parking too expensive


No longer in school / fewer classes


What are the main reasons you are riding less often on weekdays, compared to a year ago?


n: 244


Base: Riding BART less on weekdays







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


Trough to Peak


• Previous instance of satisfaction at 74% in 1998, after which satisfaction rose to 
an all-time high of 86% in 2004


• $1.2 billion investment in renovation


18 Target Issues in 1998 2 Target Issues in 2004
TVM reliability Station Agent avail. Train cleanliness


Fare gate reliability Personnel courtesy Ticket refunds


Lines at exit gates Ticket refunds


Escalator avail. Seat availability


Elevator avail. Train temperature


Train cleanliness Noise level


Station cleanliness PA announcements


Station condition Bus connections


Personal security Leadership in reg’l trans.







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


Escalators out of service


Conditions prior to 1998 Survey







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


Customer Ratings 1998 – 2004


15.9%


15.9%


22.3%


22.5%


39.4%


Elevator availability and reliability


Condition/cleanliness of train windows


Length of lines at exit gates


Escalator availability and reliability


Reliability of ticket vending machines


• Overall satisfaction grew from 74% to 86%.  Top increases:


Gain in mean score from 1998 to 2004 (%)







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


Turning the Corner
Cleanliness Progress


62%


33%


44%


56%


68%


43%


56%
62%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


Cleanliness of Station Platform Restroom Cleanliness Elevator Cleanliness Train Interior Cleanliness


Passenger Environment Survey (PES) FY18 Q1: "Excellent" or "Good"


FY19 Q1: "Excellent" or "Good"







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


Turning the Corner
Civic Center Progress


37%


30%


56%


40%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


Cleanliness of Station Platform Elevator Cleanliness*


Passenger Environment Survey (PES)
Civic Center Ratings


FY18 Q1: "Excellent" or "Good"


FY19 Q1: "Excellent" or "Good"


*Not statistically significant due to small sample sizes.







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


Turning the Corner
Elevator Attendant Pilot Program


44%


93%


0%


20%


40%


60%


80%


100%


Very or Somewhat Satisfied


Civic Center Elevator Survey


Baseline
Pilot Program


• Elevator attendant program at Powell St. and Civic Center since April 30th.
• Elevator user survey at Civic Center showed satisfaction more than doubled after 


program started.  


“Please keep this going. I feel so much safer, and it doesn't smell.” 
“Very good for people with disabilities.”
“Program amazing – commuting with two children.”  
“Love elevator attendants – please keep them.”







Board Workshop 2019 | 17


Turning the Corner
Homelessness Progress


117 116 119


138


159


112


132


153


142


111


78


93


87


119
111


85


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


140


160


180


9/17 10/17 11/17 12/17 1/18 2/18 3/18 4/18 5/18 6/18 7/18 8/18 9/18 10/18 11/18 12/18


Downtown San Francisco Station Transient Counts
September 2017 - December 2018







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


Turning the Corner
Impact of Fleet of the Future


57%


81% 77%


90% 91% 93%


0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%


100%


Train Interior Cleanliness Comfortable Temperature
Onboard


Onboard Announcements


Passenger Environment Survey (PES)
Q2 FY19


Legacy cars: "Excellent" or "Good"


FoF cars: "Excellent" or "Good"


• As new Fleet of the Future cars go into service, satisfaction is expected to improve.







Board Workshop 2019 | 19


Customer Satisfaction 
Initiatives Underway


1. Homelessness


2. Cleanliness


3. Fare evasion


4. Safety and security


5. Fleet of the Future roll out







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Summary


1. Customer satisfaction has declined


2. The top issues are related to quality of life – homelessness, 
security, fare evasion, and cleanliness


3. New initiatives are moving forward to address these issues, 
and there are signs that BART is beginning to turn a corner, 
but more will be needed to achieve higher customer 
satisfaction







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Discussion





		2018 Customer Satisfaction Study

		2018 Customer Satisfaction Study�Background

		Satisfaction

		Recommend to a Friend

		Value for the Money

		Satisfaction Trends and Ridership

		Largest Service Rating Declines

		Selected Verbatims

		Service Rating Improvements

		Slide Number 10

		Spring 2018 Ridership Survey

		Trough to Peak

		Conditions prior to 1998 Survey�

		Customer Ratings 1998 – 2004

		Turning the Corner�Cleanliness Progress

		Turning the Corner�Civic Center Progress

		Turning the Corner�Elevator Attendant Pilot Program

		Turning the Corner�Homelessness Progress

		Turning the Corner�Impact of Fleet of the Future

		Customer Satisfaction �Initiatives Underway

		Summary

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


Pathway to
World Class Transit







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


1. Challenge and Goal


2. Defining and Measuring World Class


3. Benchmarking


4. Next Steps


5. Discussion


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


• What is “World Class Transit”? 


• Is BART World Class Transit?


• How can BART attain World Class?


Challenge and Goal







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


North American Rail Transit 


BART ranks consistently among the top three 
of US and North American peer agencies, 
according to such sources as:


• National Transit Database (FTA)


• Transit Cooperative Research Project (TRB)


• American Public Transit Association (APTA)


Defining ‘World Class’ requires international perspective.







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Benchmarking Organizations


International Suburban Rail Benchmarking Group


• FGC (Ferrocarrils de la Generalitat de Catalunya) – Barcelona
• Queensland Rail – Brisbane
• DSB S-Tog – Copenhagen
• PRASA Metrorail – Cape Town
• MTR Hong Kong
• MTA Long Island Rail Road – New York
• London Overground
• Metro Trains Melbourne


• MTA Metro-North Railroad – New York
• S-Bahn Munich
• NSB – Oslo
• Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) – Oakland / San Francisco
• Sydney Trains – Sydney
• JR East – Tokyo


Community of Metros (large metros)
• Beijing BMTROC
• Berlin BVG
• Delhi DMRC
• Guangzhou GMC
• Hong Kong MTR
• London Underground
• Mexico City STC
• Metro de Madrid
• Moscow Metro
• New York NYCT
• Paris RATP (Metro)


• Paris RATP (RER)
• Metro de Santiago
• Shanghai SSMG
• Singapore SMRT
• Metro São Paulo
• Taipei TRTC


• Buenos Aires Metrovías
• Barcelona TMB
• Brussels STIB
• Bangkok BEM
• Docklands Light Railway, London
• Metro Istanbul
• Kuala Lumpur RapidKL / Prasarana
• Metropolitano de Lisboa
• Montréal STM
• Newcastle Nexus
• Nanjing Metro


• Oslo Sporveien
• Metro Rio
• Sydney Trains
• Shenzhen SZMC
• Toronto TTC
• Vancouver SkyTrain


Nova group (medium-sized metros)







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Benchmarking Organizations


Benefits of participation:


• Annual survey of Key Performance Indicators (KPI)
• Case Studies (2 per year)
• Clearinghouse Studies (2 per year)
• Ongoing informal discussion topics
• Attendance at semi-annual meetings
• Peer-to-peer communication
• Confidentiality of shared information


Studies and discussions cover the spectrum of operations, 
administration, safety, customer relations, labor,  economics, etc. 







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


• How do we define “World Class”?
• How do we measure “World Class”?


Defining and Measuring World Class


Tokyo Copenhagen


Barcelona







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Potential Benchmark Criteria to 
Define and Measure World Class


Customer 
Experience


Financial 
Stability


Workforce + 
Business 
Practices


System 
Performance


Safety + 
Security


Equity


Environment Economy







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


Attribute: Fleet Age


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


40


CT SF* Br HK Sy Mb MN LO Tk Mu* Bc* Os


Fl
ee


t a
ge


 (i
n 


ye
ar


s)


Average Fleet Age (2017 or latest year)


1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12


Reporting Agencies







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 13 14


KPI: Rolling Stock Reliability


Reporting Agencies
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
  


 
 


 


     


2012


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2013


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2015


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2016


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2017


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2014







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 13 14


KPI: Safety + Security /
System Performance


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2012


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2013


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2015


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2016


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2017


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2014


Reporting Agencies







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 13 14


KPI: Safety + Security /
System Performance


Reporting Agencies







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 13 14


KPI: Safety + Security


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2012


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2013


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2015


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2016


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2017


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     


2014


Reporting Agencies







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11


KPI: Workforce + Business Practices


Reporting Agencies







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


Next Steps


• Board discussion on draft outline in July 2019


• Draft definition of components to “World Class Transit”


• Draft Benchmarking Standards


• Draft Performance Metrics







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


Discussion





		Pathway to�World Class Transit�

		Agenda

		Challenge and Goal

		North American Rail Transit 

		Benchmarking Organizations

		Benchmarking Organizations

		Defining and Measuring World Class

		Potential Benchmark Criteria to Define and Measure World Class

		Attribute:	Fleet Age

		KPI:	Rolling Stock Reliability

		KPI:	Safety + Security /�System Performance

		KPI:	Safety + Security /�System Performance

		KPI:	Safety + Security

		KPI:	Workforce + Business Practices

		Next Steps

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


Quality of Life
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


Agenda


1. Homelessness


2. Cleanliness


3. Fare Evasion


4. Safety & Security


5. Discussion







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


• Homelessness is a national issue ~ 554K individuals (Jan. 2017)
• ¼ of homeless population in CA ~ 134K
• Bay Area ~ 26K.  Majority have previous addresses in the 


counties where they are homeless
• 92K of 134K (68%) unsheltered (CA) vs. 5K of 90K (5%)


unsheltered (NY)


• Key causes: Lack of affordable housing, economic instability, 
trauma/loss of family safety nets, institutional exits, mental 
illness (including substance abuse), and disability


• Many transit operators (i.e. NYC, LA, Chicago, Philadelphia, 
Austin, Minneapolis, etc.) struggling with this issue


Homelessness Problem Identification







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


Homelessness Problem Identification: 
Stations


Counts at Market St. Stations


Dates EM MT PO CC Total


2017 Avg* 10.7 26.0 45.7 42.0 124.3
2018 1st Half 14.0 26.8 45.7 48.3 134.8
2018 2nd Half 15.5 19.8 30.8 28.8 95.0


* October - December 2017 Only







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


• Counts conducted on the trains during regular Passenger 
Environment Survey (PES) shifts


• Staff boards ~570 trains per quarter on all days of the 
week, all times of day, and all lines


Homelessness Problem Identification: 
Trains


Homeless Count per 100 Train Cars


Dates Weekday Weekend Total


FY18 Q2 24 55 33
FY18 Q3 61 125 77
FY18 Q4 45 79 55
FY19 Q1 46 93 60
FY19 Q2 66 160 93







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Engage + Support


Needle Identification Problem


During 2017, there were more than 72K overdose 
deaths in the US, including 49K involving opioids (CDC)


Syringe Access Program in SF started in the 1990s to 
reduce HIV, Hep C and other infections and increase 
life expectancy







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


• BART Districtwide approach in all four counties


• Tailored strategies for different BART zones: stations, trackway, 
yards and remnant parcels


• Strategies
• Engage + Support: develop local and regional partnerships, 


connect to services
• Engineer + Maintain: secure, harden, increase cleaning and 


connect to public restrooms
• Enforce + Monitor: ordinances, citations, arrests, proof  of 


payment, stay-away orders, LEAD SF


Homeless Initiative Framework +  
Strategies







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Engage + Support


Regional Coordination


The General Manager has held the following high level meetings:
1. Contra Costa County Administrator, David Twa
2. San Mateo County Administrator, Mike Callagy
3. San Francisco Mayor London Breed
4. SF Director of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, Jeff Kositsky 
5. Alameda County Administrator, Susan Muranishi
6. Meeting with Regional County Homeless Providers and Community 


Solutions 
7. Santa Clara County Administrator Meeting (Pending)


As a result of these meetings, BART will participate in regional county 
coordination meetings on a quarterly basis to ensure that the homeless are 
appropriately matched with County housing services. BART has offered staff 
time and technical support to improve coordination and expedite data 
sharing.







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


• Partnership with San Francisco Municipal  
Transportation Agency (SFMTA) and  Department 
of Homelessness + Supportive  Housing (DHSH)


• Launched November 2017
• 4 downtown SF stations, Mon-Thu, 7am – 4pm
• One team of 2 outreach workers
• Monthly reports to BART


* Nov-Dec 2017 vs Jan-Oct 2018
**Types of Services: Homeless Related (Shelter, Resource Center, Emergency Food,  
Clothing), Mental Health, Substance Use, Medical, State/Federal Benefits, others.


Metrics (11.14.17 – 12.31.18) 2017* 2018* Total


Total Contacts 168 535 703


Total Referrals/Connections ** 118 419 537


Total No. of Refusal of Services 44 116 160


Permanent Assistance 28 136 164


Engage + Support


San Francisco Homeless Outreach
Team  (SFHOT)







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Engage + Support


Pit Stop Partnership


• Reduce public urination and defecation on BART property
• Ongoing funding contributions to Pit Stops at 16th St. &


Powell St. 24th St. added in 2018
• Attendant restroom access for BART customers, cleaned 


between uses
• Handouts for customers + non-customers; signage  in


elevators
• Restroom upgrades at Powell St. and 19th St. (2020)


BART Customers 2017 2018


16th St./Capp 5206 5083


Powell St. 2426 3999


24th St. - 672


Total 7,632 9,754







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


Enforce + Monitor


Elevator Attendants 


• Launched April 2018, continue through FY19
• Partnership with SFMTA & Hunters Point 


Family (HPF)
• Monitor and discourage undesirable activities 


in street and platform elevators at Civic Center 
and Powell St. Stations


• Daily during all BART operating hours


Monthly Avg. Total Disabled Stroller Luggage Needles Biowaste Vandalism Assaults


Powell St. 46,674 3,645 4,714 14,239 0 0 0 0


Civic Center 54,602 4,738 3,403 20,527 0 0 0 0







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


Engineer + Maintain


Entrance Barriers + Canopies


Station Opening Stairwell Counts


Stations 12/21/15 12/24/18


Embarcadero 232 101


Montgomery 125 93


Powell St. 196 119


Civic Center 188 100







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


Engineer + Maintain 


Canopies


Powell St.: Market Street & Ellis Street Civic Center: Market Street & 7th Street







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


Engineer + Maintain


Homeless Encampment Sites


• Fruitvale track fire in December 2017
• Concerned with fires from large encampment sites 


under/adjacent to BART Tracks including 2 in West Oakland
• Hotspot map


• West Oakland at 4th and Adeline St.
• Coliseum Station Area
• Richmond Yard
• Hayward Maintenance Yard







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


New Initiatives


Engage + Support
• Contra Costa County HOT: Launch on January 7, 2019
• 2nd San Francisco HOT: Launch in February 2019
• Syringe Access Partnership: Launched December 2018


• April 2018 - 3,192 vs. December 2018: 2,719 (Needles collected)


For FY20 Budget Considerations
• HOTs in San Mateo and Alameda counties (Engage + Support)
• Continue homeless encampment site remediation on BART property: 


prioritizing, clearing, securing (Engineer + Maintain)







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


CURRENT STATE FUNDING
• Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP) – includes $500 million to provide 


direct assistance to cities, counties and Continuums of Care (CoCs)
• Veterans and Affordable Housing Bond Act - authorizes $4 billion in General 


Obligation Bonds for various programs.
• No Place like Home Act - dedicates $2 billion to provide supportive multifamily 


housing for individuals experiencing mental illness who are homeless/at risk of 
homelessness.


PROPOSED FUNDING IN 2019-20 BUDGET
• $500 million for jurisdictions that site and build emergency shelters, navigation 


centers, or supportive housing
• $100 million for Whole Person Care Pilot programs
• $1.3 billion plus expanded tax credits to remove barriers and increase long-term 


housing production, particularly for low- and moderate-income housing.


State Funding







Board Workshop 2019


Cleanliness







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


Cleaning: Revenue Vehicles & 
Stations







Board Workshop 2019 | 19


Car Cleaning Organization


Assistant Chief 
Mechanical Officer


MANAGER OF 
TRANSIT VEHICLE 


CLEANING


EOL/MAINLINE 
FOREWORKERS


EOL/MAINLINE CAR 
CLEANERS


CONCORD SHOP 
MANAGER


UTILITY 
FOREWORKER


YARD AND SHOP 
UTILITY WORKERS


RICHMOND SHOP 
MANAGER


UTILITY 
FOREWORKER


YARD AND SHOP 
UTILITY WORKERS


HAYWARD SHOP 
MANAGER


UTILITY 
FOREWORKER


YARD AND SHOP 
UTILITY WORKERS


DALY CITY SHOP 
MANAGER


UTILITY 
FOREWORKER


YARD AND SHOP 
UTILITY WORKERS







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Car Cleaning - Yard Cleaning


End of Line / Nightly Cle• Cars receive nightly cleaning after 
Revenue Service


• At minimum
• Trash picked up
• Biohazards Cleaned
• Graffiti removed
• Spot Mopping


• As time/staffing allows
• Gum removal as needed
• Floor swept and mopped
• Seat cleaning and replacement as 


needed
• Clean spots off walls and stanchions
• Wash windows







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Car Cleaning – Process 
Improvements


• Each car receives a top to bottom deep cleaning every 90 days
• All surfaces are cleaned and disinfected 


• Walls, windows, seats, ceiling, stanchions, straps, doors, 
floor, thresholds, baseboards, operator cabs


• Tracked by Computerized Work Orders/ Maximo
• Inspected by Quality Assurance (Quarterly)


Thorough Cleaning







Board Workshop 2019 | 22


Car Cleaning - Quality of Life 
Initiatives


End of Line / Mainline Car Cleaning


• End of Line Cleaning 
• Warm Springs (5 AM-9 PM)
• Richmond (5 AM-9 PM)
• Daly City (5 AM-9 PM)
• Dublin/Pleasanton (6 AM – 2 PM, 


6 PM – 2 AM)
• Pittsburg/Bay Point (5 AM-9 PM)
• San Francisco International 


Airport (7 AM – 3 PM)
• Millbrae (11 AM – 7 PM)


• Midline / Rapid Response
• Lake Merritt (5 AM-9 PM)
• 12th St/Oakland (5 AM-9 PM)


End of Line Cleaning


• Rapid Response Video



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=USyHkIH1kz8&feature=youtu.be





Board Workshop 2019 | 23


Car Cleaning - Rapid Response


• Beginning 6-28-18 as immediate 
response to customer reports via 
biohazard app.


• Positioned in center of system; Lake 
Merritt and 12th Street Stations


• Peak period dispatched by Revenue 
Vehicle Trouble Desk (OCC) to reported 
problems


• Non-peak ride trains and clean up trash 
and graffiti 


• We are tracking response times and 
studying how to make it better







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


Training - Car Cleaning


Standardized Cleaning and Training


• Car cleaning process 
document was updated


• Used as a step-by-step 
training manual with pictures


• Existing Staff is mostly 
retrained, to be completed by 
3rd Quarter







Board Workshop 2019 | 25


Station Cleaning







Board Workshop 2019 | 26


System Service - Transportation 
Resource Associates Study 2017


April 2017 Findings
• Narrow scope for System Service Workers and increase 


number of cleaners
• Develop standard for station cleanliness
• Establish a robust training program
• Audit to ensure results
• Deal with homelessness problem







Board Workshop 2019 | 27


System Service - M&E Observations


System Service Transferred to M&E August 2017


• Span of control
• Staffing plan, station ownership
• Leadership effectiveness
• Tools and equipment
• Attendance







Board Workshop 2019 | 28


System Service Reorganization -
March 2018


• More dedicated cleaners
• Reduced travel
• Clear ownership and accountability
• Added supervision
• Added cleaners


New Zone Structure







Board Workshop 2019 | 29


System Service - Supervisory 
Structure


Superintendent of 
System Service


ZONE 1 / 2 
SS ASST SUPT


ZONE 1 
SS SUPERVISOR (2)


6 FW


55 SSW


ZONE 2 
SS SUPERVISOR


2 FW


22 SSW


ZONE 3 / 4 / 5 
SS ASST SUPT


ZONE 3 
SS SUPERVISOR


3 FW


26 SSW


ZONE 4 
SS SUPERVISOR


2 FW


20 SSW


ZONE 5 SS 
SUPERVISOR


2 FW


24 SSW







Board Workshop 2019 | 30


System Service: Certification & 
Standards


ISSA Certification


• The ISSA family of Clean Standards establishes a 
framework to help institutional facilities objectively 
assess the effectiveness of their cleaning 
processes. Based on the philosophy of "Clean, Measure, 
Monitor," the ISSA Clean Standards contribute to the 
quality of the indoor environment by focusing on:


• The desired levels of cleanliness that can reasonably 
be achieved


• Measurement and inspection procedures







Board Workshop 2019 | 31


System Service - Training


• Hired Employee Development Specialists (2)
• Developed training curriculum based on 


Standard operating procedures with ISSA
• Employee Certified Training to in-progress to 


be completed Q4 FY19
• Training Includes:


• Safety
• Customer service
• Standard procedures – step by step task 


process
• Use of tools, equipment and chemicals







Board Workshop 2019 | 32


System Service: Supervisory Training


• Current  training curriculum based on District Policies and 
Procedures


• Payroll administration
• Safety procedures
• Maximo
• Staff scheduling 


• Developing training curriculum based on ISSA Cleaning 
Standards for Supervisors


• Ensure compliance with certification standards
• Quality Control inspections
• Inventory management







Board Workshop 2019 | 33


System Service – Recommendations


3rd Party Audit – Core Management Services


• Match desired cleanliness level to staffing level (currently 
mismatched)


• Expand absentee replacement program (part timers)
• Continue to replace and upgrade cleaning equipment
• Develop effective supply inventory system (Kanban) 
• Install wall-mount dilution control dispensers
• Develop Electronic quality assurance inspection reporting; share 


with staff







Board Workshop 2019 | 34


System Service - Initiatives 2019


• Continue to assess conditions in stations and adjust to 
address problems


• Manage attendance to Department policy


• Station Ownership
• Continue to develop station community with Station 


Agents, Cleaners and Police


• Increased cleaning and deodorizing activities to maintain 
platforms, tracks and tunnels


• Increased power washing of Mission Street Plazas







Board Workshop 2019 | 35


System Service - Transportation 
Resource Associates Study 2018


TRA FOLLOW UP ~ September 2018


• Full report due in the spring
• Initial findings – GOOD PROGRESS HAS BEEN MADE:


• New Staffing structure appears to be effective
• Stations are cleaner – especially in downtown stations
• Training is very impressive
• ISSA Certification is excellent for benchmarking to industry 


standards
• 3rd party audit great idea
• Improvements have been made in addressing the homelessness 


issue Bart needs to stay focused on further improvements
• Ultimate success is based on partnerships with cities and 


communities







Board Workshop 2019


Fare Evasion & 
Station Hardening







Board Workshop 2019 | 37


A Hardened Station


1. Configured Fire Alarm System
2. Alarmed Swing Gates/ Doors (controlled)
3. Raised Railing - 5 ft.
4. Digital Camera Network
5. Video Screens
6. Elevators in the Paid Area
7. Fare Gates (Modified or Replaced) 







Board Workshop 2019 | 38


Configured Fire Alarm System


• MacArthur
• Lake Merritt
• Fruitvale
• Coliseum
• Bay Fair
• South Hayward
• Warm Springs
• North Concord
• Pittsburg/ Bay Point
• Bay Point Center
• Antioch


• Castro Valley
• Dublin/Pleasanton
• Embarcadero
• Montgomery
• Powell
• Civic Center
• 16th Street
• 24th Street
• Daly City
• Berkeley
• Richmond


• Colma
• South San Francisco
• San Bruno
• Millbrae
• SF International 


Airport







Board Workshop 2019 | 39


Alarmed Swing Gates


• Embarcadero


• Civic Center 


• 16th Street


• 24th Street


• Berkeley: North & South


• Fruitvale


• Coliseum


• Daly City
• Balboa Park
• Glen Park
• Montgomery
• Lake Merritt
• MacArthur
• Berkeley: Center Section
• Richmond


FY18 FY19







Board Workshop 2019 | 40


Raised Railings – 5ft.


• Embarcadero


• Civic Center 


• 16th Street


• 24th Street


• Berkeley: North & 


South


• Daly City


• Balboa Park


• Montgomery


• Richmond


• MacArthur


• Berkeley: 


Center Section


FY18 FY19







Board Workshop 2019 | 41


Digital Camera Network


• Fruitvale


• Coliseum 


• San Leandro 


• Bay Fair 


• Hayward 


• El Cerrito Del Norte


• Richmond


• Orinda


• Lafayette 


• Concord 


• North Concord 


• Pittsburg 


• 24th Street


• 16th Street


• Daly City 


First Stations to be Upgraded







Board Workshop 2019 | 42


Video Screens


• Being combined 
with passenger 
information project


• Expected roll out
mid-year







Board Workshop 2019 | 43


Move Elevators into Paid Area 


Scheduled:
• Bay Fair – FY19
• Montgomery – FY19
• El Cerrito Del Norte – FY20
• Embarcadero – FY21 
• Powell – FY21
• 19th Street – FY22
• Walnut Creek – FY23


Remaining:
• Coliseum
• 12th Street
• Rockridge
• Orinda
• Concord
• Civic Center
• Balboa Park
• North Berkeley
• El Cerrito Plaza







Board Workshop 2019 | 44


Fare Gate Enhancement Project


• Modification to existing gates


• Enhanced barrier pressure: Pilot at 3 
stations


• Profile change to deter jumping: Under 
design


• Conceptual design for new fare gates


• Develop an array of options: To Board in 
February


Example fare gate







Board Workshop 2019 | 45


Stations Scheduled to be Hardened 
Through Station Modernization


• El Cerrito del Norte: Under construction, 25% complete


• Embarcadero: Elevator advertise January 2019


• Powell Street: Advertise spring 2019


• 19th Street: Bids due January 2019


• Walnut Creek: Conceptual design complete fall 2019







Board Workshop 2019


Safety & Security 







Board Workshop 2019 | 47


Policing


Visible Presence and Enforcement
• Police Officers


• Fare Inspectors


• Community Service Officers







Board Workshop 2019 | 48


Hiring Police Personnel


• Staffing study through the University of North Texas
• 5-year strategic plan was developed that will include staffing for Train Teams, Fixed 


Post and cover beats to bolster our current patrol beats
• Requires the hiring of 19 police officers each year for the next 5 fiscal years, in 


addition to the currently budgeted positions
• Contract negotiations with the BPOA resulted in an economic package that is 


now much more competitive in the region
• This has increased our ability to attract applicants and to fill vacant positions


• New ability to contract out background investigations
• Police Officers


o 24 officers hired in 2018
o 16 officers hired in 2017 


• Fare Inspectors
o New employee classification


• Community Service Officers







Board Workshop 2019 | 49


Proof of Payment Status Updates


• Ordinance adopted: November 2017
• Ordinance effective: January 2018  
• 6 Fare Inspectors deployed: January 2018
• 10 additional Fare Inspectors positions approved, for a total of 16: 


September 2018
• Fare Inspector job classification created: December 2018
• Currently 10 Fare Inspectors on team: December 2018
• Fare Inspectors deployed to weekends and evenings: January 2019
• Hiring process for 6 additional Fare Inspectors in progress







Board Workshop 2019 | 50


Potential New Programs


• San Francisco MUNI Transit Assistance Program (MTAP) 
concept studied


• Potential opportunities to best fit our needs
• Cadet Program: Additional trained presence
• Community Ambassadors: Stakeholder participation







Board Workshop 2019 | 51


Cadet Program: Under Assessment


• Uniformed apprenticeship position to serve as a pipeline for CSO 
and Police Officer


• Primary duties:  uniformed presence on trains
• Benefits


• Increased uniformed presence in the system
• Eyes & ears
• Community participation
• Recruitment for other classifications


• Program will target students at local colleges







Board Workshop 2019 | 52


Station Ambassador: Under 
Assessment


Goals
• Local community presence
• Engage customers
• Support BART frontline workers
• Observe and report concerns
• Trained in de-escalation, can assist with safety and security issues 
• 5 stations under consideration at Coliseum, MacArthur, 


Richmond, Pittsburg/Bay Point, and 16th St.







Board Workshop 2019 | 53


Discussion





		Quality of Life

		Agenda

		Homelessness Problem Identification

		Homelessness Problem Identification: Stations

		Homelessness Problem Identification: Trains

		Engage + Support�Needle Identification Problem

		Homeless Initiative Framework +  Strategies

		Engage + Support�Regional Coordination

		Slide Number 9

		Engage + Support�Pit Stop Partnership

		Enforce + Monitor�Elevator Attendants 

		Engineer + Maintain�Entrance Barriers + Canopies

		Engineer + Maintain �Canopies

		Engineer + Maintain�Homeless Encampment Sites

		New Initiatives

		State Funding

		Cleanliness

		Cleaning: Revenue Vehicles & Stations

		Car Cleaning Organization

		 Car Cleaning - Yard Cleaning	

		Car Cleaning – Process Improvements

		Car Cleaning - Quality of Life Initiatives

		Car Cleaning - Rapid Response

		  Training - Car Cleaning	

		Station Cleaning

		System Service - Transportation Resource Associates Study 2017

		System Service - M&E Observations

		System Service Reorganization - March 2018

		System Service - Supervisory Structure

		System Service: Certification & Standards

		System Service - Training	

		System Service: Supervisory Training

		System Service – Recommendations

		System Service - Initiatives 2019

		System Service - Transportation Resource Associates Study 2018

		Fare Evasion & Station Hardening

		A Hardened Station

		Configured Fire Alarm System

		Alarmed Swing Gates

		Raised Railings – 5ft.

		Digital Camera Network

		Video Screens

		Move Elevators into Paid Area 

		Fare Gate Enhancement Project

		Stations Scheduled to be Hardened Through Station Modernization

		Safety & Security 

		Policing

		Hiring Police Personnel

		Proof of Payment Status Updates

		Potential New Programs

		Cadet Program: Under Assessment

		Station Ambassador: Under Assessment

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


AB 2923
Preliminary 
Implementation 
Approach
January 24, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


Agenda


1. Objectives for today
2. BART’s TOD program & AB 2923 


background
3. Station-by-station strategy approach
4. Discussion







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


Objectives for Today


• Describe proposed station-by-station 
approach


• Discuss decision-making process for BART’s 
approach to AB 2923 Standard Setting


• Offer guidance on upcoming outreach to 
jurisdictions, follow up research







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


BART’s Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Program


• Active since 1990s
• Development on BART property to help achieve its goals


• Ridership, economic development, value capture, 
placemaking


• Affordable housing, innovation, greenhouse gas reduction


• Board-adopted target to produce:
• 20,000 housing units (35%, or 7,000 Affordable)
• 4.5 million square feet of commercial space


• Future TOD opportunities
• 250 acres, 26 of 48 stations in 16 jurisdictions







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


BART’s Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Program


• Example: Pleasant Hill/ Contra Costa Centre


After TOD – Blocks C & D Forthcoming


Before TOD


C D







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting


• Authored by Assemblymembers Chiu, Grayson 
• Signed by Governor Brown on September 30, 2018
• Two core legislative changes and additional BART 


requirements
1. TOD standard setting for BART-owned property
2. Development streamlining (SB 35, 2017)


• Only applies to currently-owned BART property near 
existing stations in Alameda, Contra Costa, and San 
Francisco Counties


• Expires in 2029







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


• 1st Key Area: TOD Standards
• BART Board adopts standards for certain stations by mid-2020 for existing 


BART-owned property only in 3 BART counties
• Height limits, density, floor area ratio (FAR), parking min/max
• Minimum: 2017 TOD Guidelines
• Maximum: Tallest of (1) current residential “highest approved height” in ½ 


mile or (2) 50% above 2017 TOD Guidelines
• Subject to CEQA review


• If current BART property zoning is within 10% of 2017 TOD Guidelines 
height and FAR, exempt from standard setting


• Cities rezone BART property by mid-2022 to meet BART standards, will 
incorporate BART’s CEQA work


• If BART Board does not adopt standards, 2017 TOD Guidelines become 
standards


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Figure 1: Proposed TOD Place Types, 
Parking, and Density Thresholds


Table 1: Proposed TOD Place Types, Parking Maximums, and Development Targets


Key Figures from 2017 TOD Guidelines


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


• 2nd Key Area: Development streamlining (SB 35)
• BART-selected developers may apply for SB 35 eligibility
• Project must be within 1 story or 15’ of “highest approved 


height” (residential/mixed-use) within ½ mile of property, and 
comply with SB 35 labor standards


• Streamlining is: 
• Max 90 to 180 day review by local jurisdiction
• Ministerial approval (interpreted as CEQA streamlining)
• Subject to objective design review and other requirements already 


adopted and applied broadly by city
• Limited application of SB 35 to date


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Other Bill Requirements 
1. Outreach to local jurisdictions and communities of 


concern
2. Review of local housing needs, recent TOD projects, 


obstacles to development
3. Parking replacement policy with provisions to ensure 


auto-dependent stations still allow private vehicle 
access


4. Affordable housing and anti-displacement strategy
5. Report to Legislature in 2027 on bill effectiveness


AB 2923 Background from 
December 6 Board Meeting







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


Standard Setting: What BART 
Knows


• Majority of the 48 station areas have characteristics that 
may minimize BART’s effort


• No developable land (9 stations) 
• Already developed with no remaining BART land (2 stations)
• Zoning that meets or exceeds TOD standards done or in process (9 


stations)
• In San Mateo County or at airports (7 stations)


• Station areas that require more effort for rezoning (21 
stations)


• Ideally, complete by July 1, 2020
• Realistically, revised standards can be adopted by December 31, 


2027 







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


Standard Setting: What BART 
Knows


1. Pre-
Solicitation


2. 
Solicitation/ 


Selection


3. Project 
Refinement 
& Developer 
Agreement


4. Permitting 
& 


Construction


Standard setting / rezoning is 
only the first phase of our TOD 
process


Timing:
The bill expires in 2029 
BART aims to build 20,000 units and 4.5 million 
square feet by 2040
Historically, BART has built 100 units/year 


Must discuss BART’s 10-year work plan for advancing projects to 
solicitation, project development, and construction







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


Standard Setting: Currently 
Filling in Information Gaps


• Zoning at stations and in ½ 
mile


• City/County intents and 
perspectives on development


• City/County perspectives on 
AB2923


• Community perspective on 
development and housing


Outreach to 
Jurisdictions


Gather Station 
Data


Identify 
Development 
Opportunities







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


Standard Setting: Proposed 
Approach to Each Station


Potential 
Strategy Description of Station Areas


Level of Effort


BART Jurisdiction


– 0 –
N/A


• No developable land 
• TOD exists and/or is under construction
• San Mateo County


None None


– 1 –
TOD-Ready 


• Zoning meets or exceeds TOD standards Low Low


– 2 –
Default 


• No development anticipated by 2029
• Other reason not to lead standard setting
• Standards default to 2017 BART TOD Guidelines 


Low to 
Medium


Low to 
Medium


– 3 –
Partner 


• Jurisdictions are leading planning efforts
• BART partners with jurisdictions Medium High


– 4 –
Lead 


• BART wants to see more than TOD Guidelines
• No planning efforts by jurisdiction
• BART leads standard setting & CEQA


High Medium to 
High







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


Standard Setting


• Law limits new zoning standards:
• Minimum: 2017 Guidelines
• Maximum: 50% more height & FAR


• CEQA a main consideration in 
defining process


• Possible costs for standard setting 
• Overall – 2 additional employees 


to oversee
• $2 million for analysis
• CEQA: $500k to $2 million 
• Possible legal fees


• Seeking outside sources of funding







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


Proposed Approach: Examples


1


Potential Strategies - Examples


4


0


3


2







Board Workshop 2019 | 17


Proposed Approach: Examples


Strategy 1 – TOD-Ready
Example: Lake Merritt


BART Actions
• Continued coordination 


with the City as 
development progresses


• City and BART vision aligned
• Zoning meets or exceeds 2017 TOD 


Guidelines
• 2014 Station 


area specific 
plan







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


Strategy 2 – Default
Example: Antioch
• Market not ready for high 


density development
• Productive uses: solar, parking


BART Actions
• Outreach to City


• Determine if zoning conforms


Key Considerations
• Provide some guarantee that 


BART will partner with City if 
and when development 
interests surface


• City shall adopt local zoning 
ordinance to conform


• If not, standards set by BART’s 
2017 TOD Guidelines


Proposed Approach: Examples







Board Workshop 2019 | 19


Strategy 3 – Partner
Example: North Berkeley
• Elected officials leading public 


visioning process to consider 
future of TOD on main parking lot


BART Actions
• Partner with City to advance 


planning and development


Key Considerations
• Aim to reach agreement 


about zoning by 7/1/2020


• If not, standards set by 
BART’s 2017 TOD Guidelines
(“Default”)


Satellite image by Alta Planning + Design


Neighbors present their ideas 
at Oct 13 Visioning Event


Proposed Approach: Examples







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Strategy 4 – Lead
Example: Bay Fair


BART Actions
• Outreach to County


• Lead zoning effort & CEQA with 
County participation


Key Considerations
• Does BART want to see more 


than TOD Guidelines stipulate?


• Requires BART staff and 
consultant resources 


• County may appreciate not 
expending resources on 
extensive CEQA


• Legal challenges


• City zoning 
updated but 
County 
zoning 
outdated


Bay Fair TOD 
Specific Plan Area


Proposed Approach: Examples







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Standard Setting Approach: 
Possible Criteria to Inform


Default
Market strength 
(infeasible 
development)


Minor, non-
controversial 
adjustments needed
No need for BART to 
complete CEQA work


Partner
Political readiness to 
rezone before 7/2020


Possibility of 
dedicating local and 
BART staff time or 
funding to such an 
effort


City willing to lead 
CEQA effort


Lead
BART willingness to 
lead CEQA 
Jurisdiction desire for 
BART to lead CEQA
CEQA process makes 
sense to do for other 
reasons
Need something more 
than what TOD 
guidelines call for


All cases: Local jurisdiction and elected official outreach







Board Workshop 2019 | 22


Station-by-Station Strategy: 
Approach


Legend


Support


Lead 


Potential Station Area Strategies – Based on Preliminary Information


Legend
Not Applicable
TOD-Ready
Default, Partner, 
or Lead


v







Board Workshop 2019 | 23


Next Steps


• Station-by-Station Approach: Staff will 
return with recommendations on approach 
to each station on previous map


• Criteria: Advise on information needed to 
determine best strategy by station


• Outreach/Engagement: Strategies to help 
your constituents gain comfort with BART’s 
process







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


Discussion





		AB 2923�Preliminary Implementation Approach

		Agenda

		Objectives for Today

		BART’s Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Program

		BART’s Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Program

		AB 2923 Background from December 6 Board Meeting

		AB 2923 Background from December 6 Board Meeting

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		AB 2923 Background from December 6 Board Meeting

		AB 2923 Background from December 6 Board Meeting

		Standard Setting: What BART Knows

		Standard Setting: What BART Knows

		Standard Setting: Currently Filling in Information Gaps

		Standard Setting: Proposed Approach to Each Station

		Standard Setting

		Proposed Approach: Examples

		Proposed Approach: Examples

		Slide Number 19

		Proposed Approach: Examples

		Proposed Approach: Examples

		Standard Setting Approach: Possible Criteria to Inform

		Station-by-Station Strategy: Approach

		Next Steps

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


Fare Gate & Fleet Update
January 25, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


1. Fare Gates


2. BART Revenue Fleet Plan


3. New Vehicle Procurement


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019


Fare Gates







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


 Supplied by Cubic Transportation 
Systems


 Installed in 2002-2003
Mid-life refresh of obsolete 


electronic components 2016-2017
 Supports Magnetic Stripe Tickets 


and BART Only Smart Cards
 Integrated with the Clipper regional 


fare payment system
 Integrated with BART’s Data 


Acquisition System (DAS) back 
office


Current Fare Gates







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


Back Office Process


Ticket Vending 
Machines


Fare Gates


DAS (TVM) DAS (Fare Gates)


Wells Fargo
First Data


(1
) C


re
di


t/
De


bi
t C


ar
d 


Da
ta


Cr
ed


it/
De


bi
t C


ar
d 


Da
ta


Clipper Back OfficeClipper Data Store


(2
a)


 C
lip


pe
r U


sa
ge


 D
at


a


(3) Clipper Usage Data


(2
a)


 C
lip


pe
r U


sa
ge


 D
at


a


(3) Clipper Usage Data
(SFTP)


(2
b)


 B
AR


T 
Us


ag
e 


Da
ta


(2
b)


 B
AR


T 
Us


ag
e 


Da
ta


Reconciliation(5b) BART Data (5b) BART Data


(4) Clipper Data
Processing


(5a) Clipper Settlement Data
(SFTP)


(6) Reconciliation Report


Treasury Analysts


Data Collected for Reconciliation includes:
- Timestamp
- Station / Device
- Clipper Card Serial Number
- Transaction amount
- Remaining Balance


Clipper 
Processing 
Library


Clipper 
Processing 
Library


Data Aggregation







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Fare Evasion Challenges


 Forcing open barrier leaves
 Jumping over barrier leaves
 Sliding underneath barriers







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Current Interim Efforts  
Retrofitting Existing Fare Gates


 Increasing air pressure to cinch barrier closed 
• Increases effort required to force barrier open
• Pilot installed at Embarcadero (north end) and eBART stations  
• Modifying Accessible gates at pilot locations by Spring 2019
• Procuring parts to implement system wide


Modifying fare gate to reduce jumping
• Increasing fare gate height by adding additional pop up barrier leaves (in 


conceptual design)
• Modification to fare gate housing to reduce ability to get a solid hand hold 


for jumping (in conceptual design)


• Modification to increase fare gate height; double high gate (in conceptual 
design)







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


Current Efforts – New Fare Gates


 Engaged Consultant to Develop Conceptual Engineering Report                 Calgary, Canada 2016


• Industry Survey
• Peer Agency Outreach
• Focus on fit/form/function
• Also considering system integration challenges                                       Calgary, Canada  2016


 Industry Review
• Gunnebo 
• Cubic Brooklyn, New york


• Scheidt & Bachmann
• Conduent


 Peer Agencies
• Los Angeles Metropolitan Transit Agency (LA Metro)
• Washington Metro
• New York City Transit Authority
• Massachusetts Transportation Bay Authority







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Conceptual Design Proposal
Milestone Schedule


• Project Kick-off October 8, 2018
• Internal stakeholder meeting October 16, 2018
• Workshops- Internal Stake holders and Consultants November- December, 2018
• Define categories for final concepts January 2019
• Review with Key Stakeholders January/February 2019
• Consultant draft report to BART February 2019
• Presentation to the Board Spring 2019


Auckland, New Zealand 2019







Board Workshop 2019


BART Revenue Fleet Plan
Supply, Demand and Capacity







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


• FOTF Deployment & Service Enhancements


• Fleet Management


• Acceptance


• Retirement


• Storage


Agenda







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


Phase 1 80 Cars:
Initial service enhancements


Phase 2 to 120 Cars:
Lengthen all Transbay Trains to 10-cars
Bench legacy cars with the worst reliability


Phase 3 to 190 Cars:
Launch Berryessa extension service


Phase 4 >190 Cars:
Complete train lengthening
Add additional peak service and ready-reserve trains
Replace remaining bad-actor legacy cars
Attain fleet equilibrium; begin steady-state retirement


FOTF Deployment Plan







Board Workshop 2019 | 12


80 new cars enable


Initial Service Enhancements:


• 1 FOTF train on each of 5 lines of service
• Two new peak-period trains (Feb 2019 schedule)


– Yellow Line train


– Millbrae – SFO shuttle
• Lengthen trains by 7 cars
• Initial 50% FOTF spare ratio


Anticipated by April 2019


Phase 1







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


New cars 81-120 enable


Expanded Service Enhancement:


• 6-10 FOTF trains in service
• Lengthen all peak-period Transbay trains to 10 cars
• Bench the least reliable legacy cars


– Enhance Service Reliability
– Free up Maintenance Resources
– Hold spares for emergency


• Assume 40% FOTF spare ratio


Anticipated by Fall 2019


Phase 2







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


New cars 121-190 enable
Launch Berryessa Extension to San Jose:


• 12-14 FOTF Trains in Service  


• SVBX service, 46 cars


– Two 10-car Green Line Trains
– Two 8-car Orange Line Trains
– One 10-car Ready Reserve/Peak Train 


• Assume 30% FOTF spare ratio


Anticipated in late 2019 or early 2020


Phase 3







Board Workshop 2019 | 15


New cars 191+ enable
Steady-state fleet replacement:


• Grow fleet to 930 cars


• Complete train lengthening on Orange Line


• Add remaining peak and ready-reserve trains


• Begin steady-state legacy car retirement


• Target 20% FOTF spare ratio


Anticipated by early 2021


Phase 4







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


STORAGE CAPACITY:
• Existing yards, tail


tracks & shop control: 
Supports 930 car fleet
(OK until 2023) 


CURRENT PROJECTS:
• Hayward Yard East (HYE) will 


accept about 230 - 250 
additional cars by 2023


• Newhall Yard, forecast to 
open in 2026/7 as part of 
VTA Santa Clara extension, 
will add about 230 – 250 cars


Revenue fleet storage capacity


Hayward Yard
East (HYE)


Newhall Yard







Board Workshop 2019 | 17


Near- to medium-term: 
Targeted expansion for 2022 to 2026


• Richmond Yard reconfiguration (+30 cars)


• Millbrae Tail track extension (+18 cars)


• Use of terminal station tracks for overnight storage


Potential Future Expansion 







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


Fleet Storage beyond 2027 will align 
capacity to support a 1,200-car fleet


Improve efficiency 
through added EAST 
and WEST Bay storage 


• Identifying yard 
locations in the East-
& West-Bay, along 
BART alignment


• Incorporating storage 
yard funding needs 
into the Capital 
funding plan


Hayward Yard
East (HYE)


Newhall Yard







Board Workshop 2019


New Vehicle Procurement







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Agenda


1. Budget Forecast


2. Project Accomplishments


3. Planned Activities Next Quarter


4. Schedule


5. DBE Status


6. Car Features


7. LTK Comparison Study


8. Sole Source Procurement


9. Progress Photos







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


Budget Forecast
(Fed-MTC / State / BART / VTA Funding)







Board Workshop 2019 | 22


Project Accomplishments


• 50 cars conditionally accepted and ready for revenue service.
• Maintenance demonstrations are being completed.


• Maintenance training in progress.
• Train Operator phases 2-3 training is in progress.
• 3 Trains are in Service. (Red, Green, and Yellow Lines)


• Preventative Maintenance being performed on revenue vehicles.
• Car 51-60 are in acceptance testing at the Hayward test track.
• Car 61-70 are in final assembly in Plattsburgh, New York.


• Car shell 71-85 are in progress in Sahagun, Mexico.







Board Workshop 2019 | 23


Planned Activities Next Quarter


• Ramp up delivery rate to 10 per month


• Continue acceptance testing


• Continue Operations Training


• Continue Maintenance Training







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


Schedule


Milestone Approved 
Schedule


Bombardier 
Current 


Forecast
Actual Status


Award of Contract N/A N/A 5/30/12 Complete


Complete Final Design Phase 9/30/14 9/30/14 9/30/14 Complete


Commence Pilot Vehicle Delivery 4/30/15 3/15/16 3/15/16 Complete


Complete Pilot Car Delivery 8/25/15 11/19/16 11/19/16 Complete


Delivery of First Production Vehicle 12/30/16 11/6/17 11/6/17 Complete


Complete Delivery 260th Vehicle 9/21/18 2/19/20 In Process


Complete Delivery of 775th Vehicle 9/27/21 4/21/22 In Process


Complete Warranty of 775th Vehicle 10/27/25 5/21/26 In Process







Board Workshop 2019 | 25


DBE Status: Bombardier


• As part of the DBE Regulation 
49 CFR Part 26, Bombardier 
submits an annual DBE goal to 
FTA


• For FY18 the annual goal 
including all FTA funded 
contracts is: 8.5% of US origin 
spend funded by FTA


• Bombardier’s DBE Goal for FY18 
is Compliant with DOT’s DBE 
regulations







Board Workshop 2019 | 26


DBE Status: Bombardier


$40M
10% DBE


Buy America
$407M  


$407M
66%
Buy 


America


Federal Funds
$617M


TOTAL CONTRACT 
$1.535B


$826M
Material 


Costs


$617M
74.64%
Federal 
Funds


MATERIAL COSTS
$826M







Board Workshop 2019 | 27


Car Features


• More than one million of Engineering, Method, Quality Assurance and Testing  hours were 


required to bring this train to life.


• 93,120 feet of cable and wire per car, approximately 16 miles


• 9 systems with controllers which have 30 micro processors using 180 distinct software    


• packages


• 6,000 different parts are used in the design of each car while 300,000 parts are required in 


• each car built.


• 400 different connectors are used in the design of each car while 9,000 are required in each   


• car built. 


• 2,000 huck bolts (structural rivets) are used on every car


• 600 assembly drawings are used for the manufacturing of each car 







Board Workshop 2019 | 28


D-Car Vehicle Wiring


VATC Locker:X-End CDP Locker:X-End Ladder and Plank Locker:







Board Workshop 2019 | 29


Car Features


• 3,000 modifications on the pilot cars which required 11,000 hours were performed  


following the intensive testing period.


• 71 FACI conducted and more than 200 quality inspection points are performed on each 


car


• 391 Qualification test -275 sub system, 40 static car, 76 dynamic car


• 34 precision laser measurements are performed on every car to validate carbody variance 


from tolerance


• CPUC checklist has 1,872 elements requiring 2,864 documents to confirm adherence & 


validation against safety requirements


• Failure Modes Effects Criticality Analysis: 6,126 components analyzed


• The cars have undergone more than 50,000 miles of qualification testing







Board Workshop 2019 | 30


LTK Comparison Study







Board Workshop 2019 | 31


Transbay Corridor Core Capacity 
Sole Source Procurement of Railcars


• BART Board approved a sole source procurement of 425 
railcars on Nov 15, 2018 for an amount not to exceed 
$1,167B


• 306 – Core Capacity
• 60 – VTA Phase 2
• 59 – Future BART capacity needs 


• BART negotiating price and terms with Bombardier


• BART submitted Sole Source Justification Memo to FTA







Board Workshop 2019 | 32


Side Wall Brush







Board Workshop 2019 | 33


Side Walls







Board Workshop 2019 | 34


Floor Weldment







Board Workshop 2019 | 35


Floor Fire Protection







Board Workshop 2019 | 36


Roof Weldment







Board Workshop 2019 | 37


Splice Station







Board Workshop 2019 | 38


Splice Station with Floor







Board Workshop 2019 | 39


Car Shell After Splice







Board Workshop 2019 | 40


Car #57 Ready To Ship


Car # 57 Final QA & Customer Inspection







Board Workshop 2019 | 41


Interior Assembly







Board Workshop 2019 | 42


Undercar Assembly







Board Workshop 2019 | 43


Truck Installation and Air Unit







Board Workshop 2019 | 44


Static Test







Board Workshop 2019 | 45


Vehicle Arrives at Hayward TT







Board Workshop 2019 | 46


Test Track Testing







Board Workshop 2019 | 47


Train Ready for Revenue Service







Board Workshop 2019 | 48


Revenue Train at Embarcadero







Board Workshop 2019 | 49


Discussion





		Fare Gate & Fleet Update

		Agenda

		Fare Gates

		Current Fare Gates

		Back Office Process

		�Fare Evasion Challenges

		Slide Number 7

		�Current Efforts – New Fare Gates�

		Conceptual Design Proposal�Milestone Schedule

		BART Revenue Fleet Plan

		Agenda

		FOTF Deployment Plan

		Phase 1

		Phase 2

		Phase 3

		Phase 4

		Revenue fleet storage capacity

		Potential Future Expansion 

		Fleet Storage beyond 2027 will align capacity to support a 1,200-car fleet

		New Vehicle Procurement

		Agenda

		Budget Forecast�(Fed-MTC / State / BART / VTA Funding)

		Project Accomplishments

		Planned Activities Next Quarter

		Schedule

		DBE Status: Bombardier

		DBE Status: Bombardier

		Car Features

		  D-Car Vehicle Wiring

		Car Features

		LTK Comparison Study

		Transbay Corridor Core Capacity �Sole Source Procurement of Railcars

		Side Wall Brush

		Side Walls

		Floor Weldment

		Floor Fire Protection

		Roof Weldment

		Splice Station

		Splice Station with Floor

		Car Shell After Splice

		Car #57 Ready To Ship

		Interior Assembly

		Undercar Assembly

		Truck Installation and Air Unit

		Static Test

		Vehicle Arrives at Hayward TT

		Test Track Testing

		Train Ready for Revenue Service

		Revenue Train at Embarcadero

		Discussion






Board Workshop 2019


BART’s Parking Program
January 25, 2019







Board Workshop 2019 | 1


Agenda


1. Background and Policies
2. Current Conditions
3. Upcoming Initiatives
4. Implementation Plans
5. BART to Antioch Access Improvements
6. Board Discussion







Board Workshop 2019 | 2


Mission Statements


BART Mission
• Provide safe, clean, reliable and customer-friendly 


regional public transit service that increases mobility and 
accessibility, strengthens community and economic 
prosperity and helps preserve the Bay Area’s environment.


Parking Management Guiding Principle
• Use policies and pricing to maximize ridership and access.







Board Workshop 2019 | 3


• A. Safer, Healthier, Greener.  Advance 
the region’s safety, public health, and 
greenhouse gas (GHG) and pollution-
reduction goals.


• B. More Riders. Invest in station 
access to connect more riders cost 
effectively, especially where and when 
BART has available capacity.


• C. More Productive and Efficient. 
Manage access investments, 
programs, and current assets to 
achieve goals at the least cost.


• D. Better Experience. Be a better 
neighbor, and strive for an excellent 
customer experience, including on 
the first and last mile of the trip to 
and from BART stations.


• E. Equitable Services. Invest in access 
choices for all riders, particularly 
those with the fewest choices.


• F. Innovation and Partnerships. Be 
an innovation leader, and establish 
durable partnerships with 
municipalities, access providers, and 
technology companies.


BART Access Policy Goals







Board Workshop 2019 | 4


Station Access Policy:
Parking-related goal


More Riders. Invest in station access to connect 
more riders cost-effectively, especially where and 
when BART has available capacity. 


As ridership grows, invest in and manage access 
resources so as not to exacerbate peak period – peak 
direction crowding, including by ensuring users can find 
parking spaces at all times of day. 







Board Workshop 2019 | 5


Home to BART Mode Share


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


40%


2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018


Walk


Drive


Drop Off


Bus


Carpool


Bike







Board Workshop 2019 | 6


Access Mode Share Targets 
(home-based)


Active 
Access


35%


Shared 
Mobility


31%


Drive & 
Park
34%


2008 ACCESS 
MODE SHARE


Active 
Access


44%


Shared 
Mobility


29%


Drive & 
Park
27%


2015 ACCESS 
MODE SHARE*


Active 
Access


52%Shared 
Mobility


32%


Drive & 
Park
16%


2025 TARGET 
ACCESS MODE SHARE


Active Access: Walk, Bike


Shared Mobility: Transit, Shuttle, TNC, Drop-Off, Carpool


Drive & Park: Drive Alone
*Preliminary 2015 Station Profile Survey Data







Board Workshop 2019 | 7


Inventory:
BART’s 36 Parking Facilities


Type of parking spaces Number of spaces
Total Spaces 49,000
Total Daily Fee Spaces 40,300


Carpool spaces 902


Total Permit Spaces 8,700


Monthly 6,512


Single Day 1,472


Airport/Long-Term 716 (increases during vacation seasons)







Board Workshop 2019 | 8


Key Parking Milestones


1972: Parking Control Fees at Lake Merritt, Coliseum
• Protect parking for passengers


2001: Monthly Permits 
• Pilot at West Oakland
• Systemwide roll-out in 2002


2003: SFO Extension Opens
• Airport/Long-Term Permits
• Daily Fees in West Bay


2005: Daily fees in East Bay if full, Single Day permits
2013: Fees at all stations, demand-based pricing


• $3 daily fee cap, no cap at West Oakland
2015: Most stations reach $3 daily fee price cap


• Dedicated parking enforcement begins







Board Workshop 2019 | 9


Current Conditions:
New programs with parking access


• One Way Carsharing
• Gig at Oakland and Berkeley stations


• Roundtrip Carsharing
• GetAround and Zipcar at 15 BART stations
• CRIL offers Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles


at Hayward and Castro Valley


• Carpooling
• Legacy paper permit program at 23 stations
• Scoop at 17 stations. Over 95,000 Scoop carpool passenger trips since 2017


• Electric Vehicle charging pilot
• 38 reserved spaces at Warm Springs for $6/day. Average usage: 20 per weekday







Board Workshop 2019 | 10


Current Parking Policies:
On-site Rules


• Fees required
• 4am-3pm, Monday-Friday


• Parking for roundtrip BART 
passengers only


• Payment collected inside 
paid area of station


• 24-hour weekday maximum
• Waived during weekends







Board Workshop 2019 | 11


Current Payment Options


• Daily Fee Parking (first come, first served)
• Cash and/or blue mag-stripe ticket
• Clipper card with EZ Rider account


• Permit Parking (advanced reservation)
• Offsite sales at www.select-a-spot.com


• For Monthly, Single Day and Airport/Long-Term permits


• Early Bird Express (Pre-5am when stations closed)
• BART App – Launches Feb 11, 2019
• Unreserved permits at www.select-a-spot.com
• Daily hangtags from Customer Service outlets



http://www.select-a-spot.com

http://www.select-a-spot.com





Board Workshop 2019 | 12


Daily Fee Payment: Cash or Mag-stripe Ticket
Pay at Add Fare Machine and enter stall #







Board Workshop 2019 | 13


Daily Fee Payment: Clipper card
Tag at Parking Validation Machine, which activates hangtag #.


Passengers must link their Clipper
card to a BART “EZ Rider” parking
Account.







Board Workshop 2019 | 14


Reserved Permit Parking:  
Offsite Sales


Purchase 
Monthly, Single Day, 


and
Airport/Long-Term


permits at
www.Select-a-Spot.com


Link also available at
www.BART.gov/parking



http://www.Select-a-Spot.com

http://www.bart.gov/parking





Board Workshop 2019 | 15


Current Parking Policies:
Daily Fee and Permit Policies


• Daily Fee
• $3 cap


• No cap at West Oakland
• May change by $0.50 if above/below 95% occupancy


• Permit allocation limits
• All permit parking programs may be up to 40% of total spaces.


• Monthly permits may be up to 25% of total spaces.


• Permit prices based upon Daily Fee


Parking Category Formula Average Price


Daily Fee Based upon occupancy $3


Monthly (Daily Fee + $2) x 21 $105


Single Day Daily Fee + $3 $6


Airport/Long-Term Daily Fee + $4 $7 (no charge on weekends if begin or end on a weekend)







Board Workshop 2019 | 16


Daily Parking Fees:
Peer transit agencies


• BART: $3
• Boston MBTA: $2-15 Weekends $2


• Caltrain: $5.50
• Chicago: $2-7 Payment for 12 hours


• Dallas: Free
• Denver: Free Out of district: $4


• LA Metro: $2-3 Monthly discount for carpools


• Miami: $4.50
• SEPTA: $1-2
• TriMet Free Churches donate lots to transit


• WMATA: $5 Saturday $2







Board Workshop 2019 | 17


Annual Parking Revenue


New 
West 
Bay 
fees


New 
Daily 
Fees


New 
demand-
based 
fees to $3







Board Workshop 2019 | 18


Current Parking Demand


• Daily Fee area full by 9am, except for the following:
• End of Week: Fridays at many stations. Saturdays and 


Sundays at all stations.
• Vacation Seasons: When schools are off
• End of work day: After 4pm
• Stations: Millbrae and South Hayward


• High Demand for Permits
• Monthly permits sold out, except at Millbrae
• Systemwide waitlist total: 41,000
• Single Day permits sold out at most stations







Board Workshop 2019 | 19


Current Conditions: Overall


• Daily Fee price at $3 cap at all but one station
• No cap at West Oakland (currently $10.50/day)
• South Hayward $2 (on-street parking underutilized: Up to 0.4 


miles to station)
• Most stations have not had a fee increases for 3-4 years
• No current mechanisms to change price to manage demand


• $23 million to annually operate parking
• Does not include initial construction of assets, major capital 


rehabilitation of assets, or any expansion of resources
• TOD and intermodal projects decreasing parking supply
• Parking Fee Collection equipment outdated







Board Workshop 2019 | 20


Upcoming Parking Initiatives: 
Overview


1. Modernize Carpool Program


2. Automate Enforcement


3. Update Fee Collection System


4. Consider Modifying Pricing Policies







Board Workshop 2019 | 21


1: Modernize Carpool program


Current Program:
• Requires advanced permit.
• Legitimate carpools without a permit can't park.
• Requires time-consuming enforcement to prevent fraud.
• No guaranteed parking, except for Scoop passengers.
• Reluctance to expand carpool program.


• At the 23 stations with designated carpool spaces.
• To the 13 stations without designated carpool spaces.







Board Workshop 2019 | 22


1. Modernize Carpool Program


• Solution: Relaunch the carpool program 
through the new BART app.


• Open to all carpools 
• Casual, rideshare matching, etc.


• Dedicated parking spaces
• Launches May 2019


• How it will work
• 2 people per car check in with the BART app
• One passenger pays for parking
• Both riders enter faregates with Clipper cards
• Carpool verified through app and station entry data







Board Workshop 2019 | 23


2. Automate Enforcement


• Current program: Manual and complex enforcement 
system.


• Limited citation officers, with responsibilities beyond parking 
enforcement.


• Need to check 7 separate lists (hangtags, stall numbers and 
various permit displays).


• Limitations of manual enforcement:
• Some passengers risk citation for non-payment, or parking in 


the permit area without a permit, when enforcement limited.
• Protecting guaranteed parking in permit section is labor 


intensive, restricting other enforcement activities.







Board Workshop 2019 | 24


2. Automate Enforcement


• Solution: Implement Automated License Plate 
Recognition (ALPR) enforcement system


• Automatically checks license plates against an aggregated list 
from all payment sources


• Also may collect parking utilization data







Board Workshop 2019 | 25


2. Automate Enforcement


• Early 2019: Bring ALPR surveillance policy to Board for 
consideration.


• If approved, begin procurement for automated enforcement system.


• Phase 1: Use ALPR to enforce Permit and EZ Rider parking 
(72% of parkers).


• Replace EZ Rider and Permit hangtags, as well as Permit printouts, with 
license plate information.


• Phase 2: After fee collection system upgrade, use ALPR to 
enforce parking payment for cash payers (28% of parkers).


• Board Actions Required:
• Surveillance policy
• ALPR system contract







Board Workshop 2019 | 26


3. Update Fee Collection System


• Problem: Equipment is outdated.
• Can’t vary price by time of day or day of week.
• Can only have one price per station.
• Long lead time to modify pricing.
• Unable to accept license plate information without extensive 


reconfiguration.


• Consequence: Inability to use pricing to manage supply 
and demand of parking.







Board Workshop 2019 | 27


3. Update Fee Collection System


• Solution: Procure new fee 
collection system
• Ability to vary price by time of 


day and day of week.
• Ability to associate payment with 


license plate information instead 
of stall numbers.


• Permit Sales
• Integrate with new BART app
• Update contract (Dec 2019)


• Board Actions required:
• System and Installation contracts
• Permit sales contract







Board Workshop 2019 | 28


4. Modify Pricing Policies


• Problem: 2013 pricing policy has 
reached its cap.


• Daily Fee Pricing
• Pricing policy reached cap 


mostly in 2015, with little 
impact on parking fill times or 
demand.


• Permit Pricing
• Pricing tied to daily fee price 


doesn’t fully capture the 
benefit of being able to arrive 
any time before 10am, rather 
than before the daily fee 
section is full.


• Consequence: Can't use pricing 
to manage demand.







Board Workshop 2019 | 29


4. Modify Pricing Policies


• Solution: Implement a demand-based, variable 
pricing policy by time of day and day of week.


• Will require lead time to procure a new fee collection system.


• Interim Steps while new fee collection system is being 
procured:


• Consider a pilot to test demand-based variable pricing for 
permit fees.


• The current price is determined by a formula based upon the daily fee.
• Raise the daily fee price cap up to $5 at a limited number of 


stations, if they fill 4+ days per week.
• Current policy is based upon occupancy 3+ days per week.







Board Workshop 2019 | 30


4. Modify Pricing Policies


• Prerequisites for Variable Daily Fee pricing modification:
• Federal Title VI and Public Outreach process
• Update the parking fee collection system, with flexibility to vary 


pricing.


• All contracts and policy changes will require action items at 
future Board meetings.


• 2/3rds of Board required to support a fee modification.







Board Workshop 2019 | 31


BART to Antioch:                          
Access Improvements







Board Workshop 2019 | 32


Antioch Parking Lot:
Preliminary Schedule


• Winter 2018: BART Board action completed 


• Winter 2019: MTC allocation request


• Spring 2019: Advertise


• Summer/Fall 2019: Construction


• Summer/Fall 2020: Open surface lot 







Board Workshop 2019 | 33


Surface Parking Expansion
and Other Access Improvements


On-Site 
Improvements


New Surface Lot
(850 spaces)


33January 24, 2019 BART Board Workshop


Pedestrian 
access to 
station


Pedestrian/bike access 
improvements 


Market analysis for 
pedestrian/bike crossing


2
1


3


1. Parking & access improvements:
• Approximately 850 spaces
• Improved circulation/ passenger flow 


in existing surface lot 
• Improved ADA location
• Lighting, CCTV & emergency phones
2. Ped/Bike Access. 
• Partnering with Antioch/CCTA on 


pedestrian/bike access improvements 
along Slatten Ranch Rd.


3. Ped/Bike Crossing 
• Conducting a market study (working 


with the City, County and Caltrans) for 
a pedestrian/bike crossing to the 
south of the station 







Board Workshop 2019 | 34


Board Discussion 


• Update 2013 Pricing Policy
• Permit Pricing


• Initiate a pilot to decouple Permit and Daily Fee pricing and 
implement variable, demand-based permit pricing program.


• Daily Fee Pricing
• Initiate a pilot to raise cap up to $5 at a limited stations with 


strongest demand.


• Consider Variable Pricing Policy Systemwide
• Begin procurement of new fee collection system to capture 


license plate information and to be able to vary price by 
time of day and day of week.


• Initiate a Title VI study.





		BART’s Parking Program

		Agenda

		Mission Statements

		BART Access Policy Goals

		Station Access Policy:�Parking-related goal

		Home to BART Mode Share

		Access Mode Share Targets (home-based)

		Inventory:�BART’s 36 Parking Facilities

		Key Parking Milestones

		Current Conditions:�New programs with parking access

		Current Parking Policies:�On-site Rules

		Current Payment Options

		Daily Fee Payment: Cash or Mag-stripe Ticket�Pay at Add Fare Machine and enter stall #

		Daily Fee Payment: Clipper card�Tag at Parking Validation Machine, which activates hangtag #.

		Reserved Permit Parking:  �Offsite Sales

		Current Parking Policies:�Daily Fee and Permit Policies

		Daily Parking Fees:�Peer transit agencies

		Annual Parking Revenue

		Current Parking Demand

		Current Conditions: Overall

		Upcoming Parking Initiatives: Overview

		1: Modernize Carpool program

		1. Modernize Carpool Program

		2. Automate Enforcement

		2.  Automate Enforcement

		2. Automate Enforcement

		3. Update Fee Collection System

		3. Update Fee Collection System

		4. Modify Pricing Policies

		4. Modify Pricing Policies

		4. Modify Pricing Policies

		BART to Antioch:                          Access Improvements

		Antioch Parking Lot:�Preliminary Schedule

		Surface Parking Expansion�and Other Access Improvements

		Board Discussion 





